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FOREWORD 

The Annual Report of the activities of the Pakistan Science Foundation for the year 2005-

2006 is presented. 

The Foundation has been actively engaged in the propagation of science, funding of 

scientific research and its popularization amongst institutions at all levels ranging from the 

schools to the universities and other research institutions in the country. 
• 

The Foundation has also extended its activities to international interaction and a separate 

section has been established in this respect to highlight such activities. Recently with the 

cooperation of French scientists, the field of Data Warehousing and Data Mining was initiated at 

PSF and its further extensive applications in the Industry, Banking, Taxation, Crimes etc. will be 

extended. A Mathematics Exhibition to be supplied on honorary basis by a French Professor will 

be held in early 2008 for three months in a few cities of Pakistan. 

Further, emphasis on national efforts on popularization of scientific culture through the 

Meetings of Nobel Laureates in Germany and in Pakistan with Pakistani students/young scholars 

is planned to be part of the PSF regular activities. This initiative which is operative in Pakistan 

through cooperation of PAEC, HEC, PLEAS and MoST has been very successfully executed for 

the past few years and has been well appreciated by the Government of Pakistan and academic 

institutions in the country. 

In addition, efforts are being made to establish "Pakistan Science Museum" on high 

International standards which unfortunately does not exist in Pakistan so far. This National 

Museum is planned to be established in Islamabad. For further popularization of science in the 

country a PC-I has been prepared through a project of 500 "Science Clubs" for schools. Another 

PC-I of extension of popular programme of Science Caravans from nine to sixteen has been 

prepared. At present this programme covers limited parts of rural Pakistan and the Ministry of 
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	 . Science and Technology is keen on its extension as well as to the extension of Science Centres. 

Recently, MoUs have been signed with University of Khairpur and Balochistan University of 
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Information Technology & Management (BUITM), Quetta where 1-2 Acres of land has been 

allocated to PSF for building Science Centres at each of these universities. Negotiations for such 

allocation of land by University of Hazara and other places are in progress. 



The system of regular documentation of work done in PSF is rather weak and 

needs improvement and therefore emphasis has been laid to undertake documentation of quality 

publications on the work done by various centres of PSF. Publications of the work done in the 

past 5-years, which is so far lacking, is in progress. 

Noteworthy progress has been made on a new programme with emphasis on applied 

agriculture-based research through US Endowment Fund of about Rupees five hundred million. 

Already out of 42 projects obtained from Pakistani scientists 26 projects are being processed after 

assessment by Pakistani reviewers and by US reviewers independently. Further work to release 

funds for these projects is now in progress. 

Pakistan Science Foundation is therefore striving hard on new initiatives as well as for 

improvement of activities already in vogue to further its level of performance in the best-service 

to the nation. 

The dedicated services rendered by the employees of the Pakistan Science Foundation 

need appreciation. Acknowledgement is also due to the Ministry of Science and Technology for 

its support to the activities of PSF. 

God bless us all to put in our best for the progress of our dear homeland. Ameen. 

(Dr. N.M. Butt, Si.) 
Chairman 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION (PSF) 

Pakistan Science Foundation is the apex body for promotion and funding of scientific and 

technological research and other related activities in the country. The tasks undertaken by the 

Foundation for the performance of its statutory functions are divided into following three 

broad categories. 

i. Science Promotion 
To promote basic and applied research in universities and research institutes 
on scientific challenges & activities related to socio-economic 
needs/development of the country. 

ii. Science Popularization 
To increase public awareness about science through science popularization 
activities by establishing museums, clubs, herbaria and planetaria etc. 

iii. Scientific Centres 
To establish centers for comprehensive scientific and technological 
information systems and services. 

The activities of the Foundation revolve around these objectives. Some of the activities 

pertaining to these objectives are undertaken by Pakistan Museum of Natural History 

(PMNH) and Pakistan Scientific and Technological Information Centre (PASTIC), the two 

subsidiary organizations of PSF, while others are performed by the PSF Science Wing and 

are reflected as under: 

SCIENCE PROMOTION: 

Research support is the principal programme of the Foundation for the promotion of basic 

and fundamental research relevant to socio-economic needs of the country. During 2005-

2006, a total 459 projects in the fields of Agriculture, Biology, Biotechnology, Chemistry, 

Computer, Earth Sciences, Engineering, Medical Sciences and Physics remained under 

consideration. While 162 (98 under Non-Development budget and 64 under Development 

budget) remained on-going and an amount of Rs. 14.699 million was released on account of 



due installments of on-going projects. Among these one hundred & ninety six were under 

process, out of which four projects of Rs. 3.32 million were sanctioned. However, the 

contract agreements could not be issued due to paucity of funds. 

Monitoring and evaluation of on-going projects sponsored by the Foundation is an important 

function of the Research Support Programme. During the year, 130 technical reports (56 of 

Non-Dev., 69 Dev. and 5 R&D I.P.) of on-going projects including semi-annual, annual and 

final reports were received. The PSF relevant staff scrutinized the semi-annual and final 

reports, whereas the annual and final reports, after evaluation by the subject experts were 

placed before the relevant Technical Committees for consideration and adoption. During the 

year, 13 projects (6 Non-Dev. and 7 Dev.) were technically completed. 

Based on the results of completed projects, 23 research papers were published in 

national/international journals by the principal investigators. In addition, 04 Ph. D., 05 

M.Phil/M. Sc. Agric. (Hons) and 02 B.Sc.Agric (Hons) degrees were awarded to the research 

associates employed under PSF supported projects. 

Under PSF programme of "Scientific Surveys", an amount of Rs. 50,000/- was provided to 

Pakistan Museum of Natural History to conduct survey and impact assessment of Earthquake 

on Biodiversity in Hazara Division and Azad Kashmir. 

PSF provided Institutional Support Grant of Rs. 0.350 million to Physics Research Division, 

Pakistan Institute of Nuclear Science and Technology (PINSTECH), Islamabad for the 

Purchase of Mossbauer Source. 

Rs.0.585 million were paid to 14 organizations for holding of conferences/ seminars/ 

workshops and Rs.0.205 million was paid to various organizations for the publication of five 

(5) scientific journals during the report period. Under Awards and Fellowships programme, 

PSF granted fellowships to three (3) Ph.D. Scholars studying in various local universities 

@Rs.6000/- per month. 
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Additional funds amounting to Rs. 17.303 million available through ongoing development 

projects 	were also utilized to support 22 Scientific Societies for holding of 

conferences/seminars/workshops, publication of journals and establishing linkages with 

similar bodies abroad, financial support to 34 scientists for presentation of their research 

papers in international conference abroad and 11 active scientists for procurement of research 

materials, lab equipment and chemicals etc. for undertaking their research work more 

effectively. 

SCIENCE POPULARIZATION 

Popularization of Science is one of the statutory functions of Pakistan Science Foundation. 

To achieve this objective, the Foundation undertakes a number of programmes. During the 

year, the nine Science Caravans organized 497 days of science exhibition in schools & 

industrial fairs, wherein 472 schools participated in these exhibitions and fairs and 99,670 

students & general public visited them. For promotion of science through scientific books, 

two books; "Manual of Insect Physiology" by Dr. Ashfaq Ahmad (500 copies) and 

"Biotechnology for Kids" by Syeda Maryam Bilal (250 copies) were distributed among S&T 

organizations and high schools. Another two books; "Man, Mountain and Medicine" by Dr. 

Muhammad Ilyas and "Safety Management and Engineering-An integrated Approach" by 

Prof. Dr. Abdul Raouf were co-sponsored. Some 12000 copies of the Monthly Popular 

Science Magazine "Global Science" were also purchased and donated to 1000 schools 

around the country as a regular feature. 

15th  Inter & Intra-Board Science Essay and Science Poster competitions were organized 

among the 22 Boards of Intermediate and Secondary Education (BISEs) across the country. 

The topic of essay was "Nano Science and Technology" while poster contest was on "Water 

Pollution". Winner students were given cash prizes through their Boards of Education. 

Annual Review and Planning Meeting (All Hands Meeting) was held on 7th  July, 2005. The 

progress of previous year was reviewed and plans for new financial year were discussed. In 

the evening all retired and serving employees were invited for a get together. 

As a new initiative, the "First Meeting of Nobel Laureates with Pakistani Students/Young 

Scholars" organized by PSF with joint sponsorship of MoST, PAEC, HEC and COMSATS 
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on 27-31 March, 2006 at Islamabad and Lahore. Three Nobel Laureates namely Prof. Charles 

H. Townes, USA, Prof. Ivar Giaever, USA and Prof. Gerardus 't Hooft, Netherlands and a 

former member of the organizing committee of "Nobel Laureates Annual Meetings" in 

Germany, Prof. L. E. Feinendegen participated in the meeting. His Excellency Mr. Shaukat 

Aziz, Prime Minister of Islamic Republic of Pakistan inaugurated the meeting. 

On the occasion of "World Science Day for Peace and Development", PSF, MoST and 

UNESCO jointly organized a Convention of Scientists on 10th  November, 2005 in Islamabad, 

with special emphasis on "Earthquakes, their Scientific Explanations and Forecasting". A 

live talk show on PTV World "News Morning" was also aired on the day, wherein scientists 

discussed various aspects of earthquakes. The "World Year of Physics-2005" was 

commemorated by the Foundation and a lecture by Dr. Khalid Rashid on "Einstein- the 

Genius of the Century" was arranged on 29th  December, 2005 in PSF Auditorium. A live talk 

show on PTV World "News Morning" was also organized on 27th  December 2005, in which 

Dr. N. M. Butt, Dr. Mujahid Kamran, and Dr. Khalid Rashid participated. 

The Foundation in a special ceremony held on 6th  June, 2006 felicitated Prof. Dr. Atta-ur-

Rahman, N.I., H.I., S.I., T.I., Chairman, HEC, on his election as "Fellow Royal Society 

(FRS)" London. The function was inaugurated by the Federal Minister of Science and 

Technology, Ch. Nouraiz Shakoor Khan. 

In connection with UNESCO Project "Breaking the Poverty Cycle of Women", PSF in 

collaboration with MoST and UNESCO organized 3"I  International meeting of Sub Regional 

Network on "Non-Formal Science Education and Popularization of Science" from 10-12 

April, 2006. Scientists and Educationists from Pakistan, India, Nepal and UNESCO Paris, 

and some Pakistani NGOs participated in the meeting. 

PAKISTAN MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY (PMNH) 

Pakistan Museum of Natural History continued its research and display activities during the 

report period. Field works were conducted by the scientists of its three scientific Divisions to 

areas of Swat, Dir, Kaghan valley, Kohistan, Northern Areas, Muzaffrabad and Basol in 

Balochistan. A large number of plants, animal, rocks and fossil samples were collected along 
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with field data. The specimens were preserved and added to the PMNH repository of 

specimens. Research on various aspects of the Flora, Fauna, Geology, Mineralogy and 

Palaeontology of Pakistan was carried out. Some 15 research articles were published in 

reputed national and international journals. The areas affected by the October earthquake 

were visited by the scientists of PMNH to assess the geological and biodiversity changes 

brought about by the catastrophe. The officers of PMNH attended a number of conferences 

and symposia in various institutions of Pakistan as well as in foreign countries. The 

scientists and supporting staff received more than two dozens of trainings on research 

methodology, management, computer applications, etc. Work on six ongoing research 

projects funded by Pakistan Science Foundation and other donor agencies continued. A 

number of new research projects were approved for funding, while some new projects were 

submitted. Work on a development project entitled "completion of Block II of PMNH" was 

started. The Display Centre of PMNH was visited by more than 30,000 people, including 

students, general public and foreigners. PMNH officers provided technical assistance to a 

number of M. Sc., M. Phil. and Ph. D. students. 

PAKISTAN SCIENTIFIC AND TECHNOLOGICAL INFORMATION CENTRE 
(PASTIC) 

During the period 2005-06, 1981 orders were received for supply of reprints of articles, out 

of which 1565 were honored. Under the Bibliographic Service, 289,123 references from 

International Bibliographic Databases on CD ROM were supplied to 954 researchers/users 

on S&T topics. PASTIC Documentation Section initiated its new Digital Document Supply 

Service (DDSS) which has reduced the time of supply of the order from days to hours. 

PASTIC publishes secondary information journal viz "Pakistan Science Abstracts" on 

regular basis. During the reported period, Vol. 42 of Pakistan Science Abstracts of the year 

2004 in ten different S&T disciplines was published and distributed along with Union 

Catalogue and Directory of S&T Periodicals of Pakistan to all the universities and major 

R&D organizations. Under Reprographic Services of PASTIC, about 1213465 impressions, 

3063 pages and 77667 copies were printed and produced by the Reprography Unit against 

161 jobs received from 10 organizations. 
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Digitization of PASTIC library remained in progress and it is planned to make it the National 

Resource Centre for all type of Scientific and Technological Information. During 2005-06, 

1125 articles were supplied to the researchers. Besides, the library received 937 issues of 

National and International Journal titles along with books reports, miscellaneous documents, 

etc. which were processed and shelved for use. 

PASTIC is the National Focal Point for International/Regional Information Networks, like 

SAARC Documentation Center, WHO/CEHANET and UNEP/INFOTERRA and also acts as 

coordinating/collaborating body for UNDP/TIPS, UNESCO/ASTINFO etc. During the year 

2005-2006, information/data received from these organizations was disseminated to various 

institutions and professionals. Under Technological Information Promotion System (TIPS), 

Technology & Trade information offers and requests in the form of monthly bulletins were 

prepared and disseminated to the subscribers in 14 different areas.. 

PASTIC is currently executing a development project entitled "Science Awareness through 

TV Channel". During the report period panel discussions on diverse topics were aired on 

PTV World and Workshops on Science Promotion through media were organized in 

Islamabad and Lahore. Ten S&T documentaries were acquired, translated and dubbed for 

airing on TV Channels. 
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DETAILED ANNUAL REPORT 



INTRODUCTION 

Pakistan Science Foundation was established on June 30, 1973 under the Pakistan 

Science Foundation Act No. III of National Assembly (Annexure I) as an autonomous body 

to promote and finance scientific and technological activities having a bearing on the socio-

economic needs of the country. Under the Act, the Foundation has been entrusted to carry out 

the following functions: 

i) Establishment of comprehensive scientific and technological information and 
dissemination centers. 

ii) Promotion of basic and fundamental research in universities and other institutions 
on scientific problems relevant to the socio-economic development of the 
country. 

iii) Utilization of the results of scientific and technological research including pilot 
plant studies to prove the technical and economic feasibility of processes found to 
be promising on a laboratory scale. 

iv) Establishment of science centers, clubs, museums, herbaria and planetaria. 

v) Promotion of scientific societies, associations and academies engaged in 
spreading the cause of scientific knowledge in general or in the pursuit of a 
specific scientific discipline or technology in particular. 

vi) Organization of periodical science conferences, symposia and seminars. 

vii) Exchange of visits of scientists and technologists with other countries. 

viii) Grant of awards, prizes and fellowships to individuals engaged in developing 
processes, products and inventions of consequence to the economy of the country. 

ix) Special scientific surveys not undertaken by any other organization and collection 
of scientific statistics related to the scientific efforts of the country. 

The Foundation shall also: 

i) Review the progress of scientific research sponsored by PSF and evaluates the 
results of such research. 

ii) Maintain a National Register of highly qualified and talented scientists/engineers 
and doctors both in and outside Pakistan and to assist them in collaboration with 
concerned agencies to seek appropriate employment. 

iii) Establish liaison with similar bodies in other countries. 

The activities performed under the above mentioned statutory functions are given in 
the chapters that follow. 
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CHAPTER -1 

ACTIVITIES & PROGRAMMES 

The activities and programmes undertaken by the Foundation for the performance of 

its statutory functions can be broadly divided into the following four categories: 

1. Establishment of Comprehensive Scientific and Technological Information and 
Dissemination Centers. 

2. Financing of Scientific Research in the Country and the Utilization of the Research 
Results. 

3. Science Promotion 

4. Popularization of Science in the society. 

The first activity is carried out through Pakistan Scientific and Technological 

Information Centre (PASTIC), a subsidiary organization of PSF. The other functions 

i.e., Research Support, Science Promotion and Science Popularization etc., are 

performed by the Science Wing of the Foundation. Functions of the Science Wing of 

PSF are further subdivided as under. 

1. Research Support 

a. Grants for Research Projects. 

b. Research monitoring and Evaluation. 

2. Science Promotion 

• Institutional Support 

• Promotion/funding of Scientific Societies/Learned Bodies. 

• Funding of Conferences, Symposia, Seminars & Workshops. 

• Travel Grants 

• International Liaison 

• Awards and Fellowships 

• Survey and Statistics 
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3. Science Popularization: activities including Science Caravans, Science Clubs, 

Science Fairs and holding Popular Science Lectures, Workshops, Conferences 

and Symposia. 

4. Planning and Development Program : 

A. On-going Development Projects 

During the year 2005-06 following development projects remained under 

implementation: 

1. Financial Support to Scientific Societies in Pakistan. 

2. Participation of Scientists and Technologists in International Conferences, 
Seminars and Workshops. 

3. Funding of S&T Research in Universities and other R&D Organizations. 

4. Research Support Programme for Active Scientists and Technologists of 
Pakistan. 

5. Career Development of Young Scientists and Technologists of Pakistan: 

B. New PC-Is submitted to MoST 

Following new PC-Is were submitted to Most for approval of the Government. 

SI. No. Project Title Cost Duration 

1.  Participation of Scientists and Technologists 
in International Conferences, Seminars, 
Workshops and Training Abroad (Phase-II) 

36.08 3-years 

2.  Automation of Research Support and other 
Activities of PSF 

19.081 18 months 

3.  Establishment of 500 Science Clubs in High 
Schools and Colleges 

232.692 3-years 

4.  Popularization of Science in Rural Areas 
(Phase (II)- Construction of Six-New Science 
Caravans 

62.04 3-years 
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In addition to PASTIC, the other subsidiary organization of PSF is the Pakistan 

Museum of Natural History (PMNH), established in 1979 to serve the national needs in the 

vitally important areas of research, conservation and education involving Pakistan's heritage 

of natural resources. The Museum is a National Repository for permanent storage of plants, 

animals, rocks, minerals and fossils of the country. The progress of the work carried out by 

the Science Wing of the Foundation, PMNH and PASTIC during the year 2005-2006 is 

summarized in the following pages. 

11 
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I. 	RESEARCH SUPPORT 

A. Research Projects Funded from Non Development Budget 

Research Support is the principal programme of Pakistan Science Foundation for the 

promotion of basic and fundamental research, having relevance to the socio-economic needs 

of the country. Some applied research projects and pilot plant studies are also supported if 

they have a direct bearing on the socio-economic development. The criteria for funding of 

research projects by the Foundation is: competency of the scientific personnel to carry out 

research, institutional capabilities i.e. availability of basic equipment and laboratory facilities, 

scientific merit of the proposed research projects and likelihood of completion of the 

proposed research within the stipulated time. Each proposal, after getting reviewed from a 

subject expert in the particular field, is placed before the relevant Technical Committee for 

technical evaluation and recommendations regarding provision of funds under various heads 

of expenditure proposed by the researchers. The proposal, if recommended by the Technical 

Committee, is then submitted to PSF Executive Committee for final approval. 

1. Underprocess Projects: 

During the report period, a total 196 proposals remained under active consideration of 

the Foundation. Out of these, 65 were newly received, while 131 were carried over from the 

previous year. Out of the reviewed projects during the year, 12 succeeded in getting the 

recommendations of the PSF Technical Committees in the fields of Agricultural and 

Biological Sciences. Budget of four (04) projects were approved by the PSF Executive 

Committee at a total cost of Rs. 3.302 million (Annexure-II), however, the contract 

agreements could not be issued due to paucity of funds. The remaining projects were at 

various stages of processing. 

2. On-Going Projects: 

The Foundation evaluates the technical progress as well as financial position of on-

going projects continuously till their completion. During the year, 52 reports (semi-annual, 

1s` & 2"d annual and final) were received. The relevant PSF staff scrutinized the semi-annual 
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reports, whereas the annual and final reports, after initial scrutiny, were sent for evaluation to 

the subject experts. It may be mentioned that due installments of on-going projects are 

released only if progress of the projects is satisfactory. An amount of Rs. 10.675 million was 

released on account of due installments of 98 ongoing projects. A list of the semi-annual, 

annual and final reports is given in Annexure-HI. 

3. 	Completed Projects: 

During the year six (06) research projects were completed and their final reports were 

received. The subject experts evaluated these reports which were subsequently placed before 

relevant PSF Technical Committees for consideration and adoption. The accounts of these 

projects have also been settled. A list of the completed projects, their scientific output in 

terms of research papers and human resource development, and the report summaries are 

presented below. 

i. 	List of Completed projects: 

S. No. 

1. 

Projects No. 

C-NARC/Agr (266) 

Project Title 

Identification, characterization and distribution of 
phytoplasmal disease of potato in Pakistan. 

Evaluation of morphological and physiological plant traits 
adopting as forage under stresses. 

Use of rhizobia in the biological control of root knot 
disease of crop plants. 

Evaluation and assessment of germination stand 
establishment and yield of soybean and mungbean before 
and after seed storage using osmoconditioning techniques. 

Studies on the field efficacy of the entomopathogenic 
nematodes as biopesticides. 

Effect of slope steepness and green manuring on runoff, 
erosion, soil properties and soil fertility in eroded lands of 
Northern NWFP. 

2 	F-AU/Agr (268) . 

3 	S-KU/Agr (269) 

4. 	F-AU/Agr (282) 

5 	S-KU/Agr (285) 

6 	F-AU/Agr (300) . 
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ii. 	Summaries of Completed Projects 

Project No. 

Project Title: 

Duration: 

Date of Initiation: 

Date of Completion: 

Date of Final Report 
Received: 

Location of Scheme: 

Principal Investigator: 

Total Expenditure: 

Main Objectives: 

C-NARC/Agr (266) 

Identification, characterization and distribution of 
phytoplasmal disease of potato in Pakistan. 

3-Years. 

01.10.2000. 

31.03.2004 (Extension) 

08.01.2005 

National Agricultural Research Centre, (NARC), Islamabad. 

Mrs. Fauqia Fahmeed 

Rs. 437,036/- 

• Assessment of prevalence, incidence and severity of potato 
phytoplasmal disease in different agro-ecological zones of 
Pakistan. 

• Standardization of diagnostic techniques for potato 
phytoplasmas. 

Summary of work done: 

Surveys were conducted in the potato growing areas of Punjab (Central & Northern), 

Sindh, Balochistan, NWFP (Swat & Kaghan) and Gilgit. Percentage incidence of disease was 

recorded on the basis of their symptoms; which was 27.4, 28.0, 0.4, 8.0, 10.2, 19.4 and 

21.8% respectively. 

For the transmission of phytoplasmal disease, grafting was established. Potato, 

tomato, cowpea, periwinkle and tobacco plants were grafted with infected potato plants to 

allow the multiplication of organisms in host plants. Potato plants developed symptoms 

including vein clearing, leaf yellowing and swollen nodes after one month. Tomato plants 

exhibited yellowing and inward curling of leaves, swollen nodes and stunted growth- typical 

symptoms of phytoplasmal infection. Tobacco plants were symptomless, whereas, periwinkle 

plants showed yellowing and vein clearing of leaves, stunted growth and witch's broom like 

structure of the inoculated plants. Leafhoppers, suspected to be the vectors for phytoplasmal 
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disease in potato, were collected from phytoplasma infected potato field and were identified 

to be of the genus Balclutha (Cicadellidae: Homoptera). These hoppers could not be reared 

on tomato, potato, tobacco, millet, wheat or maize plants. 

Fluorescent, Light and Electron Microscopy (Transmission and Scanning) for 

phytoplasmal detection was standardized. Fluorescent microscopy (DAPI staining test) was 

used for assessment of disease. Suspected positive plants showed blue-white fluorescing 

bodies in the sieve tubes. Fluorescent Microscopic results for material from Central Punjab, 

Northern Punjab, Sindh, Balochistan, Swat, Kaghan and Gilgit were noted as; 25.15%, 63%" 

.04%, 8.6%, 15%, 14%, 46% respectively. Using light microscopy, different shapes of 

foreign bodies (likely to be phytoplasma) were observed within stained phloem cells of 

suspected diseased potato samples which were similar to the known positive phytoplasma-

affected samples of periwinkle witches' broom (Catharanthus roseus), Plum (Plum 

Leptonecrosis or PLN) and Aster (Aster Yellows Chlorantie or AYC) plants received from 

CABI, UK. Plants were also confirmed by Scanning Electron Microscopic (SEM) 

examination. Spherical shaped organisms were observed. Pleomorphic bodies (Oval to round 

in shape) were seen in the ultra thin sections of the vascular tissues of the same-known 

phytoplasma infected plants by Transmission Electron Microscopy (TEM). These bodies 

were restricted to mature sieve elements and were not found in the surrounding 

parenchymatous cells and are concluded to be phytoplasma like bodies. Protocols for 

phytoplasmal DNA extraction as well as Polymerase Chain Reaction (PCR) were 

standardized. Five different methods of DNA extraction were used to get desirable DNA. 

Best results for amplification were achieved by using DNA extraction kit and primers 

designed from conserved regions of the 16S rDNA gene of MLO. The required band 

obtained was of 0.5 kb in the suspected potato and periwinkle plants but it was absent in 

healthy plants. 

Project No: 	 F-AU/Agr (268) 

Project Title: 	 Evaluation of morphological and physiological plant traits 
adopting as forage under stresses. 

Duration: 	 3-Years. 
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Date of Initiation: 

Date of Completion: 

Date of Final Report 
Received: 

Location of Scheme: 

Principal Investigator: 

Total Expenditure: 

Main Objectives: 

20.08.2001 

19.08.2004 

18.11.2005 

NWFP Agricultural University, Peshawar. 

Prof. Dr. Mohammad Akmal 

Rs. 557,265/- 

To observe the morphological and physiological characters of 
different native grass species during growth and development 
under drought and their performance with respect to dry matter 
yield and quality. 

Summary of work done 

Basic aim of the project was to investigate drought, cold and heat resistant varieties 

and/or lines of native grasses and shrubs adopting as forage under stress conditions. A 

number of lines and varieties of the forage species available with different institutions were 

collected and planted in green house as well as in open field conditions to establish the 

research material. Based on their performance in the initial project phase, selection of species 

was made for further study in replicated trials. Species were thoroughly examined for forage 

yield and quality performance against drought at Peshawar and Mansehra locations. 

A number of shrubs selected and transplanted in field for comparative study under 

drought revealed that Gleditsia triacanthos was the best species among the group having 

considerable resistance to seasonal cold and heat stresses in the region and fits with the 

climatic conditions of Mansehra. This species has potential to face the climatic fluctuation if 

initially established. Others species were found relatively more susceptible to the area. 

Clovers are mainly planted as irrigated forage source in NWFP and not a single 

variety/line was identified as potential candidate for planting in partially dry regions. Among 

the imported material, M. saliva locally known as Duputts, Lutetia and Pottou was found to 

have greater potential to survive under drought conditions in Mansehra. Among the local 

types, great potential was noticed in species collected from Shergarh area to withstand 

drought stress conditions and yield green forage in the project area. Alfalfa as drought, cold 
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and heat resistant crop was found superior to withstand and supply green forage round the 

year. All the 15 varieties were best suited to the climatic conditions of Peshawar. Alfalfa 

showed higher potential in subsidizing green forage gap in the region and to overcome the 

existing deficiency of green forage in terms of dry matter and total digestible nutrients 

(TON). However, ORAQ-2 and Flewish-pop performed relatively better in harsh summer of 

Peshawar. These varieties also yielded better green forage throughout the year under drought 

in winter and summer months and were efficient to fix Nitrogen (N) in the soil during the 

two years of legume cultivation and showed approximately 62% higher total N in soil as 

compared to non-cultivated plot during the period. This does not however, suggest for N 

budgeting as crop cultivation and dry matter production also exhausted the soil for N in the 2 

years duration. 

Cereals are commonly grown in winter under drought stress conditions and barley is 

famous and already accepted as green fodder in drought stress conditions of NWFP, 

however, oats need to be explored for the purpose. Thus five potential oat varieties with 

relatively better performance under drought stress were tested at Peshawar and Mansehra 

locations and all five did well as drought resistant forage in Mansehra. Among them, PO2L, 

V65 and Hakael were the best for green forage in the area. Potassium (K) application did not 

show any encouraging results on oats varieties performance as green forage in Manshera. 

Dry matter production of the different varieties almost mimicked the same pattern as reported 

for fresh matter. In Peshawar location, variety S-2000 was found superior among the group 

for dry 'matter production, crude protein (CP) and digestibility. 

Oats can not be compared with locally cultivated barley, however, all the selected 

oats varieties were found superior for leaf to stem ratio, leaf area and tiller density characters 

when compared with locally cultivated barely species for the same characters. It was found 

that oats are to be harvested in 100-110 days when planted as irrigated crop for the optimum 

productivity, this duration could vary when planted as rain fed under drought and may take 

125-130 days. The delayed harvest beyond this would cause considerable loss in its quality 

by each day. 

Combination of the different species proved that green forage supply duration can be 
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enhanced from 20% to 50% in season subject to the combination of the species and their 

growth behaviour in the region. Alfalfa and ryegrass under drought did not perform well. 

However, their plantation with berseem and shaftal could allow for establishment of their 

seedlings on the available moisture in the field and hence enables the seedlings to withstand 

drought stress lateron and hence yields green forage in June-July when normal clover forage 

has exhausted. Among the samples tested in last year showed that Penesitum and Cenchrus 

species have relatively better potential to replace the existing native types in the region. 

Project No. 

Project Title: 

Duration: 

Date of Initiation: 

Date of Completion: 

Date Final Report Received: 

S-KU/Agr (269) 

Use of rhizobia in the biological control of root knot disease of 
crop plants. 

3-Years 

01.05.2001 

30.04.2004 

28.09.2004 

Location of Scheme: 	University of Karachi, Karachi. 

Principal Investigator: 

Total Expenditure: 

Main Objectives: 

Summary of work done: 

Prof. Dr. M. Javed Zaki 

Rs. 418,498/- 

To isolate various rhizobia and Bradyrhizobium spp., and to 
evaluate their efficacy for the control of root-knot nematodes 
on both leguminous and non-leguminous crop plants. 

During survey of Karachi and its suburbs, the roots of leguminous and non 

leguminous plants were collected and 34 different Rhizobium and Bradyrhizobium isolates 

viz., Rhizobium sp. (isolate 1), Bradyrhizobium sp., (isolate 2), B. japonicum (isolate 3), B. 

japonicum (isolate 4), R. meliloti (isolate 5), Bradyrhizobium sp., (isolate 6), B. japonicum 

(isolate 7), B. japonicum (isolate 8), Bradyrhizobium sp., (isolate 9), Rhizobium sp. (isolate 

10), Rhizobium sp. (isolate 11), Rhizobium sp. (isolate 12), R. meliloti (isolate 13) and 

Rhizobium sp. (isolate 14), B. japonicum (isolate, 25), R. leguminosarum (UK isolate, 26), R. 
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leguminosarum (UK isolate, 27), R. leguminosarum (UK isolate, 28), Bradyrhizobium sp. 

(isolate, 29), B. japonicum (isolate, 30), Bradyrhizobium sp. (isolate, 31), Bradyrhizobium 

sp., (isolate, 32), Rhizobium sp. (isolate, 33), Rhizobium sp. (isolate, 34), R. meliloti (isolate 

35), Rhizobium sp. (isolate 37), Rhizobium sp. (isolate 38), Rhizobium sp. (isolate 39), 

Rhizobium sp. (isolate 40), Rhizobium sp. (isolate 41), Rhizobium sp. (isolate 42), Rhizobium 

sp. (isolate 43), Rhizobium sp. (isolate 44) and Rhizobium sp. (isolate 45) were isolated and 

identified. 

All the test isolates of Rhizobium species showed infectivity and produced nodules on 

mungbean used as test plant but their effect was variable. Culture filtrates of Rhizobium 

species showed strong nematicidal effects in terms of hatching, mortality and penetration of 

nematodes in plants. R. meliloti (isolate 5) showed maximum (59%) reduction in egg 

hatching, followed by Bradyrhizobium sp., (Sesbania isolate 2) with 30% reduction. 

Rhizobium species (isolate 12) exerted maximum lethal effects (100%) followed by B. 

japonicum (isolate 8) and Rhizobium species (isolate 14) with 95% juvenile mortality. 

Killing of second stage juveniles of M. javanica increased with an increased exposure time. 

Similarly, root invasion by root knot juveniles was significantly less in bacterial treated 

plants than non treated controls. 

In green house studies Rhizobium and Bradyrhizobium species used as seed dressing 

for the control of root knot nematode, significantly reduced galling as well as improved plant 

growth in mungbean and okra. Among these isolates, B. japonicum (isolate 25) showed better 

growth whereas R. leguminosarum (isolate 28) was found effective against root knot 

development in mungbean plants. Similarly, Rhizobium species (isolate 34) showed better 

growth but significant reduction in nematode infection was obtained by the Rhizobium 

species (isolate 33). 

In micro plot field studies, effective isolates were selected (seed and soil treatments 

were applied on okra, mungbean and chickpea as test crops). Rhizobial strain B. japonicum 

(isolate 8) was found to suppress root knot infection on okra followed by Rhizobium species 

(isolate 12) and Rhizobium species (isolate 14) over control when used as seed treatment. 

Plant growth parameters were also increased by selected strains. Mungbean showed 
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enhanced plant growth, nodulation and nematode disease suppression when seeds were 

treated with Rhizobium species (isolate 14). 

In another greenhouse experiment, 4 bacterial strains viz., Pasteuria penetrans (UK 

isolate), P. penetrans (Pak isolate) and R.meliloti (isolate 5 and 13) were tested against 

Meloidogyne javanica, root knot nematodes. All the bacteria were found effective against 

Mojavanica on tomato. Significant growth enhancement was provided by R. meliloti (isolate 

5) and reduced >42% gall formation per root system over control. Number of eggs per egg 

mass and nematode density g-1  root and soil (per 200g soil) were also significantly 

suppressed with R. meliloti (isolate 5) as compared to other treatments and control. 

In yet another greenhouse experiments, soil was amended with nursery fertilizer 

(plant food) and inoculated with R. meliloti (isolate 5), B. japonicum (isolate 8), Rhizobium 

species (isolate 12) and Rhizobium species (isolate 14). Greater increase in the growth or 

mungbean plants was observed in plants treated with Rhizobium species along with nursery 

fertilizer (plant food) as compared to untreated control. Significant reduction in nematode 

infection was obtained in plants treated with Rhizobium species and nursery fertilizer (plant 

food) whereas nematode infection was greater in untreated control. Rhizobium species 

(isolate 12) increased growth of okra plants hindered by root knot disease followed by B. 

japonicum (isolate 8) and Rhizobium species (isolate 14) over control. All test strains showed 

increased number or Rhizobial nodules when compared to control. In mungbean plots treated 

with Rhizobial strains (soil drench), B. japonicum (isolate 8), Rhizobium species (isolate 12) 

and Rhizobium species (isolate 14) enhanced plant growth, nodulation and hampered root 

knot development over control. 

In another greenhouse experiment soil was amended with dried organic powders viz., 

ginger, garlic and chickpea and left for 1-2 weeks to allow decomposition of organic matter 

into soil. After 2 weeks soil was inoculated with cell suspecsion of R. meliloti (isolate 5), B. 

japonicum (isolate 8), Rhizobium species (isolate 12) and Rhizobium species (isolate 14). 

Greater reduction in nematode infection as well as better growth in mungbean plants was 

observed in the treatments where soil was amended with organic matters along with 

Rhizobium species. Chickpea powder was found to be better than other organic matters. 
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Significant increase in plant growth was observed in the treatment of chickpea along with 

Rhizobium species (isolate 12) and where chickpea powder was used alone. Similarly, 

significant reduction in nematode infection in mungbean plants was observed with the 

treatment of chickpea powder alongwith R. meliloti (isolate 5). 

Project No. 

Project Title: 

Duration: 

Date of Initiation: 

Date of Completion: 

Date of Final Report 
Received: 

Location of Scheme: 

Principal Investigator: 

Total Expenditure: 

F-AU/Agr (282) 

Evaluation and assessment of germination stand establishment 
and yield of soybean and mungbean before and after seed 
storage using osmoconditioning techniques. 
3-Years. 

01.09.2001 

31-08-2004 

12.04.2005 

NWFP Agricultural University, Peshawar. 

Prof. Dr. Shad Khan 

Rs. 414,989/- 

Main Objectives: 

• To evaluate the effect of planting dates on seed size, germination 
and yield of soybean and mungbean. 

• To evaluate the effect of various polyethylene glycol 
concentration and seed treatment duration on germination, growth 
and yield of soybean and mungbean. 

• To evaluate the effect of seed storage for different durations after 
treatment and without treatment on germination, growth and yield 
of soybean and mungbean. 

Summary of work done: 

Pakistan is facing serious deficiency in protein and vegetable oil. Soybean and 

mungbean have the potential to become the leading oil seed and pulse crops respectively. In 

Pakistan, the yield of these crops is very low as compared with other soybean & mungbean 
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producing countries. The low yield is mainly due to poor germination of the seed in the field 

and rapid loss of quality by the seed during storage. Initially a seed may be of good quality at 

harvest, but loses the quality rapidly, if not stored properly. To overcome the two problems, 

osmoconditioning of seed is one of the most promising methods/techniques used to 

precondition seeds of vegetables and field crops. Present study was therefore initiated to 

evaluate the effect of planting date, osmoconditioning and storage of the osmoconditioned 

seed and its effect on emergence, growth and seed yield. 

Two soybean varieties were planted on six sowing dates at 2 locations i.e. NWFP 

Agriculture University, Peshawar and Agriculture Research Station (ARS) Mingora from 

March 15 to August 15 at one month intervals during 2002-2004. Planting dates significantly 

affected days to emergence, plant height, pods per plant, thousand grain weight and grain 

yield. Early planting (March-April) took maximum days to emergence, 50% flowering, 50% 

pod formation, days to maturity, attained maximum plant height, produced maximum 

branches per plant, maximum pods per plant, maximum grains per pod, maximum thousand 

grain weight and grain yield. Varieties also significantly varied in their performance and 

Swat-84 took more days to emergence and produced heavier grains as compared to 

Malakand-96. Malakand-96 attained more plant height, produced more pods per plant and 

thus more yield per hectare compared to Swat-84. Planting from June onward produced good 

quality seed compared with early planted crop as the seed developed and matured at low 

temperature. Planting from 15th  March to 15th  April is recommended for both varieties of 

soybean for obtaining maximum yield while June onward planting is recommended for 

obtaining good quality seed. Similar results were obtained in case of two mungbean varities 

tested. 

Two soybean varieties were primed in polyethylene glycol (PEG) 400, 10000, sodium 

chloride and water. Variety Malakand-96 primed in PEG 400 gave best germination. Three 

mungbean varieties were also primed in PEG 400, 10000, sodium chloride and water and 

Variety NM-92 primed in PEG 400 gave the best germination. 

Seeds of two soybean varieties (Swat 84, Malakand 96) were treated for 12 and 24 

hours using 100, 300 and 400 g PEG 8000. The seed was surface dried, stored under room 
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temperature and refrigerated condition and was evaluated for germination after 20, 40, 60 

and 80 weeks storage. Seed stored under refrigerated conditions retained good quality 

through out the storage period (20-80 week) and gave good germination. Variety Malakand 

96 gave better germination than Swat 84. Lower PEG concentration (100-300 g) gave better 

germination when seed was stored for shorter duration (20-40 weeks). However, higher 

concentration gave better germination when seed was stored for longer duration (60-80 

weeks). 

Seeds of two mungbean varieties (M-1, NM-92) were also treated and processed in 

same way as soybean and found that seed stored under refrigerated conditions retained good 

quality through out the storage period (20-80 week) and gave good germination. Both 

mungbean varieties gave equal germination. Lower PEG concentration (100g) gave better 

germination throughout the storage period. 

Project No. 	 S-KU/Agr (285) 

Project Title: 	 Studies on the field efficacy of the entomopathogenic 
nematodes as biopesticides. 

Duration: 	 3-Years. 

Date of Initiation: 	01.07.2002 

Date of Completion: 	30.06.2005 

Date Final Report Received: 03.01.2006 

Location of Scheme: 	National Nematological Research Centre, University of 
Karachi, Karachi. 

Principal Investigator: 	Dr. Shahina Fayyaz 

Total Expenditure: 	Rs. 532,128/- 

Main Objectives: 

To characterize the biodiversity and biogeography of 
entomopathogenic nematodes from different habitats of 
Pakistan. 
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• To identify the isolated specimens of the entomopathogenic 
nematodes up to species level along-with their bacterial 
symbionts. 

• To produce virulent EPNs isolates on mass scale as well as 
improving the storage quality and maintenance of their 
infectivity for further experiments as biopesticide. 

• To determine the efficacy of the EPNs isolates through various 
application methods against important insect pests of 
agricultural crops. 

Summary of work done: 

Systematic studies on entomopathogenic nematodes were carried out and about 

5000 soil samples were collected from different habitats of Pakistan. Soil traps of these 

samples were made for the isolation of entomopathogenic nematodes. Of total samples, 763 

(15.48%) samples were found positive for entomopathogenic nematodes with 524 isolates 

containing Steinemema (68.6 %) and 239 isolates containing Heterorhabditis species 

(31.3%). Analysis of soil traps revealed that entomopathogenic nematodes are widely 

distributed in diverse habitats throughout the four provinces of Pakistan. S. feitiae Filipjev 

(larvae so far been identified from Pakistan in which two species of the genus Steinemema 

are new to science viz., S. pakistanense and S. asiaticum, while two species viz., S. feltiae 

and Heterorhabditis indica are new records from Pakistan. In the present studies S. feltiae 

was redescribed and illustrated with morphometric data. Detailed illustrated embryonic and 

post embryonic stages of the life cycle of H. indica were also observed. 	• vs 

Mass rearing of all the four EPNs viz., S. pakistanense, S. asiaticum, S. feltiae and H. 

indica was done in-vitro on monoxenic solid culture successfully. The technique of mass 

culture of these species is used for the first time in Pakistan. The pathogenecity tests were 

conducted for these four EPNs under field conditions of Sindh region against insects of 

cotton viz., American bollworm (Heliothis armigera), spotted bollworm (Erias insulana. E. 

vittella) and pink bollworm (Pectinophora gossipiella); sugarcane insects viz., Scirpophaga 

nivella and Chilo infuscatelles and rice insects viz., Tmoryza incertulas and 

Canaphalocrocis medinalis. 
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In conducting pathogenicity against bollworm complex of cotton, it was found that 

juveniles of S. pakistanense isolates were significantly infective producing 85% mortality 

rate of all larval stages of Earias insulana, 80% E. vittella, 90% H. armigera and 70% were 

observed on P. gossypiella. It showed that S. pakistanense infective larvae were highly 

virulent against all the four species of cotton bollworm complex after 24 hours with 

approximately 1000 juveniles. 

Pathogenicity of other EPNs was as follows: S. asiaticum gave 75% mortality of 

Earias insulana, 80% E. vittella, 70% armigera and 60% of Pectinophora gossipiella. S. 

feltiae gave 75% mortality of Earias insulana, 70% E. vittella, 65% H. armigera and 70% of 

Pectinophora gossipiella. H. indica gave 85% mortality rate of all larval stages of Earias 

insulana. 80% E. vittella. 85% H. armigera and 75% of Pectinophora gossipiella. 

The pathogenecity of these four EPNs was also conducted in field condition against 

insects of sugarcane viz., Trporyza incertulas and Canaphalocrocis medinalis. It was found 

that infective larvae of H. indica and S. pakistanense were highly virulent against the 

sugarcane pests. H. indica caused 90 and 75% mortality of S. feltiae and C. infuscatelles, 

respectively, while S. pakistanense caused 85 and 70 % mortality against S. nivella and C. 

infuscatelles, respectively after 24 hours with approximately 1000 juveniles in 1100 ml 

distilled water. In rice fields of Thatta and Sukkur after 24 hours exposure of infective 

juveniles (Ijs), mortality was recorded of both the insect species and was found 70 % and 

75% of Trporyza incertulas and 75% and 70% of Canaphalocrocis medinalis, respectively 

by S. Pakistanense Ijs. Ijs of S. asiaticum showed 75 % and 70% mortality of Trporyza 

incertulas and 65% and 75% of Cnaphalocrocis medinalis respectively. The exposure of Ijs 

of H. indica showed 80% and 75% mortality of Trporyza incertulas and 75% and 70% of 

Canaphalocrocis medinalis, respectively. 

Entomopathogenic nematodes are symbiotically associated with bacteria of the 

genera Xenorhabdus and Photorhabdus. Identification of symbiotic bacteria of the four 

species were also carried out along with morphological and biochemical tests. Three different 

species of bacteria viz., Photorhabdus luminescence, Xenorhabdus nematophila and X. 
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bovienii were reported for the first time from Pakistan. This is the first investigation that has 

been carried out in Pakistan. Suspension of symbiotic bacteria of entomopathogenic 

nematodes were also used in vitro against G. mellonella and H. armigera larvae which were 

found effective bio-control agents of these insect pests. 

Project No. 	 F-AU/Agr (300) 

Project Title: 	 Effect of slope steepness and green manuring on runoff, 
erosion, soil properties and soil fertility in eroded lands of 
Northern NWFP. 

Duration: 	 2-Years. 

Date of Initiation: 	01.08.2003 

Date of Completion: 	31.07.2005 

Date Final Report Received: 19.08.2005 

Location of Scheme: 
	

NWFP Agricultural University, Peshawar. 

Principal Investigator: 
	

Prof. Dr. Farmanullh Khan. 

Total Expenditure: 
	

Rs. 586,080/- 

Main Objectives: 

• To determine the effect of slope steepness on soil, runoff and 
nutrient losses. 

• To determine the effect of green manuring on soil erosion and 
runoff losses under variable slopes. 

• To determine the effect of cropping system and crop residue on 

soil properties. 

• To study the effect of rainfall on surface runoff, soil losses and on 
critical distance of rill initiation and rill dimension. 

• To develop regression equations for the effect of rainfall and slope 
on soil and runoff losses and for the effect cropping system and 
green manuring on soil properties. 

Summary of work done: 

Erosion inflicts heavy damages on soil productivity as it alters chemical, physical and 

biological properties of soil and causes deterioration of soil structure, decreases rooting depth 

and available soil water, which adversely affect soil productivity. The effect of soil erosion 
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on crop productivity is mostly dependent on the thickness and quality of top soil and nature 

of the sub-soil. Due to population increase in Pakistan there is a tremendous pressure on our 

land resources. This increased pressure has caused deforestation, overgrazing of exposed 

land and faulty cultivation of steep slopes. These factors have caused land degradation in 

many areas of Pakistan especially in NWFP, which leads to reduced crop productivity. 

Keeping in view the long term sustainability and productivity of eroded lands, the present 

project was carried out to study the integrated effect of slope steepness on soil, runoff and 

nutrient losses and the beneficial effect of green manuring (crop residue) on soil physico-

chemical properties to improve crop productivity of eroded lands by crop and land 

management practices. 

A long sloping field was selected near Thana, Malakand Agency for thr study. The 

field was divided into three slope positions namely; top-slope, mid-slope and bottom-slope 

with surface gradient of 6%, 3% and 0% respectively. Permanent plots of 2x5 m2  size each 

were established. Cemented sediment tanks measuring 1.5x 1 xl m3  each, were constructed at 

the bottom of each plot to collect surface runoff and sediments. The experimental design was 

Split Plot with two factors and three replications. The treatments maintained were: T1  wheat-

soybean-maize, T2 wheat-mungbean-maize, T3 wheat-pigeon-pea-maize, T4 wheat-maize 

fallow and T5 fallow. 

Very good correlation was observed for runoff and soil losses with organic matter and 

plant nutrients losses. It may be due to the fact that soil fertility is mainly associated with the 

surface soil which contributes a large share of the nutrients used by the plants. 

Wheat was sown on November 11 in 2003 and on November 10 in 2004. Fertilizer 

was applied at the rate of 120-90-60 kg N-P20s- K20 ha-' in the form of urea for N, SSP for 

P and the results showed that total runoff, soil losses and nutrient losses were much higher 

from Top-slope as compared to Mid-slope and Bottom-slope. Runoff, soil and nutrient losses 

were also higher from bare plots as compared to wheat plots. Wheat crop reduced soil losses 

by 38% and runoff losses by 36%. While comparing the effect of slope for runoff losses 

between 0 and 6% slope, runoff losses were almost 45% higher from 6% slope under wheat 

crop and 51 % higher under bare plots as compared to the runoff losses from 0% slope. The 

loss of nutrients was closely related to the amount of sediment and runoff from the plots. 
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Lime (CaCO3) losses were higher from all the plots during the experiment followed by 0.M.> 

N> K> P> Fe> Cu> Mn> Zn, while the order of nutrient losses thorough runoff was 

potassium sulphate for K. 

Effect of green manuring inclusion in wheat-maize rotation on some physio-chemical 

properties (soil fertility) of the experimental soil was also studied. The plots were properly 

prepared after wheat harvesting and legumes viz., soybean, mungbean and pigeon pea were 

sown at recommended seed rate on May 1, 2004 to study the effect of legumes on soil 

physico-chemical properties and on the soil and runoff losses under the coming maize crop. 

Nitrogen starter dose was applied @ 25 kg N ha-1  in the form of urea, while basal dose of 

phosphorus and potassium was added as single super phosphate and potassium sulphate at 

the rate of 45 kg P205 and 60 kg K20 ha-1 . The legume crops were harvested after 42 days of 

growth on June 10, 2004 and ploughed immediately after harvest. Soil samples for analysis 

were taken one month after ploughing. Green manuring significantly improved soil physico-

chemical properties of the experimental site. Organic matter was improved, bulk density was 

reduced. Total N, available P and K were significantly improved as compared to wheat and 

fallow treatments. Micronutrients such as Cu, Fe and Mn were significantly increased due to 

green manuring. Comparing the effect of legumes, wheat-soybean was comparatively more 

effective in improving soil properties as compared to wheat-mungbean and wheat-pigeon 

pea. Effect of slope on soil properties through legumes incorporation, bottom-slope was 

effective as compared to mid and top-slopes. 

Maize crop grown after green manuring was more effective in reducing soil, runoff 

and nutrient losses as compared to wheat-maize and bare plots. Empirical equations for the 

relationship of slope and crop cover with soil and runoff losses were developed, which can be 

helpful in determining soil and runoff losses. The coefficients of determination for the 

equations were quite higher. Similar equations for the effect of slope and wheat crop on 

organic matter and NPK losses were also developed. These equations can be used for erosion 

modeling for the restoration of crop productivity of eroded lands. It can be concluded from 

this study that: 

• the slope affects soil, runoff and nutrient losses but crop cover can reduce this 
effect and help reduce soil, runoff and nutrient losses. 
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• Green manuring considerably improved soil fertility status of eroded lands 

through soil management practices. 

• maize crop reduced soil, runoff and nutrient losses from the experimental soil. 

B. Research Projects Funded from Development Budget 

1. Career Development of Young Scientists and Technologists (CDYST) 

The above development project was sanctioned by DDWP on July 24, 2001 at a total 

cost of Rs.28.00 million for a period of five years. This project was aimed to award research 

grants to young scientists, both employed and unemployed, who had completed their Ph.D. 

during the previous 5-years.The unemployed scientists were also provided living allowance 

@ Rs.15,000/- per month. The main purpose of the project was to help the young scientists in 

their career development within Pakistan and reduce the brain drain. The project duration has 

been completed on 30th  June, 2006 and PC-IV has been submitted to the Ministry. 

During the year 2005-2006, eleven (11) different progress reports of on-going 

projects under development project were received and Rs. 0.362 million were released on 

account of due installments of on-going projects. 

2. Funding of Scientific and Technological Research in Universities and Other R&D 
Organizations 

The above development project was sanctioned by DDWP on April 25, 2001 at a total 

cost of Rs.39.00 million and was initiated on October 01, 2001. The Main objective of the 

project is to strengthen the scientific and technological research activities in the Universities 

and other R&D Organizations by providing them more funds. Under this PSDP project a 

total of 64 research projects were sanctioned. 

During the year, 69 different progress reports of on-going projects under the PSDP 

project were received and Rs. 3.00 million were released on account of due installments of 

on-going projects. 
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a. On-going Projects 

During the year, 69 different progress reports of R&D (58) and CDYST (11) projects 

were received. The PSF relevant staff scrutinized the semi-annual reports, whereas the annual 

reports, after initial scrutiny, were sent for evaluation to the subject experts. An amount of 

Rs. 03.362 million (Rs. 3.00 million for R&D project + Rs. 0.362 million for CDYST) was 

released on account of due installments of the projects. A list of the semi-annual, annual and 

final reports received during report period is given in Annexure-III. 

b. Completed Projects 

Final Technical Reports of seven (7) research projects were received during the year 

under report. The subject experts evaluated these reports which were subsequently placed 

before the relevant Technical Committees for consideration and adoption. A list of the 

completed projects followed by their report summaries are presented below. 

i. 	List of Completed Projects 

S.No Project No. Project Title. 

1.  R&D/C-NARC/AGR (14) Integrated management of powdery scab of potato 
in Pakistan. 

2.  R&D/F-AU/AGR (36) Evaluation of phytobiocides for control of 
powdery mildew in pea. 

3.  CDYST/C-NARC / Bio(4) Identification of drought tolerant Chickpea 
genotypes using physiological and agronomic 
traits. 

4.  CDYST/F-VRI/ Bio(20) Genetic improvement of dairy goats in NWFP. 

5.  CDYST/S-PCSIR/ Bio(24) Penaeid shrimp maturation in captivity. 

6.  CDYST/P-BZU/ Bio(29) Some studies on the Fascioliasis in goats 
maintained around Multan. 

7.  CDYST/S-ZMU/ Bio(40) Relationship of adiponectin, leptin, and lipid 
profile to diabetes and diabetic complication i.e. 
ischemic heart disease in Pakistani females 
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ii. Summaries of Completed Projects 

Project No: 	 PSF/R&D/C-NARC/AGR (14) 

Project Title: 	 Integrated management of powdery scab of potato in 
Pakistan 

Duration: 	 3-years 

Date of Initiation: 	 01.07.02 

Date of Completion: 	 30.06.05 

Date of Receipt of final report: 	10.03.06 

Location of Scheme: 	 NARC, Islamabad 

Principal Investigator: 	 Dr. Mrs. Shamim Iftikhar 

Total expenditure: 	 Rs. 357,127 

Main Objectives: 

• Studies on use of economic and effective fungicides 
like Fluszinam and other compounds as chemical 
control agent. 

• Effect of catch crope (solanaceous and non-
solanaceous) Specially cruciferae plants as alternate 
crop for control of powdery scab. 

• Develop appropriate integrated control measures. 

• Identify the source of resistance against powdery scab 
of potato. 

Summary of the work done: 

Powdery scab of potatoes (Solanum tuberosum L.) caused by the fungus Spongospora 

subterranean (Wallr) Lagerh F. sp. Subterranean Tomlinson, causes severe problem in many 

areas of the world where potato crop is grown. The disease has been recognized as an 

important seed and soil borne disease especially in seed production areas of the world. The 

disease causes surface lesions on potato tubers, reduces tuber quality and forms nodule like 

galls on roots and stolon and affects the quality of produce. The disease can reduce total crop 

yields by reducing plant establishment, decrease in growth of plants and the size of tubers 

they produce. 
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There is no single effective way of controlling the powdery scab. Several strategies 

can be adopted to minimize the risk from diseases which when combined can bring about a 

useful reduction in the chances of the disease becoming a serious problem. The best prospect 

for overcoming powdery scab in potatoes is by using integrated disease management (IDM). 

IDM incorporating disease resistant cultivars, chemicals and cultural control methods 

provide the most sustainable way of limiting powdery scab disease. Current study was 

initiated on the lines IDM to identify resistant cultivars, cultural practices, effect of crop 

rotation, and effect of available chemicals/fungicides on powdery scab of potato. 

One of the strategies to manage the powdery scab is to minimize the inoculums level 

in the soil. For the purpose, trap (alternate hosts) crops play an important role in reducing the 

soil borne inoculums before planting potatoes. Therefore, preliminary in-vitro experiments 

with host crops like maize and sorghum were done which reduced infection of S. 

subterranean in potato after utilization of inoculums by other crops. 

Screening of six potato varieties including Santee, Diamante, Cardinal, Faisalabad-

White and Faisalabad-Red against S. subterraneanea showed non significant difference 

among the varieties in terms of number and weight of tubers. They showed correlation in 

disease incidence and yield produced by susceptible and resistant varieties. Desiree, 

Faisalabad white and Faisalabad red showed resistance to powdery scab in micro-plot 

experiment whereas, in field trial, significant difference in number of tubers and non 

significant difference in weight of tubers among the six varieties was observed. Disease 

symptoms were found on all varieties. However, Desiree and Faisalabad-Red had low disease 

incidence with low severity as compared to other varieties. 

In micro-plot study, of three fungicides (Mancozeb, Vitavax and ZnSO4), Mancozeb 

and ZnSO4 were found effective in controlling the disease coupled with positive effects on 

yield. Under natural conditions, out of eight chemicals/fungicides namely Mancozeb, ZnSO4 

Vitavax, Antracol, Ridomil, PCNB, Captan and Binomial, only Mancozeb and ZnSO4  were 

effective against S. subterranean, and the crop yielded better. 

All six commercial varieties viz., Santee, Diamant, Cardinal, Desiree, Faisalabad-

White and Faisalabad-Red had different levels of susceptibility to powdery scab. Only 

Desiree had resistance in micro-plot study and moderate resistance in field trails. 
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Project No. 

Project Title. 

Duration: 

Date of Initiation. 

Date of Completion. 

Date of Receipt of final report: 

Location of Scheme: 

Principal Investigator: 

Total expenditure. 

Main Objectives: 

PSF/R&D/F-AU/AGR (36) 

Evaluation of phytobiocides for control of powdery 
mildew in pea. 

3-years 

24.06.2002 

23.06.2005 

12.11.2005 

NWFP Agricultural University, Peshawar 

Prof. Dr. Shabeer Ahmad. 

Rs.653,906/- 

• To identify the most effective phytobiocides that can 
best control powdery mildew disease. 

• To study the effects of best selected plant extracts, 
alone and in combination with one another and in 
comparison with some promising fungicides, on the 
disease control and yield in pea. 

• To work out the cost benefit ratio of using 
phytobiocides for control of powdery mildew. 

Summary of the work done: 

Pea (Pisum sativium L.) is raised as winter and summer crop in the NWFP where its 

yield is higher than that in other provinces such as Sindh and Balochistan. However, its 

successful production in NWFP is constrained by several factors which include the non-

availability of quality seed, high plant density in the farmer fields and above all the attack of 

several serious diseases. Among pea diseases, powdery mildew, root rot and blight are 

important. Powdery mildew forms small, diffuse, off colored spots on the upper surface of 

the lowest and oldest leaves which later on become white, powdery area. Besides leaves, 

stems and pods may become infected, resulting in withering of foliage and occasionally in 

plant death, severe pod and seed infections may result in hollow peas and discolored seed, 

respectively. 

Powdery mildew inflicts heavy losses ranging from 50-100% to pea crop in NWFP. 

Several tactics such as field sanitation, resistant varieties, seed thermotherapy and the 

32 



application of suitable fungicides or phytobiocides may control the disease. But used on very 

limited scale in the NWFP, fungicides cause environmental pollution, residual toxicity in 

plant parts and resistance of pathogen to these chemicals. On the other hand, phytobiocides 

used widely all over the world, are environment friendly, less phototoxic and very active on 

the target pathogens, however very little work has been done on the use of phytobiocides in 

NWFP. Thus this project was initiated to evaluate the role of different phytobiocides in 

controlling powdery mildew of pea. 

The research was done in two phases; during the first phase, six different 

phytobiocides i.e. garlic, ginger, neem oil, onion, pepper and turmeric were tested under 

natural field and artificially inoculated field and screen house conditions on a susceptible pea 

variety "Meteor". Best phytobiocides selected on the basis of two year results, were 

compared with low promising fungicides "Score 250EC and Tops 100EC". During the 

second phase of the project research, two pea varieties; "Desan" (tolerant) and "climax" 

(susceptible) were planted at multi-locations in the NWFP, to which these phytobiocides and 

fungicides were applied. 

Phytobiocides application proved better than controls in reducing the disease severity 

and in increasing pea yield; turmeric being the best. The application of this phytobiocide was 

better as an eradicative rather than preventive chemical making in time disease control 

possible. Turmeric is a low cost biocide and easily available in the local market and can be 

used by the growers for increasing pea production in the NWFP. 

Project No. 

Project Title 

Duration: 

Date of Initiation. 

Date of Completion. 

Date of Receipt of final report: 

Location of Scheme: 

Principal Investigator: 

Total expenditure. 

CDYST/C-NARC / Bio (4) 

Identification of Drought Tolerant Chickpea Genotypes 
using Physiological and Agronomic Traits. 

3-Year 

01.07.2002 

30.06.2005 

21.11.2005 

NARC, Islamabad. 

Dr. Abdul Majeed Haqqani 

Rs.184, 592/- 
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Main Objectives: 
• To quantify physiological parameters of plant water 

relation such as water potential (Iv P) and relative water 
content (RWC %) in chickpea genotypes subjected to 
water stress. 

• To correlate the physiological traits to growth and grain 
yield of chickpea genotypes. 

• To evaluate overall performance of chickpea varieties 
and advanced breeding lines under moisture stress 
conditions and identifies drought tolerant genotypes. 

Summary of the work done: 

Pakistan is the second largest chickpea producing country accounting for about 7% of 

global production from 10% of the area allocated to the crop. The major chickpea production 

areas in Pakistan are Thal and Pothwar. Crops in Pothwar mainly depend on rains, which 

have drastically decreased in recent past and Chickpea is an important component of the 

cropping pattern practiced in the region. But, low and erratic seasonal rainfall makes its 

cultivation precarious, so area and production fluctuates widely due to common occurrence 

of drought stress. 

To achieve the project objectives, three experiments were conducted including field 

trials with the aim to evaluate response of chickpea cultivars to moisture stress. Results 

revealed that shoot and root dry matter accumulation at early growth stage varied 

significantly among cultivars. Highest shoot growth was recorded in Bittle-98, followed by 

CM-98, while C-235 and NIFA 88 produced minimum shoot dry matter. Root dry matter also 

showed similar pattern. Data on number of pods per plant indicate that cultivar CM-98 

produced maximum pods/plants. Final gain yield showed significant differences among 

varieties and CM-98 produced highest grain yield (791 kg/ha) while Bittle-98, 93127 and 

NIFA-88 were also ranked as high yielding varieties. 

Investigations on drought-related physiological traits in chickpea; plant height, tap 

root length, root and shoot dry matter accumulation differed significantly among chickpea 

genotypes at seedling stage during 2002-2003 revealed that among all the genotypes, 

maximum seedling height (20cm) was recorded in line ICC-4958, varieties NIFA-95, C-44, 
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93127 and Bittle-98 produced lengthy roots compared with other genotypes. ICC-4958 had 

highest root dry mater accumulation (473 mg/plant), while ICC-10953 had smallest root 

system (173 mg/plant). Data on shoot dry matter revealed that C-44 produced most vigorous 

seedlings as shoot dry matter was 770 mg/plant/ root shoot ratio data suggest that NIFA-88 

and ICC-5680 had lower root:shoot ratio compared with 88194 and Dasht. During 2003-

2004, drought-related physiological traits differed significantly among chickpea phenotypes 

at seedling stage. NIFA-95, C-44, and Bittle-98 produced lengthy roots compared with other 

genotypes. During 2003-2004, maximum seedling height (39-5 cm) was recorded in C-44 

variety. Three genotypes (Dasht, Noor-91, and CM-98) produced lengthy roots compared 

with other genotypes were 17.0, 16.5 and 16.0 respectively. Root shoot ratio data suggested 

that 88194 and C-44 had lower root: shoot ratio compared with other genotypes. 

CDYST/F-VRVBio (20) 

Genetic Improvement of Dairy Goats in NWFP. 

2-Year 

20.03.2004 

19.03.2006 

02.05.2006 

Veterinary Research Institute, Charsada Road, 
Peshawar 

Dr. Muhammad Subhan 

Rs.156, 796/- 

• To overcome the problem of non-availability of bucks 
for breeding dairy goats through establishment of 
artificial insemination services. 

• To study the goats farming systems in the four regions 
of the province and explore economic viability of goats 
keeping and register commercial flocks. 

• To maintain a herd of elite dairy goats for production of 
breeding bucks for genetic improvement of local goat 
breeds through natural service and artificial 
insemination. 

Project No: 

Project Title: 

Duration: 

Date of Initiation: 

Date of Completion: 

Date of Receipt of final report: 

Location of Scheme: 

Principal Investigator: 

Total expenditure: 

Main Objectives: 
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Summary of the work done: 

The project was initiated to improve the goat farming through establishment of 

artificial insemination facilities, documentation of goats farming systems and production of 

bucks in NWFP province. The animals were purchased and stationed at animal sheds of 

Veterinary Research Institute, Peshawar. Criteria for selection were freedom from apparent 

diseases or any reproductive abnormality and representation of the local dairy breeds. After 

training in semen collection through artificial vagina, the bucks were shifted to individual 

pens and isolated from the rest for the flock and visitors. 

Semen was collected in an artificial vagina and volume was read at the graduation of 

the semen collection tube, ignoring the frothy part of the ejaculate. A drop of semen was 

collected, placed on a slide and examined for mass motility (wave motion). For determining 

concentration of spermatozoa, 50 ml semen was put into 1950 ml of spermicidal solution and 

concentration was worked out adjusting the dilution factor. Cell count was done in the five 

bigger cells of the hemocytometer (El to E 5) and volume of the solution in the chamber of 

the hemocytometer. Percentage of living spermatozoa and morphological abnormalities was 

determined through making smears of semen using nigrosin-eosin stains. Individual motility 

of spermatozoa was recorded. The semen extender 12 selected for our studies gave a 

significant protection to maintain the spermatozoa in a viable state for up to 192 hours post-

collection. 

Fertility trials under field conditions resulted in getting 86.5% conception rate. 

Ultrasonography was used as a successful tool for diagnosing pregnancy and presence of 

twins after 30 days of breeding. The method was found as cost effective and feasible under 

field conditions. 

Extender 1 has sufficient protection to the spermatozoa for up to 192 hours post-

collection. The semen was evaluated in-vivo through insemination to live goats and pursuing 

them for the fate of insemination. The conception rate after insemination was 75%. 

Project No: 
	

CDYST/S-PCSIR/ Bio (24) 

Project Title: 
	

Penaeid Shrimp Maturation in Captivity. 
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Duration: 

Date of Initiation: 

Date of Completion: 

Date of Receipt of final report: 

Location of Scheme: 

Principal Investigator: 

Total expenditure: 

Main Objectives: 

2-Years 

1.07.2003 

30.06.2005 

28.03.2006 

PCSIR Laboratories Complex, Karachi 

Dr. Razia Sultana 

Rs.195, 509/- 

• To decrease the dependence on wild brood stock. 

• To create the ability to produce seed stock on demand, 
consistently and in sufficient numbers to support the 
shrimp farming activities. 

• To establish shrimp farming as a strong, environment-
friendly, and viable industry. 

Summary of the work done: 

Genus Penaeus is the prime target of the capture fishereies. It is also the most favored 

genus for aquaculture. Females of all species belonging to this genus attain at least 50g 

weight. Most of the researches have been done on this genus due to its economic importance. 

It is also the most abundant genus of the family Penaidea, with 27 species, followed by 

Metapenaeus with 25 species. 

Pakistan is one of the major shrimp producing countries of the world. The average 

annual catch landing from the coastal and offshore areas of Pakistan has been 25.541 Metric 

Tons for over three decades. Pakistan has a coastline of about 990-km through Sindh and 

Balochistan. Approximately 95-98% of shrimps are caught from Sindh coast, whereas 

remaining 2-5% from Balochistan coast. Shrimp is common and appreciated luxury product 

in the Western countries and to capture wild shrimp is no longer enough to fulfill the 

demand. Therefore, the industry of shrimp farming has exploded. It is a great opportunity for 

quick wealth generation by many poor farmers in developing countries. The present project 

involved studies to get reliable & consistent supply of brood stock of commercially important 

indigenous species. 
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Of three available systems for larval production in captivity, two have been worked 

out in the present study. The first involves capture of wild sperm-bearing females with 

completely mature ovaries that can spawn right away. In this system, no problem was found 

except that due to the excessive handling disturbance, a female can resorb ovary without any 

spawn; this happened only once during the study. A positively strong linear correlation was 

found in weight of female and number of eggs spawned in both of the species (R=0992 for F. 

penicillatus L r = 0.997 for F. merguiensis). No. of eggs/g of female also increase with size 

and weight of females i.e. large size spawners produce more eggs. Number of eggs/g weight 

of females varied from 821 to 2562 in F.penicillatus and from 1384 to 2769 in F. 

merguiensis respectively. The hatching percentages ranged between 65-85%. 

In the second system, ovarian maturation and spawning has been achieved in a 

laboratory environment. The first series of experiments was undertaken on induction of 

maturity by eye stalk ablation utilizing two methods i.e. by pinching the eye ball and by 

cauterization, using pair of red hot forceps. Cauterization by red hot forceps was found to be 

safer as pinching method was more stressful. Cautery by a red hot forceps attained 90 & 

100% survival in F.Merguiensis and F.penicillatus respectively, which is almost equivalent 

to the non ablated control. The survival rate was high in females where eyestalk was ablated 

with cauterization. The hatching rate was also low in ablated females and ranged between 28 

to 67% as compared to 65-75% in non ablated females. Marked difference in hatching 

percentage was found between the females ablated by pinching and by cautery. 

Effect of temperature, light intensity and photoperiod was studied in three 

combinations (i) 28°C, 500 lux, 12 hr light and 12 hr dark, (ii) 24°C, 1000 lux, 14 hr light and 

10 hrs dark, the survival was 100% in all three treatments. A combination of 28%C 

temperature, light intensity of 2 lux and photoperiod of 10 hr light/14 h dark was found 

suitable for maturation in both the species. Effect of selected live/fresh organisms on 

maturation was studied on F.penicillatus and F. merguiensis and organisms selected for 

feeding were blood worms, Squires and adult Artemia. Artemia adult and bloodworms were 

fed live, whereas, squids were chopped in small pieces and kept in freezer until used. Of the 

F. merguiensis females, eight reached to ripe stage and two to late maturing stage, whereas, 
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in F. penicillatus, five reached to ripe stage and five attained the late maturing stage. 

F.merguiensis can reach full ovarian maturation in captivity and spawn after unilateral eye 

stalk ablation.The study shows that it is possible to close the life cycle reliably for both the 

species and more suitably for F. nergyuebussu. 

Project No: 

Project Title: 

Duration: 

Date of Initiation: 

Date of Completion: 

Location of Scheme: 

Principal Investigator: 

Total expenditure: 

Main Objectives: 

CDYST/P-BZU/Bio (29) 

Some Studies on the Fascioliasis in Goats Maintained 
around Multan. 

2-Years 

16.06.2003 

15.06.2005 

Institute of Biology, Bahauddin Zakariya University 

Dr. Zahida Tasawar 

Rs.117, 129/- 

• Studies on different breeds of goat suffering from 
Fasciola spp. Infection with special emphasis on 
biochemical changes in blood. 

• Analysis of the effects of infection on growth and 
reproductive performance. 

• Base line data regarding the pathology of this infection 
leading to control the problem and improve meat and 
milk production. 

Summary of the work done: 

Fasciola hepatica has been known an important parasite of sheep, goats and cattle for 

decades and has been the subject of many scientific investigations. This is not only because 

of its high prevalence rates but also due to its enormous production losses in these animals 

reported from various parts of the world, such as Burma, Nigeria, Central Africa, 

Bangaldesh, Indonesia, and Thailand. The present project was designed to study the overall 

prevalence of F. hepatica in goats and relationship between body weight, age, and breed of 

host with parasite. 
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Four field stations namely; Basti Rata, Basti Labar, Bibbi Pur and Qadirpur around 

Multan were selected for the study. Goats belonging to different breeds (Nachi and Teddy) 

were tagged. Fecal samples of animals were collected bimonthly and brought to the 

Parasitology laboratory, Bahauddin Zakariya University, Multan. Age and weight of the 

animals were also recorded. The overall prevalence of F. hepatica was determined and 

relationship between body weight, age, breed of the host and parasite litter size and infection 

was established. 

The overall prevalence of F.hepatica was 28.75% in this study. Results regarding the 

relationship between different breeds of goats and F.hepatica showed that infection of 

parasite was more prevalent in Teddy goats (42.10%) as compared to Nachi goats (16.66%). 

Teddy goats had significantly (P<0.05%) higher prevalence as compared to Nachi goats. The 

relationship between body weight of Nachi goats and F.hepatica showed highest prevalence 

(25%) in weight group of 16-30kg and lowest (13.33%) in >46kg. Study of relationship 

between Teddy goats and F.hepatica showed significant prevalence differenence (P<0.05%) 

between weight groups with highest (50%) in weight group "1-15kg" and no prevalence in 

weight group of "31-45kg". 

Relationship study between age groups of goats and F.hepatica showed significant 

difference (P<0.05%) in age groups, highest (25.71%) in age group of 13-24 months and 

lowest (18.18%) in age group of >37 months. The relationship between different age groups 

of Nachi goats and F.hepatica showed highest prevalence (25%) in age group of 13-24 

months and lowest (10%) in >37 months. Relationship between different age groups of 

Teddy goats and F.hepatica showed highest prevalence (50%) in age group of 1-12 months 

and lowest (20%) in 25 months and the difference was statistically significant (P<0.05%) for 

different age groups. 

The results about the effects of infection on litter was studied and it was found that 

litter size is smaller in infected group (1.19±0.07) whereas it was significantly higher 

(1.57±0.15; P<0.01) in uninfected group. 
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Project No: 
	

R&D/CDYST/S-ZMU/Bio(40) 

Project Title: 
	

Relationship of Adiponectin, Leptin, and Lipid profile 
to diabetes and diabetic complications i.e., ischemic 
heart disease in Pakistani females. 

Duration: 

Date of Initiation: 

Date of Completion: 

Location of Scheme: 

Principal Investigator: 

Total expenditure: 

Main Objectives: 

2-Years 

01.07.2004 

30.06.2006 

Ziauddin Medical University Karachi. 

Prof. Dr. Anila Jaleel 

Rs. 294,458/-. 

• To measure serum adiponectin and leptin levels and 
lipid profile in lean, obese, diabetic and diabetic female 
subjects with ischemic heart disease. 

• To find out the correlation between BMI, waist hip 
ratio, fasting blood glucose, insulin, cholesterol, 
triglycerides, high density lipoproteins and low density 
lipoproteins in diabetic patients with ischemic heart 
disease. 

• To determine the association of adiponectin and leptin 
to obesity and Diabetes mellitus and its complication 
(cardiovascular illness). 

Summary of the work done: 

Diabetes mellitus is a chronic disease which has been described as a state of raised 

blood glucose associated with premature mortality. Diabetes is becoming a world pandemic. 

Both type 1 and 2 Diabetes are spreading rapidly across the globe. There are already over 

150 million people with Diabetes in the world, and this is conservatively predicted to double 

by 2025. Type 2 diabetes accounts for most of the current and forecasted figures. Less 

developed countries are shouldering most of the burden and by 2025, one third of all people 

with diabetes will live in India or China alone. In addition to affect younger groups in 

developed countries, the sharpest increases affect over the age of 65, unlike the situation in 

developing countries where most new cases occur in those between 44 and 65 year of age. 
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This study included 160 subjects who were divided into four groups of 40 subjects 

each. First group comprised normal healthy control, second group of obese subjects based on 

BMI and waist hip ratio, third group was of diabetic type 2 patients and the fourth group was 

of diabetic patients with recent Myocardial Infarction. Individuals suffering from renal or 

liver disease, congestive heart failure were excluded from the study. Samples of blood of 160 

subjects were analyzed for glucose, cholesterol, HDL, LDL cholesterol and triglycerides. 

Samples were run on ELISA for adiponectin and leptin. Body mass index and waist hip ratio 

were significantly increased (P<0.001) in obese, diabetics and diabetic patients with IHD 

when compared with controls. Cholesterol, triglycerides & low densiy lipoproteins (LDL) 

were significantly increased (P<0.001) in obese, diabetics and diabetic patients with IHD was 

significantly decreased in all three groups compared with control subjects. Serum adiponectin 

levels were significantly decreased (P<0.001) and fasting blood glucose was significantly 

increased (P<0.001) in diabetics and diabetic patients with IHD groups, but no change in 

fasting blood glucose was seen in obese group compared with controls. Levels of fasting and 

random blood glucose were significantly increased (P<0.001) in diabetics and diabetic 

patients with 11-1D groups when compared with obese subjects while serum leptin levels were 

increased significantly (P<0.001) only in diabetics with 11-B3 group compared with obese 

group. Diabetic patients with DID were assessed for myocardial perfusion using technetium 

Tetrofomin Tc99m during rest and stress. Patients with decreased uptake of isotope in stress 

than in rest were myocardial perfusion scan positive i.e. their myocardial perfusion was 

inadequate. Serum adiponectin level was decreased significantly and serum leptin levels were 

increased significantly in diabetic patients with IHD showing positive myocardial perfusion 

scan findings i.e. decreased uptake of isotope during stress than test when compared with 

those having no difference in uptake during rest and stress. 

Non-significant correlation was found in diabetic patients between adiponectin and 

triglycerides (r=0.07), adiponectin and cholesterol (r=0.08). LDL cholesterol and adiponectin 

(r=0.05), while positive but non significant correlation was found between adiponecin and 

HDL cholesterol (r=0.09). Positive correlation (but non significant) was found in diabetic 

patients between leptin and triglycerides (0.17), leptin and cholesterol (r=0.03), and LDL 

cholesterol and leptin (r=0.07), while negative (but non significant) correlation was found 
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between leptin and HDL cholesterol (r=0.30). In obese subjects negative correlation (r=0.20) 

was found between leptin and HDL cholesterol. This suggests that there is an indirect role of 

adiponectin and leptin in obesity and diabetes. 

This study concluded that serum adiponectin levels are decreased and leptin levels are 

increased significantly in diabetic patients with ischemic heart disease with positive findings 

on myocardial perfusion scan during rest and stress compared with those diabetic subjects 

who have no change in myocardial perfusion scan during stress and rest. Low levels of 

adiponectin in patients with ischemic heart disease showed that hormones may play 

important role in preventing cardiovascular disease. Correlation was found between 

adiponectin: leptin and lipid profile in diabetic patients and diabetic patients with ischemic 

heart disease but was weak. This study also confirmed that serum adiponectin level decreases 

and liptin levels increases significantly while cholesterol, Triglycerides and LDL increases 

and HDL cholesterol decreases significantly in diabetic and obese subject compared with 

controls, which also confirms that low levels of adiponectin in obese subjects can guide us to 

take preventive measures against later development of diabetes and its complication i.e. 

ischemic heart disease. 

C. Scientific Publications Produced through PSF Supported Projects 

One of the main achievements and usefulness of any research is the publication of its results 

in scientific journals. Based upon the results of completed projects 23 research papers (11 

from Non-Development + 12 from Development projects) were published in 

national/international journals or presented in conferences by the principal investigators. A 

list of papers is placed at Annexure-IV. 

D. Higher Degrees earned through PSF Supported Projects 

One of the major goals of the Foundation is the training of scientific human resource 

in the country. This in turn would result in strengthening of R&D infrastructure of various 

scientific organizations. To achieve this goal, PSF has been developing scientific manpower, 

through its research projects. Research Associates employed in the projects have to register 
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for higher degrees. During the report period four (04) students/Research Associates working 

in the projects were awarded Ph.D, five (05) were awarded M.Phil/M.Sc. Hons and two (02) 

were awarded B.Sc. (Hons) Agric degrees. List of these scholars is given below. 

S.No. Project No. Name of Student Degree awarded 

1.  C-NARC /Agr(266) Ms. Shazia tram Ph.D 

2.  F-AU /Agr(268) Mr. Sikandar Azam M.Sc. (Hons.) 

Ms. Shaheen Shah M.Sc. (Hons.) 

3.  F-AU/Agr(282) Mr. Ahmad Khan M.Sc. (Hons.) 

Muhammad Arif Khan Ph.D 

4.  S-KU/Agr(285) Ms. Tabassum Ara Khanum Ph.D 

5.  F-AU/Agr(300) Mr. Waliullah M.Phil 

Ms. Nowsheen Javed B.Sc. (Hons.) 

Ms. Saima B.Sc. (Hons.) 

6.  CDYST/F-VRI/Bio(20) Iftikhar Alam M.Phil 

7.  R&D/F-AU/Agr (36) Irfanuddin Ph.D. (in progress) 
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C. R & D INDUSTRY PROGRAMME. 

PSF started its R & D Industry Programme in 2003 with the aim to establish linkages 

among Academia, R&D Organizations and Industrial Community to pave the way to achieve 

socio-economic development. The progress made under this programme during 2005-06 is 

highlighted below. 

a. MoU Signed: 

MoU amongst Messers PSF, NIBGE Faisalabad, PAEC Foundation and Shafi 

Resochem (PVT) Ltd. Lahore, was signed on 9th  August, 2005 for indigenous production and 

commercialization of citric acid. Under the MoU, the product developed by NIBGE through 

PSF-funded project will be passed on to M/s Shafi Resochem, Lahore for commercial 

production and marketing of citric acid which is used in a number of industries such as 

textile, food & beverages and pharmaceutical etc. 

b. Monitoring and Evaluation of On-Going Projects: 

During the year, progress reports of five (5) projects were received (Annexure III) 

and an amount of Rs. 0.662 million was released on account of due installments of on-going 

projects. 
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D. 	Establishment of Natural Science Linkage Program (NSLP). 

In view of expanding trade of agricultural commodities between the two countries, 

the Commodity Credit Corporation from United States of America and Ministry of Finance, 

Government of Pakistan have signed an Agreement for Establishment of Natural Science 

Linkage Program (NSLP) under PL-480 scheme. Hence, the MoU between US Department 

of Agriculture, Foreign Agricultural Service and the Ministry of Science & Technology, 

Govt. of Pakistan has been signed to create the Endowment Fund for US$10 million (in local 

currency) in PSF under the umbrella of MoST. The NSLP will be governed by a Board of 

Governors, headed by the Minister for S&T, with members including Secretaries of Ministry 

of Science & Technology (MoST), Ministry of Finance (MoF), Economic Affairs Division 

(EAD), Ministry of Food, Agriculture & Livestock (MINFAL), Chairman PSF, Chairman 

PARC and Director NIAB. PSF has received its first installment of Rs.249.455 million and 

will shortly invite research proposals for funding under this programme. 

The primary goals of this programme are 

a. To increase the contact and collaboration among natural scientists and institutions 
of biological research, development and higher learning between the two nations. 

b. To provide researchers and institutions with opportunities to exchange 
information, ideas, skills and techniques. 

c. To enhance opportunities of collaboration in solving problems of common interest 
relating to natural sciences and 

d. To utilize special research and development facilities or opportunities available 
among the two countries. 
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II. SCIENCE PROMOTION 

A. INTERNATIONAL LIAISON 

i. Pakistani Scientists Participate in Pak-China Bi-National Workshop 

Pakistan Science Foundation sponsored the visit of a team comprising of eleven (11) 

Pakistani scientists from PSF and various universities and visited China on the invitation of 

National Natural Science Foundation of China from 17th to 24th April 2006. The team 

participated in the Pak-China Bi-national Workshop on Chemical Sciences held in the 

Institute of Organic Chemistry, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shanghai, from 18-19 April 

2006. 

The Chairman, PSF and Director (P&D), PSF also visited various institutions, including 

Chinese Academy of Sciences and National Natural Science Foundation of China and held 

discussions with the authorities for S&T cooperation between scientists of the two countries. 

ii. Chairman Meets US Agricultural Attache 

The Chairman, Dr. N.M. Butt discussed the research activities under Natural Science 

Linkage Program (NSLP) Endowment with Mr. Howard Anderson, Agricultural Attaché and 

Mr. Asmat Raza, from the US Embassy during a meeting held at Pakistan Science 

Foundation on February 1, 2006. 

B. ACTIVITIES FUNDED FROM NON-DEVELOPMENT BUDGET 

1. INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT GRANTS 

Pakistan Science Foundation assists the universities and research institutions by 

providing them Institutional Support Grants for the purchase of equipment, chemicals, 

literature etc. for research workers, who for any reason are unable to obtain these from their 

own institutions. The grants also strengthen the research capabilities of these institutions. 

During the report period a grant of Rs. 0.350 million was provided to Physics Research 

Division, Pakistan Institute of Nuclear Science and Technology (PINSTECH), Islamabad for 

the purchase of Mossbauer Source. 
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2. 	SCIENTIFIC SURVEYS 

Under PSF programme of "Scientific Surveys", a survey entitled "Survey and 

Assessment of Earthquake on Biodiversity in Hazara Division and Azad Kashmir" was 

carried out by the Zoological Sciences Division of Pakistan Museum of Natural History, 

Islamabad in areas of Hazara and Azad Kashmir to assess the impact of earthquake on the 

biodiversity. An amount of Rs. 50,000/- was provided to the researchers. Results of the 

survey showed that the environmental hazards caused by the earthquake such as debris from 

collapsed buildings, land slides, land cracking and displacement, building of temporary 

shelter houses, excessive use of natural resources, waste material hazards and disappearance 

of natural springs and streams had adversely affected biodiversity of the area. 

3. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FOR HOLDING OF CONFERENCES, SEMINARS 
AND WORKSHOPS 

The Foundation provides partial financial assistance to scientific organizations for 

holding of national and international scientific conferences, seminars and workshops. During 

2005-06 an amount of Rs. 545,000/- was paid to thirteen (13) organizations for holding of 

the conferences. Detail is as follows: 

Sr # 	Title of Conference, Workshop, 	Name of Organization 
	

Amount 
Symposium 	 paid (Rs.) 

1. National Training Course on 
Modern Techniques in 
Biotechnology, from 3 - 8 April, 
2005, at NIBGE, Faisalabad. 

2. IEEE International Conference on 
Emerging Technologies (IEEE 
ICET 2005), held from 17 -18 
Sept 2005 at Serena Hotel, 
Islamabad. 

National Institute for 	25,000/- 
Biotechnology and 
Genetic Engineering, 
(NIBGE), Faisalabad 

Center for Advanced 	50,000/- 
Studies in Engineering 
(CASE), 19 Ataturk 
Avenue, G-5/1, 
Islamabad. 
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3. 	17th  International Conference on 
	

University of 
	

50,000/- 
Micro-electronics, held from 13- 	Engineering and 
15 December, 2005, 	 Technology, Taxila. 
at Serena Hotel, Islamabad. 

4. Workshop on Latest Techniques in Pakistan Museum of 	25,000/- 
Wildlife Management, held on 6th Natural History, 
July, 2005, at PMNH, Islamabad. Islamabad 

5. 10th International Symposium on International Center for 	50,000/- 
Natural Products Chemistry, held Chemical Sciences, 
from 6-9 January 2006, at Karachi University of Karachi. 

Pakistan Museum of 	40,000/- 
Natural History 
(PMNH), Islamabad. 

6. Workshop on Potential Biosphere 
Reserves in Pakistan, held on 26th  
January 2006 at Holiday Inn 
,Islamabad. 

7. 2nd National Conference on 
Agricultural and Animal 
Sciences, held from 23-25 Nov, 
2005 at Sindh Agriculture 
University, Tandojam 

8. 4th International Symposium 
(ISGEB) on "Genomics, 
Bioinformatics, Biotechnology & 
Economics Development, held 
from 4-8 Dec, 2005 at PC 
Karachi. 

9. 3rd International Symposium on 
Biotechnology, held from 15-18 
December, 2005, at University of 
Sindh, Jamshoro 

Sindh Agriculture 	50,000/- 
University, Tandojam 

Centre for Molecular 	50,000/- 
Genetics, 
University of Karachi, 
Karachi. 

University of Sindh, 	50,000/- 
Jamshoro. 

10. 	Lecture Series on Guided Wave 	Quaid-e-Azam 
	

50,000/- 
Optics, from 15-25 November, 	University, Islamabad. 
2005, at Quaid-e-Azam University, 
Islamabad. 
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11. Centenary Celebrations of the 	University of 
	

25,000/- 
University of Agriculture, 	Agriculture, Faisalabad 
Faisalabad, held from 14-16 March 
2006, at Faisalabad. 

12. 7th All Pakistan Science Fair 2006, GIK Institute of 	40,000/-
held from 27-29 January, 2006 at Engineering Science and 
GIK Institute Campus, N.W.F.P. Technology, N.W.F.P. 
Topi 	 Topi 

13. The 1st International Conference 
on Statistics & Operation 
Research-2006, held from April 
3rd-4th, 2006, at Aiwan-e-Iqbal, 
Lahore. 

Pakistan Institute of 	40,000/- 
Statistics, 
University of the Punjab, 
Lahore 

Total 
	

545,000/- 

4. PUBLICATION OF SCIENTIFIC JOURNALS 

The Foundation provides financial assistance to scientific organizations for 

publication of scientific journals. During the year under report an amount of Rs. 205,000/-

was paid to the following organizations for publication of their journals. 

S. No. Name of Organization Title of the journal Amount 
paid Rs. 

1.  Khyber Medical College, 
Peshawar. 

Pakistan Oral and Dental 
Journal 

35,000/- 

2.  University of Karachi, 
Karachi. 

Pakistan Journal of 
Pharmaceutical Sciences 

50,000/- 

3.  Sindh Agriculture 
University, Tandojam 

Pakistan Journal of 
Agriculture, Agriculture 
Engineering & Veterinary 
Sciences 

35,000/- 

4.  University of Arid 
Agriculture, Rawalpindi. 

Journal of Arid Agriculture 35,000/- 
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5. 	Farming Outlook, 	Farming Outlook 	 50,000/- 
H # 39, St # 39, 
Islamabad. 

Total 205,000/- 

5. AWARDS AND FELLOWSHIPS 

The Foundation, under its Awards and Fellowships programme, granted fellowships 

• amounting to Rs. 144,000/- to the following Ph.D. / M.Phil. scholars @ Rs.6000/- per month. 

	

Sr. 	Name and address of Scholar 	 Grant 

	

1 	Mr. Javaid Iqbal, 	 Rs. 72,000/- 
Ph.D. Scholar, Deptt. of Soil Sciences, 
Faculty of Agriculture, 
Gomal University, D.I. Khan. 

2 	Ms. Feroza Soomro, 
Deptt. of Parasitology, 
Faculty of Animal Husbandry & Veterinary 
Sciences, Sindh Agriculture University, 
Tandojam. 

3 	Mr. Shahan Zeb Khan, 
Deptt. of Chemistry, 
Quaid-i-Azam University, 
Islamabad 

Rs. 36,000/- 

Rs. 36,000/- 

C. ACTIVITIES FUNDED FROM DEVELOPMENT BUDGET 

During the year following development projects remained under implementation: 

1. Financial Support to Scientific Societies in Pakistan. 

2. Participation of Scientists and Technologists in International Conferences, 
Seminars and Workshops. 

3. Research Support Programme for Active Scientists and Technologists of 
Pakistan. 
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The progress made under each project is summarized below: 

1. 	FINANCIAL SUPPORT TO SCIENTIFIC SOCIETIES IN PAKISTAN 

Pakistan Science Foundation provides financial assistance to Scientific Societies for 

carrying out their scientific activities specified in their charters for the development of 

Science and Technology in Pakistan. During 2005-06 funds amounting to Rs.7.0 million 

were released to 22 scientific societies for the purpose. The cumulative achievements of the 

Societies include holding of 22 national and international conferences/seminars/workshops, 

publication of 31 volumes of 14 journals and payment of linkages fee to 5 international 

societies. The societies which received the grant are listed below: 

S. No. Name of the Society. Amount 
Released (Rs). 

1.  Agricultural Foundation of Pakistan 400,000/- 

2.  The Chemical Society of Pakistan 475,429/- 

3.  Horticultural Foundation of Pakistan 650,000/- 

4.  Institute of Electrical & Electronic Engineers Pakistan 200,000/- 

5.  Islamic Society of Statistical Sciences 300,000/- 

6.  Pakistan Academy of Geological Sciences 250,000/- 

7.  Pakistan Association for the Advancement of Science 376,356/- 

8.  Pakistan Botanical Society 225,000/- 

9.  Pakistan Institute of Physics Society 250,000/- 

10.  Pakistan Mathematical Society 350,000/- 

11.  Pakistan Material Research Society 200,000/- 

12.  Pakistan Physiological Society 300,000/- 

13.  Pakistan Phytopathological Society 300,000/- 
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14.  Pakistan Pharmacological Society 200,000/- 

15.  Pakistan Society of Nematologists 200,000/- 

16.  Pakistan Society of Biochemistry & Molecular Biology 725,000/- 

17.  Pakistan Society for Semiconductor Science & Technology 130,000/- 

18.  Pakistan Thalassaemia Welfare Society. 221,000/- 

19.  Pakistan Veterinary Medical Association 200,000/- 

20.  Soil Science Society of Pakistan 300,000/- 

21.  Weed Science Society of Pakistan 300,000/- 

22.  Zoological Society of Pakistan 425,000/- 

Miscellaneous expenditure 22,215/- 

Total: 70,00,000/- 

2. PARTICIPATION OF SCIENTISTS AND TECHNOLOGISTS IN 
INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCES, SEMINARS AND WORKSHOPS 

Pakistan Science Foundation provides grants to scientists and technologists for their 

participation and presentation of research papers in conferences abroad. During 2005-06, 

funds amounting to Rs. 2.455 million were provided to 34 scientists, which enabled them to 

present their research work in conferences, seminars and workshops abroad. List of scientists 

and the details of the conferences attended & papers presented is placed at Annex-V. 

3. RESEARCH SUPPORT PROGRAMME FOR ACTIVE SCIENTISTS AND 
TECHNOLOGISTS OF PAKISTAN 

Under the above subject project, Pakistan Science Foundation provided research 

grants to scientists and technologists for purchase of lab equipment, chemicals and other 

research material, computers, printers etc, for which adequate funds were not available with 

their parent organizations. The objective of the project was to strengthen their research 

capabilities and to enable them to undertake their lab work freely and more effectively. 

During 2005-06, an amount of Rs.7.848 million was utilized on the project. The project has 

been completed. The list of scientists who received the grants is given at Annex-VI. 
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III. SCIENCE POPULARIZATION 

Popularization of Science is one of the statutory functions of Pakistan Science 

Foundation. The Foundation is engaged in various science popularization activities at 

national level with the aim of increasing awareness of science education in the society. In 

order to achieve this objective, the Foundation has initiated a number of programmes 

including science exhibitions, fairs, science film shows, popular science lectures, science 

quiz competitions, science essay and poster contests, establishing of science centers/corners 

and strengthening of laboratories of high schools etc. The programmes undertaken during the 

year under report are briefly highlighted below. 

1. 	SCIENCE CARAVANS (MOBILE SCIENCE EXHIBITION) 

Science Caravan is a Mobile Science Exhibition that has been designed to increase 

public awareness about science and to motivate the younger generation of the country 

towards study of science. Through Mobile Science Exhibition, the people living in 

rural/backward areas of the country are exposed to some of the most fascinating scientific 

and technical developments of the modern world. All narrations are in national language, and 

are accompanied by simple illustrations. At present nine Science Caravan Units are in 

operation. Eight units are stationed in the four provinces (two each) and one is stationed at 

Islamabad. Keeping in view the demand for Science Caravan Exhibitions, the Foundation has 

prepared and submitted a new PC-I to the Ministry of Science & Technology for preparation 

of six new Science Caravans. 

The Caravan Units continued their activities throughout the report period & organized 

497 days of Science Exhibition in various schools countrywide. More than 99,670 students of 

472 schools visited these exhibitions. Summary of exhibitions is given below, while the 

details are in Annexure-VII. It may be noted that due to law and order situation, the 

Balochistan Unit could not hold exhibitions outside Quetta. 
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SUMMARY OF EXHIBITIONS BY PSF SCIENCE CARAVANS 

Province 	 Days 	Schools 	Students & Visitors 

Federal 	 125 	 2 	 29,100 
Industrial Fairs 

Sindh 	 137 	 173 	 30,940 

Punjab 	 87 	 162 	 22,000 

NWFP 	 121 	 130 	 15,130 

Balochistan 	27 	 05 	 2,500 

Total 	497 	 472 	 99,670 

2. PROMOTION OF SCIENTIFIC BOOKS 

With a view to encourage and promote scientific book reading and writing, PSF 

purchases books/magazines on various scientific themes and distributes free of cost to 

educational institutions and R&D organizations. It also provides financial support to the 

authors for publishing their books. During the year, 500 copies of the book, "Manual of 

Insect Physiology" by Dr. Ashfaq Ahmad were published and printed. Also, 250 copies of 

the book, "Biotechnology for Kids" by Syeda Maryam Bilal published by the National 

Commission on Biotechnology were procured. Both books were distributed to educational 

institutions and R&D organizations of the country. 

An amount of Rs.50,000/- was sanctioned to International Medical Research 

Centre, Peshawar for printing of the book entitled "Man, Mountain and Medicine" by Dr. 

Muhammad Ilyas. Similarly, Rs.30,000/- were sanctioned to University of Management and 

Technology, Lahore for publication of the book entitled "Safety Management and 

Engineering-An Integrated Approach" by Prof. Dr. Abdul Raouf. 

3. DONATION OF SCIENTIFIC LITERATURE TO HIGH SCHOOLS 

As its regular programme, the Foundation donates scientific books & magazines to 

high schools particularly in rural areas. During the year 12000 copies of Monthly magazine 

"Global Science" were donated to 1000 high schools and more than 10,000 brochures and 

posters were provided to various high schools and other organizations of the country. 
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4. 15TH INTRA & INTER BOARD SCIENCE ESSAY AND POSTER 
COMPETITIONS 

PSF regularly organizes Science Essay and Poster Competitions for the students of 

high schools of the country through the Boards of Intermediate and Secondary Education. 

This year, 15th  Science Essay and Poster Competitions were organized. The themes of the 

Essay and Poster Contests were "Water Pollution" and "Nano Science & Technology" 

respectively. Cash Prizes worth Rs.252, 000/- were distributed among the winner students. 

5. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FOR POPULARIZATION OF SCIENCE 

In addition to its own activities, the Foundation supports other institutions involved in 

popularization of science. In this respect, a number of grants were provided to various 

institutions as under. 

• An amount of Rs.35000/- was sanctioned to National Museum of Science & Technology 

(NMST) Lahore for organizing the 18th  Annual Science Quiz, Innovation and Essay 

Competitions, 2005. The event was aimed to popularize science and technology through 

non-formal means among students and general public. In addition, an amount of 

Rs.33,000/- was sanctioned to NMST, Lahore for purchase of the Lamp of Multimedia 

Projector SANYO SU-31 for screening of science films on large scale. 

• A sum of Rs.11,000/- was sanctioned to the NUST Institute of Information Technology 

(NIIT), Rawalpindi for publication of the proceeding of the event "All Pakistan Software 

Exhibition and Competition, 2005. 

• A grant of Rs.22,000/- was provided to College of Electrical & Mechanical Engineering, 

Rawalpindi for organizing 5th  All Pakistan Inter College/ University Software Exhibition 

(COMPPEC 2006). 

6. 	ANNUAL REVIEW AND PLANNING MEETING (ALL HANDS MEETING) 

Pakistan Science Foundation arranged the annual All Hands Meeting on 7th  July, 

2005, in which the progress of previous year was reviewed and plans for new fiscal year 

were discussed. In the evening all retired & serving employees of PSF, PASTIC and PMNH 

were invited for a get together. Ex-Chairmen of the Foundation also attended the meeting. 

All participants, particularly the lower staff appreciated the organization of the meeting and 

requested for its continuation in future. 
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7. 	WORLD SCIENCE DAY FOR PEACE & DEVELOPMENT 

United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization (UNESCO) during 

the General Conference at its 30 session (2001) proclaimed November 10 each year as 

"World Science Day for Peace and Development (WSDPD)". The proposal was given by Dr. 

Ishfaq Ahmad, Adviser to Prime Minister of Pakistan. The Ministry of Science & 

Technology assigned the task of commemoration of WSDPD to the Foundation. On 

November 10, 2005, PSF in collaboration with MoST and UNESCO organized a 

"Convention of Scientists" at Holiday Inn Hotel, Islamabad. Due to Earthquake of 8th  

October 2005, special emphasis was given to Earthquakes, their Scientific Explanations and 

Forecasting. Ch. Nouraiz Shakoor Khan, Federal Minister for Science & Technology was the 

Chief Guest of the Convention. He said that Government has allocated billions of rupees to 

S&T Sector and the scientific community should come forward and work together with the 

industrialists for the economic and industrial development of the country. 

Eminent scientists including Dr. Ishfaq Ahmad, Dr. Azam Ali Khawaja, Dr. Qamar 

Zaman, Dr. M. Qasim Jan and Dr. S.R.H. Baqri presented scientific papers. Large number of 

students participated in the convention. Ms. Nabeela Naqvi, a student of F.G. College for 

Women F-7/2 also expressed her views about the earthquakes. Dr. N. M. Butt, Chairman, 

PSF in his address advocated that Science & Technology should be used for the betterment 

of mankind. 

On the day, a live talk show on PTV World "News Mornini" was arranged, in which 

Prof. S. Riazuddin, Director National Centre of Excellence in Molecular Biology, University 

of the Punjab, Lahore and Prof. Dr. Muhammad Iqbal Choudhry, International Centre for 

Chemical Sciences, H.E.J. Research Institute of Chemistry, University of Karachi, Karachi 

and Dr. N.M. Butt, Chairman PSF highlighted the importance of Science & Technology for 

peace and development. 

8. 	WORLD YEAR OF PHYSICS-2005 

In connection with World Year of Physics-2005, a lecture on "Einstein-The Genius of 

the Century" by Dr. Khalid Rashid was arranged on 28th  December, 2005 in PSF Auditorium. 

Ms. Faiza Najeeb, Student, IMCG, 1-8/4 highlighted the major achievements and life history 

of Albert Einstein. PSF distributed momentous (ballpoint pens) and brochures on the life, 
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achievements and quotes of Albert Einstein among the students during the lecture. Prof. Dr. 

Tahir Hussain, a veteran Physicist presided over the function. 

A live talk show on PTV World "News Morning" was also arranged on 27th  

December 2005. Dr. N. M. Butt, Dr. Mujahid Kamran, and Dr. Khalid Rashid participated in 

the talk show. 

9. 	1sT  MEETING OF NOBEL LAUREATES WITH PAKISTANI STUDENTS/ 
YOUNG SCHOLARS 

The Ist  Meeting of Nobel Laureates with Pakistani Students/Young Scholars was 

organized by Pakistan Science Foundation (PSF) in collaboration with Pakistan Atomic 

Energy Commission, Higher Education Commission, Ministry of Science & Technology and 

COMSATS, at Islamabad and Lahore from 27 — 31 March, 2006. Dr. N.M. Butt, Chairman 

PSF as the Representative in Pakistan, Council for Lindau Nobel Laureates Meetings, was 

the Chief Organizer. 

Purpose of the meeting was to inspire and motivate Pakistani students, young 

scientists and research scholars for developing scientific culture among students and to 

broaden the outreach of the country's scientists. Three Nobel Laureates viz., Prof. Charles H. 

Townes, Prof. Ivan Giaever, Prof. Gerardus 't Hooft and a German scholar of Nuclear 

Medicine, Prof. L. E. Feinendegen participated in the Meeting. 

The meeting was inaugurated by His Excellency Mr. Shaukat Aziz, Prime Minister of 

Islamic Republic of Pakistan. Other high Government officials present on the occasion 

included Ch. Nouraiz Shakoor Khan, Federal Minister for Science & Technology; Prof. Dr. 

Atta-ur-Rahman, Chairman Higher Education Commission and Adviser to Prime Minister on 

Science & Technology, Dr. M. Akram Shaikh, Dy. Chairman Planning Commission, Mr. 

Farrukh Qayyum, Secretary to Government of Pakistan for S&T and Dr. N. M. Butt, 

Chairman, Pakistan Science Foundation. About 300 scientists, engineers, scholars, students 

and policy makers participated in the inaugural session. 

His Excellency the Prime Minister while addressing the meeting expressed his 

overwhelmed feelings for his presence among three Nobel Laureates in Pakistan for the first 
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time in the history of the country. He fully supported the idea of holding such meetings and 

said that human capital is the strength of country therefore investment should be made to 

develop human resource. The Prime Minister said, "Government has focused on knowledge 

based economy and we are committed to fully support the programmes for providing 

opportunities to young scholars for their educational development". 

Others who spoke on the occasion included Ch. Nouraiz Shakoor Khan, Prof. Atta-ur-

Rahman, Dr. N.M. Butt, Prof. Charles Townes and Prof. L. E. Feinendegen. Mr. Khan 

welcomed the distinguished guests to Pakistan; Prof. Rahman appreciated the idea of the 

meeting and highlighted the Govt. plans for strengthening the higher education system in the 

country, and Dr. Butt elaborated as to how Pakistan began participating in Nobel Laureates 

Meetings at Lindau, Germany. Prof. Townes spoke on how he reached the heights of science 

and Prof. Feinendegen talked about the annual Nobel Laureates Meetings in Lindau, 

Germany over the last 55 years. 

After the inaugural session, three meeting sessions were held on day-1, wherein, over 

300 senior scientists, policy makers and young scholars participated and interacted with 

Nobel Laureates. Technical lectures were delivered by the Nobel Laureates on their 

achievements and a panel discussion on "Science & Society" was held; wherein, scholars, 

scientists, policy maker, planners and the visiting Nobel Laureates participated. In the 

evening, Nobel Laureates participated in News Night programme of ATV channel on 27th  

March and in News Morning programmes of PTV on 281h  and 29th  March. 

The second day of meeting was meant for interaction of Nobel Laureates with young 

scholars of Intermediate & A-Level. The Nobel Laureates and Prof. Feinendegen delivered 

very interesting lectures on "Excitement of Science","Enjoyment of Life in Science", and 

"Creativity-the Way of Life". The young scholars directly interacted with NobehfLaureates 

and shared their knowledge and experiences. A visit to Lok Virsa (Heritage) Museum was 

arranged for Nobel Laureates followed by dinner hosted by Higher Education Commission in 

honour of visiting Nobel Laureates. Nobel Laureates also paid a courtesy call on the Prime 

Minister of Pakistan. 
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Third day of the meeting was for interaction of young talented school audents of 15-

18 years age with Nobel Laureates. Prize winner students of PSF Essay and Poster 

Competitions, INTEL competition and Physics Olympiad programmes participated in the 3"I  

day's meeting. Participating students were acquainted with Science Popularization 

Programme of PSF and its research support activities for promotion of science and 

technology in the country by the Chief Scientific Officer, PSF Dr. Manzoor H. Soomro. 

Young students directly interacted with Nobel Laureates and greatly benefited from their 

knowledge and experience. In the late afternoon, Nobel Laureates visited PINSTECH 

Complex and the Optic Laboratories and participated in panel discussion held at PINSTECH. 

The 4th & -,th ) day's meeting of Nobel Laureates was held at Government College 

University and the University of Health Sciences, Lahore. A large number of scientists, 

research scholars, faculty members of Government College University and other institutions 

attended the meeting and interacted with the Laureates. Nobel Laureates Prof Hooft delivered 

very informative lecture on "Black Holes and Elementary Particles", while Prof Townes 

spoke on "Microwave Spectroscopy and Laser", Prof. L. E. Feinendegen gave lecture on 

"Nuclear Medicine and Low Dose Radiation Effects" during the two days meeting at Lahore. 

Nobel Laureates also visited the Museum and the Shahi Fort during their stay in 

Lahore. The proceedings of this first meeting of Nobel Laureates with Pakistani students and 

young scholars were highlighted in print as well as electronic media including two 

internationals channels viz., BBC and VOA. 

10. 	FELICITATION TO PROF. DR. ATTA-UR-RAHMAN 

Pakistan Science Foundation organized ceremony of Felicitation to Prof. Dr. Atta-ur-

Rahman, N.I., H.I., S.I., T.I., FRS, Chairman HEC, on his election as "Fellow Royal Society 

(FRS)" London on June 6, 2006. Dr. N.M. Butt S.I., Chairman, PSF congratulated Prof. Dr. 

Atta-ur-Rahman and highlighted his outstanding achievements, on the basis of which he has 

been elected as Fellow of Royal Society. The speakers including Dr. Amir Muhammad, 

Rector National University of Computer and Emerging Sciences-FAST, Dr. M. Akram 

Shaikh, Deputy Chairman Planning Commission and Engr. Parvez Butt, Secretary, Ministry 
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INDEPENDENCE DAY CELEBRATION 
On 4quit 12 2015 

ORGANIZED BY: MEISTAN SCIV10E FOAMS  

ACTIVITY PICTURES 

Chairman PSF, Dr. N. M. Butt, briefing the students about the science models at the occasion 
of students convention in connection with Independence Day Celebrations 

A speech contest among the students in connection with Independence Day Celebrations 



Group photos of the judges on the event of Poster Contest with Dr. N. M. Butt, Chairman PSF 

PRIZE 	R1BUTION CER 

;Jr AWAR "IONS 	TINS" 
6 

Dr. Ishfaq Ahmed giving the first prize to Mr. Hasan Rashid Ramay for 
"The Quran Publishing System" 
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Dr. Ishfaq Ahmad delivering lecture on the occasion of "World Science Day for Peace and 
Development" on 10th November. 

Audience on the occasion of "World Science Day for Peace and Development" 
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Speech contest on the occasion of "World Science Day for Peace and Development" 
(November 10, 2006) 

Group photo with the participants of the Seminar on "Einstein - The Genius of the Century" 
held on the World Year of Physics - 2005 
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\-10# 	LECTURE ON 
"EINSTEIN-THE GENIUS OF THE C 

By 
DR.KIIALID RASHID 

ON DECEMBER 29th, 2005 
STAN SCIENCE FOUNDA 

Prof. Dr. Tahir Hussain presiding over the session at the occasion of 
"World Year of Physics - 2005 

28th Meeting of the Board of Trustees, Pakistan Science Foundation, June 17, 2006 
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1ST MEETING OF NOCZA. LAURCATic.i 
WITH 

PAKISTANI STUDENTS / Ji/ND SCHOLAk. 
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March 21-31 2006 
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Prime Minister of Pakistan H. E. Mr. Shoukat Aziz delivering his speech on the occasion of 
inaugural ceremony of the 1st Meeting of Nobel Laureates, 

Islamabad/Lahore 27-31 March, 2006 

Nobel Laureates sitting with the audience in the inaugural session of the 1st Meeting of 
Nobel Laureates, Islamabad/Lahore 27-31 March, 2006 



Prof. Ivar Giaever, Nobel Laureate expressing his views in a meeting with students 

Young Research Scholars in discussion with Prof. G. 't. Hooft, Nobel Laureate 



Young Research Scholars in discussion with Prof. C. H. Townes, Nobel Laureate 

Students in discussion with Prof. Ivar Giaever, Nobel Laureate 



FELICITATION TO PROF. PR, ATTA-UR - RAHMAN 
4is e/ect/an as 

FELLOW ROYAL SOC/ETY (FRS) 
(-7 ,  June 6. 2006 

Organized 6v Pakistan Scie e foundation 

Dr. N. M. Butt delivering speech on the occasion of felicitation to Prof. Dr. Atta-ur-Rahman 
on the award of Fellowship of the Royal Society 

Federal Minister for Science and Technology Ch. Nouraiz Shakoor Khan presenting shield to 
Prof Dr. Atta-ur-Rahman, Chairman HEC for his election as Fellow Royal Society (FRS) 

June 6, 2006 



Prof. D. Balasubramanian is presiding over the meeting of the participants of UNESCO Project 
"Breaking the Poverty Cycle of Women" 

Participants of the International meeting of UNESCO Project "Breaking the Poverty Cycle 
of Women" (10-12 April, 2006 Islamabad) 



of Science and Technology paid tributes to Dr. Atta-ur-Rahman A huge numbei 

researchers, scientists and engineers attended the felicitation ceremony 

Ch. Nouraiz Shakoor Khan, Federal Minister for Science & Technoloi. v. t 	1...inest 

of the ceremony in his concluding remarks said "our 3cintists tort: able to cop( with all the 

competitions, thus our scientific status is going up dpy 	day which will elevate Palk istan 

from developing to developed country". At the end, PSF souvenir was presented to I.) Atta-

ur-Rahman by the Chief Guest. 

11. 	UNESCO PROJECT "BREAKING THE POVERTY CYCI ,E Ole WOMEN" 

PSF in collaboration with MoST and UNESCO of  7;aii7(A 3'1  Intf•rnational Meeting 

of Sub Regional Network of Non-Formal Science Education and Popularization of Science 

from 10th- 12th  April, 2006 in PSF Auditorium. Scientists and Educationists from India, 

Nepal and UNESCO Paris / Pakistan participated in the meeting, while delegates from 

Bangladesh could not come. Participants of the meeting highlighted then achievements 

during the year 2004-2005. The problems in the implemfritation of tin: 1.1.41.ct wete also 

discussed and the strategies for future were finalized. 

During roundtable discussion, it was required to 	r.•;,te that %hold(' be the 

most common for all four countries to be selected from fonr fiwine,;* WiOff. ErietgV. Health 

and Agriculture. Keeping in view, the more realistli 	 , 	 v:atei was 

identified as the common problem encountered by the femal—. and lamilies 	iiiral 

areas. It strongly contributes to the female illiteracy and thus causing poverty and health 

problems. Hence, it was agreed to work on "water related issues" and prepare internationally 

applicable pictorial book during the third phase of the project. 

Pakistan was declared as the most active partner of the. project, thus it was decided 

that PSF with financial assistance of UNESCO, will take/ up the task of developing a pictorial 

booklet and Training Manual on water issues. The input would also be taken from 

Bangladesh, India, Nepal and other partners: 
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Pakistan Museum of Natural History 

Pakistan Museum of Natural History (PMNH) is an important scientific organization 

carrying out environmental and biodiversity research in the country as well as promoting 

informal education and public awareness about our natural wealth. It is a subsidiary 

organization of Pakistan Science Foundation and was established in 1979 to serve 

national needs in the vitally important areas of research, conservation and education 

involving Pakistan's heritage of natural resources. The Museum is a national repository 

for permanent storage of plants, animals, rocks minerals and fossils of the country. 

Pakistan Museum of Natural History continued its research and educational activities 

during the report period. 

1. Visit of Senate Standing Committee on S&T 

Members of the Standing Committee of Senate on Science & Technology visited 

PMNH along with Secretary, Ministry of Science and Technology, and Chairman, 

Pakistan Science Foundation. The Secretary MoST briefed about PMNH. The 

Chairman PSF and D.G. PMNH gave comprehensive presentation on PMNH 

covering areas like functions, organizational structure, areas of research, details of 

collection of plants, animals, rocks, minerals and fossils, capacity building 

programme, development projects, budgetary allocations and future plan of PMNH. 

They were also briefed about the laboratories, reference collection halls of all the 

Divisions and PMNH display galleries. After the visit, the Committee praised the 

efforts of the scientists of PMNH for educational and research activities and 

recommended that such type of science Museum be established in other parts of the 

country. 

2. Field work 

• The Botanists of PMNH carried out fieldwork in Northern Areas of Pakistan, 

Margalla Hills, Kaghan Valley, Mansehra district, Azad Kashmir, Galiat and the Salt 

Range for the collection of plant specimens and data on ethnobotanically important 

62 



species. Simly Dam, Rawal Dam, Kallar Kahar and Soan river were surveyed for the 

collection of Algal Flora. During these field studies collected 1500 Higher plant 

specimens were collected, 95 Algae and 58 harmful Algal bloom specimens along 

with field data. 30 culture bottles of nano- and phytoplankton were also obtained. 

Fifty specimens of Mushrooms were also collected during the report period. All these 

specimens were added to the repository of Botanical Sciences Division. 

• Geoscientists of Earth Sciences Division conducted geological fieldwork in Surghar 

Range, Salt Range, Kaghan-Kohistan, Pattan, Dassu, Utror, Gabral, Timurgara, Dir, 

Northern Areas, Balakot, Muzaffarabad and Basol in Balochistan through PSF funded 

research projects and international collaborative research projects. Field work was 

also carried out in Kaghan and Kohistan with Swiss counterparts for international 

collaborative research project with Swiss Federal Institute of Technology, Zurich, 

Switzerland. 150 rock samples and 500 invertebrate fossils for research and display 

were collected . All the collected material has been identified, catalogued and added 

in ESD repository for further scientific studies. 

• The Zoologists carried out field work in Islamabad, Murree, Rawalpindi, Taunsa 

Barrage, Abbottabad, Mansehra, Cholistan and Thal Deserts, Bahawalpur, Fateh 

Jang, Margalla Hills and Northern areas for the collection of animal specimens and 

field data. A 12 days field tour was carried out in earth-quake affected areas to assess 

the impact of earthquake on Biodiversity in affected areas of Mansehra and AJK. 

Some two thousand animal specimens including both invertebrates and vertebrates 

were collected and added to the Zoological Sciences repository. 

3. Laboratory Work 

■ One thousand Higher plant specimens were classified and systematically arranged in 

the Herbarium. 

• Conducted microphotography of 95 Phytoplankton, Nano-plankton and Algal species. 

Also recorded monthly and seasonal variation of all these species. Separated 

poisonous, non-poisonous and edible Algae having medicinal value. 
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■ About 100 Fungal specimens were dried, preserved, labeled and systematically 

arranged in the Mycology section of PMNH Herbarium. 

■ Prepared thin section of 31 rock samples and carried out their petrographic studies. 

• Studied, identified and catalogued 70 invertebrate fossils. 

• Carried out compilation and synthesis of geo-chemical data for different 

discriminatory diagrams, compilation and interpretation of geological and field data 

for preparation of reports and research papers. 

• Studied specimens of Spalerosophis species to resolve taxonomic anomalies 

regarding different species of this genus. 

• Carried out research work on 34 specimens of Eremias species of the Cholistan desert 

collected from Cholistan and described it as new species "Eremias cholistanica". 

• Identified and catalogued 2700 insect, 4500 fish and 85 mammal specimens collected 

from different areas of Pakistan. 

• Computerized catalogue register of the reptile collection to facilitate future studies. 

• Acquired fifty-seven skeletons of rodents from Florida Museum of Natural History. 

• Eighty five specimens of mammals were identified and catalogued. 

• Prepared a Checklist of Mammals of Pakistan regarding their distribution, Ecology 

and their Status. 

• Carried out sorting, labeling and cataloging of butterfly specimens. 

4. 	Research Publications 

• Hasan, S.A 2005. Responses of butterflies and birds to climate change. In Muhammad, 

A., S.S. Hussain (eds) Global Change Perspective in Pakistan: Challenges, Impacts, 

Opportunities & Prospects 81-88. 

• Mahmood, K. & Hasan, S. A. 2005. Revision of Subfamily Dacinae (fruit flies) 

(Tephritidae: Diptera) of South East Asia. Pakistan Journal of Zoology, Supplement 

Series No.7: 1-65. 
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• Baig, K.J. and Rafique, M. 2005. Two new records of snake species from Machiara 

National Park, Azad Jammu and Kashmir. Proceedings of Pakistan Academy of 

Sciences, 42(2): 151-152. 

• Garrido, C. J., Bodinier, J. L., Burg, J. P., Zelinger, G., Hussain, S. S., Dawood, H., 

Chaudhry, M. N., and Gervilla F., 2005. Petrogenesis of mafic garnet granulites in the 

lower crust of the Kohistan paleo-arc complex (Northern Pakistan): Implications for 

intra-crustal differentiation of island arcs and generation of continental crust. Jour. 

Petrology. Doi: 10.1093/petrology/eg1030. 

• Marivaux, L., Antoine, P. Baqri, S.R.H., Benammi, M., Chaimanee, Y., Crochet, J., 

Franceschi, D., Iqbal, N., Jaeger, J., Metais, G., Roohi, G., & Welcomme, J. 2005. 

Anthropoid primates from the Oligocene of Pakistan (Bugti Hills): Data on early 

anthropoid evolution and biogeography. Proceedings of the National Academy of 

Sciences of the USA, PNAS, 102(24): 8436-8441. 

• Leghari, M.K., Shah, M and Leghari, M.Y. 2005. Ecological study of Blue green 

Algae from Rawal dam, Islamabad. International Journal of Phycology and Phyco-

chemistry, 1(1): 5-12. 

• Leghari, M.K., Shah, M. and Akhtar, N. 2005. Freshwater Algal species recorded 

from gut content of fish, Labeo rohita Hamilton from Rawal darn, Islamabad. 

Science, Technology & Development, 24(1): 41-48. 

• Burg, J. P., Arbaret, L., Chaudhry, M. N., Dawood, H., Hussain, S. S., and Zeilinger, 

G., 2005. Shear strain localization from the upper mantle to the middle crust of the 

Kohistan arc (Pakistan). In: Bruhn, D., & Burlini, L., (eds.). High-Strain Zones: 

structures and physical properties. Geological Society, London, Special Publication 

245: 25-38. 

• Baig, K.J., Awan, M.R. and Ashraf, N. 2006. Ecological studies and Zoogeographic 

affinities of the amphibians and reptiles found in Chagai Desert, Balochistan, 

Pakistan. Pakistan Journal of Zoology, 38(2): 145-151. 
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• Mahmood, K. & Hasan, S. A. 2005. Revision of Subfamily Dacinae (fruit flies) 

(Tephritidae: Diptera) of South East Asia. Pakistan Journal of Zoology, Supplement 

Series No.7: 1-65. 

• Mahmood, K. 2005. A new species of fruit flies of genus Bactrocera (Dacinae: 

Tephritidae: Diptera) from Pakistan. Pakistan Journal of Zoology, 37(2):161-162. 

• Afzal, S., Awan, M. R., Khanum, R. 2005. NPK values of soil of Abbotabad and 

adjoining areas. Pakistan Journal of Arid Agriculture, 8(2): 5-7. 

• Hassan, M.M.U., Beg, M.A. and Ali, H. 2005. Habitat, Morphology and General 

Biology of Indian Hairy Footed Gerbil (Gerbillus gleadowi) in central Punjab. 

Journal of Animal and Plant Sciences, 15 (3-4): 86-88. 

• Hassan, M.M.U., Beg, M.A. and Ali, H. & Rashid, G.M. 2005. Prey of the Spotted 

Owlet Athene brama in Punjab (Pakistan). Journal of Animal and Plant Sciences, 15 

(1-2): 35-38. 

• Nadeem M.S., Mian A.A., Asif, M., Rashid, H., Akhtar M.S., Mujtaba, G. 2005. 

Houbara Bustard: An experience of rearing chicks in Nag valley (Pakistan). Berkut. 

Ukrainian Ornithological Journal, 14(2): 246-254. 

• Gulfraz, N., Rizwana, P., Khanum, R. & Awan, M.R. 2006. An alternative for olive 

oil. Online Journal of Biological Sciences, ANSI net 2087-2090. 

• Funez, S., L., Burg, J. P., Hussain, S. S., Dawood, H., & Chaudhry, M. N., 2006. 

Structural evolution of the footwall of the Indus suture in Malakand (N. Pakistan) 

during the Himalayan collision. Jour. Asian Earth Sciences. Vol. 27, Issue 5: 

691 -706. 

5. On-going Development Project 

Completion of Block II & Strengthening of Research & Display Activities of PMNH 

The project is related to the National priorities in terms of conservation of the 

biodiversity of Pakistan, with special reference to public education about natural 

resources of Pakistan. It is a part of the programme for promotion of science and 
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technology in the country and to strengthen research and development (R&D) 

activities, dissemination of scientific knowledge through Animated Exhibits and 

educating the general public about the natural wealth of the country i.e. flora, fauna, 

rocks and minerals. About 80% of the work has been completed. 

6. Research projects completed 

• Completed three year PSF funded research project entitled "Ecology and 

zoogeography of butterfly fauna of moist-temperate mountains of Pakistan" 

• Carried out assessment of the impact of earthquake on environment and Bio-

diversity of the Earthquake hit areas of Azad Kasmir and Hazara. The areas affected 

by the October, 2005 earthquake were surveyed by the scientists of PMNH to 

document the damages and to assess the geological and biodiversity changes 

brought about by the catastrophe. 	After successfully completion of projects, 

comprehensive reports have been submitted to PSF. 

7. On-going projects 

• Ethno-botanical studies, Taxonomy and Pictorial Encyclopedia of Economically 

Important Plants from Mountainous Regions of Northern Pakistan. Second Annual 

Technical and Fiscal Report submitted to PSF. 

• Inventory of Flora of Margalla Hills National Park, Islamabad. First Annual Report 

submitted to PSF. 

• Documentation of Indigenous Knowledge about Medicinal Plants of Pakistan. In 

progress. Second Annual Technical and Fiscal report submitted to PSF. 

• Inventory of Faunistic Diversity in Margalla Hills National Park, funded by PSF. 

• Bio-ecology and population management of the House Crow (Corvus splendens) in 

Islamabad area, funded by PSF. 
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• Focus Balochistan (Establishment of Sustainable Model Agriculture Farm in Basol 

Area, Balochistan Using Wind Energy & Drip irrigation System). Governor 

Balochistan, Mr. Awais Ahmad Ghani participated in the Ground-breaking Ceremony 

of the project as Chief Guest. 

• Harmful Algal Blooms of Coastal Areas of Pakistan. On-going collaborative project 

between PMNH & PINSTECH. 

8. International Collaborative Projects 

• The early evolutionary stages of an island arc: the dunite-pyroxenite-gabbro 

association of Sapat, Kohistan, NE Pakistan. In collaboration with Swiss Federal 

Institute of Technology (ETH), Zurich, Switzerland and Montpellier University, 

France (On-going). 

• Biochronological studies of the terrestrial sediments and mammalian fauna from the 

Zinda Pir dome, Dera Ghazi Khan area, Balochistan, Pakistan. In ollaboration with 

Department of Medicine, Howard University, Washington, D. C. USA(On-going). 

9. 	Projects approved by PSF for funding 

• Ecological studies of Algal Flora of Northern Areas of Pakistan. 

• Taxonomic and Ethno-botanical studies of economical important plants of Potwar 

Plateau and the Galiat with reference to their trade 

• Studies on Algae of major rivers of Punjab with special emphasis on its consumption 

by economically important carp fish. 

10. 	Projects Submitted for funding 

• Biostratighraphic Zonation and the Economic Significance of the Lockhart Limestone 

of Paleocene age in the Nammal, Nilawahan & Kalarwahan areas of Salt Range, 

Pakistan. Submitted to PSF. 
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• Micro-facies and distribution of Datta Formation in western Salt Range and Surghar 

Range of Upper Indus Basin., Pakistan. Submitted to PSF. 

• Integrated Management of fruit flies in Punjab. Submitted to PSF. 

• Species composition and Food habits of demersal Fishes along Sindh Coast, Pakistan. 

Submitted to International Foundation for Science (IFS). 

• The Study of Crustacean Fauna in Ayubia National Park and Adjacent Areas. 

Submitted to NWFP wildlife department. 

• Baseline studies of small mammals in Ayubia National Park. Submitted to NWFP 

wildlife department. 

• Taxonomic Studies of Parasitic Hymenoptera of Ayubia National Park. Submitted to 

NWFP wildlife department. 

• Status and Biology of Murree Hill Frog, Pau vicina in and around Ayubia National 

Park. Submitted to NWFP wildlife department. 

• Investigation and evaluation of chromite deposits in Bajaur Agency. 

• Detail investigation of base metals, specially Lead-Zinc deposits in Besham area, 

NWFP, Pakistan". A Pak-China collaborative research project. 

• Training of exploration, cutting and finishing techniques of Gemstones. A Pak-Sri 

Lanka collaborative research project. 

• Detail mineralization and geochemical investigations for evaluation of the Clay 

deposits of the Siwalik rocks, Potwar Plateau, Pakistan. A Pak-Indonesia 

collaborative research project. 

11. 	Display/Design Work 

• Printing material such as cards, brochures, etc. for various functions of PSF, PMHH, 

MoST, etc. were designed. 
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• Display exhibits/material for National Memorial Museum, Islamabad were designed. 

• Provided guidance on the preparation of the software for Animated Exhibits. 

12. 	Guided Visits/Educational Activities 

• A total number of 31,531 persons visited PMNH Display Centre during the year, 

which included 15,448 students, 15,682 general public and 401 foreigners. 

• Arranged 12 lectures/film shows in and outside PMNH for students from schools, 

colleges and universities. 

• Arranged guided tours of PMNH for a large number of students/ VIPs. 

• Vice Chancellor of Karakorum University visited the PMNH Laboratories and 

Display galleries. 

13. Qualification Improved 

Dr. S. Shahid Hussain was awarded Ph. D. degree in Geology by the University of 

Punjab. 

14. Workshop /Seminars Organised 

• To activate UNESCO Man and Biosphere Programme in Pakistan, PMNH 

organized a one-day International Workshop on "Potential Biosphere Reserves in 

Pakistan in January which was attended by national and international experts. Mr. 

Malik Amin Aslam, Minister of State for Environment inaugurated the workshop. 

Dr. Thomas Scaaf, UNESCO-MAB specialist and Mr. George Sequira, Director 

UNESCO Islamabad also addressed the august gathering. The workshop was 

aimed to create awareness and to identify potential areas that can be declared as 

biosphere reserves in Pakistan. 

• Organized an international symposium entitled "Use of Advanced Research 

Techniques for Wildlife Management" at Pakistan Museum of Natural History, 

Islamabad on July 6, 2005. Dr. Jon E. Swenson from Norway, Dr. Eva Bellemain 

from France, Dr. Andres Ordiz from Spain, Dr. Sven Olov Brunberg from 
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Sweden, Dr. Andreas Zedrosser from Finland and Dr. Alice Valentini from Italy 

along with Pakistani Scientists delivered lectures on different aspects of wildlife. 

The symposium was attended by 75 representatives of different organizations 

from all over the country concerned with wildlife, environment and biodiversity 

conservation. The scientists highlighted different modern techniques adated in 

different parts of the world for wildlife conservation in general and for the bear 

conservation in particular. 

• Pakistan was hit by its most tragic natural disaster on 8th  October 2005. Pakistan 

Science Foundation and the National Geological Society of Pakistan (NGSP) 

jointly organized a seminar on 18th  October, the first such seminar in the country 

to provide scientific views on the geological hazards and to evolve strategies to 

meet such challenges in the future. The seminar was presided by the Chairman 

PSF, Dr. N.M. Butt. Dr. Azam Ali (Dean, Q.A.U), Dr. Muhammad Nawaz Ch. 

(Former Prof. P.U. Lahore), Dr. Qamaruzzaman Ch. (D.G., Pakistan 

Meteorological Department), and Mr. Aziz A. Qureshi and Mr. Zahid Ali, both 

from PAEC, gave detailed presentations in the seminar. 

15. 	Trainings/Workshops Attended 

• Director ZSD visited Bangladesh as External Expert to contribute in the Regional 

Training Session on Conservation of Biodiversity held in Dhaka, 19-22 

September, 2005. 

• Three officers attended a 4 days workshop (March 28-31) on "Ratification of the 

Stockholm Convention and Setting Priorities; Training/ Skills building workshop for 

the development of National Implementation Plan" organized jointly by Pakistan 

Environmental Protection Agency and UNDP. 

• Three officers attended GBIF Workshop on "Sharing and Accessing Biodiversity 

Data on Internet" held at National Botanical Research Institute, Lucknow, India. 25-

27 Jan, 2006 organized by Global Biodiversity Initiative Forum. 
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• One officer attended Training Course on "Macroeconomic Issues and 

Management" organized by Pakistan Planning and Management Institute. 

• One officer attended Training Course on "Human Resource Management" 

organized by Pakistan Manpower Institute, Islamabad. 

• Two officers attended Training Workshop on "Science in Mass Media" organized 

by PASTIC at Allama Iqbal Open University Islamabad. 

• One officer attended Training Course on "E-Commerce" organized by Pakistan 

Manpower Institute, Islamabad. 

• One officer attended National Consultative Workshop on the "Implementation of 

CITES in Pakistan" organized by Ministry of Environment, UNEP and IUCN. 

• One officer attended computer training course on "Office Automation with MS 

Office" at Pakistan Manpower Institute, Islamabad. 

• Three officers attended "National Consultative Workshop on CITES law for 

Pakistan and Implementation of CBD, CMS and RAMSAR in Pakistan" held in 

Islamabad. 

• All officers of the ZSD attended an International Symposium entitled "Use of 

Advanced Research techniques for Wildlife Management" held at Pakistan 

Museum of Natural History on July 6, 2005. 

• One officer won a LEAD Scholarship of US $ 8,000 and became Cohort under 

"Leadership Development Program" to get trainings on issues related to 

Environment and Development. 

• One officer attended a seven days training on "Assessing Transition towards a 

New Governance Paradigm" held at LEAD House, Islamabad from December 10-

16, 2005. 

• One officer attended training on "Application of Power Point and Multimedia" at 

Pakistan Computer Bureau, Islamabad. 
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• One officer attended training on "Internet and its Application'.  and "Office 

Automation with MS Office" at Pakistan Manpower Institute Islamabad. 

• One officer attended training course on "PC-1 Preparation" held at Pakistan 

Planning and Management Institute, Islamabad. 

• One officer attended training course on "Management of PSD Projects" at 

Pakistan Planning and Management Institute, Islamabad. 

16. Conferences/Seminars/Symposia attended 

• One officer attended the Fourth International Congress of Ethnobotany and World 

Congress on Health Challenges at Yedipeti University Istanbul-Turkey. August 

21-26, 2005. 

• One officer attended First International Conference on Women's Health and Asian 

Traditional Medicine at Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia from 23-25 August, 2005. 

■ One officer attended International Symposium on "Conservation of Mediterranean 

Flora in the Changing World" organized by Conservatoire Botanique National 

Mediterranean de Porquerolles, France. 

■ Two officers attended Second National Conference on Agriculture and Animal 

Sciences held at Sindh Agriculture University, Tandojam. 

• Director ZSD participated in "Multilateral Environmental Agreements" held at 

Exclusive House, Peshawar. 

• Director ZSD attended "National seminar on Biodiversity" organized by Ministry 

of Environment, Pakistan. 

• Two officers attended "Role of Insect Taxonomy and Systematics in Sustainable 

Agriculture" at National Agricultural Research Centre, Islamabad. 
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• Participated in the one-day seminar on "Water Crises in Pakistan: Concerns and 

Challenges" organized by the Department of Earth Sciences, Quaid-i-Azam 

University, Islamabad. 

• Director, PSD attended international conference on "Earthquake of Pakistan" 

organized by Geological Survey of Pakistan in Islamabad. 

• Director, PSD attended meeting convened by Governor, Punjab to discuss the 
impact of October 8th  2005 Earthquake, and Reconstruction and Rehabilitation 
strategies. 

• Director, PSD attended seminar "Monitoring of Tectonic Plates" organized by 

COMSATS, Islamabad. 

• One officer gave a briefing on "Earthquake of October 8, 2005" to the National 

Assembly Standing Committee on Science & Technology at the Parliament 

House, Islamabad on May 15, 2006. 

17. 	Services Rendered to Other Organizations 

• Conducted viva voce examination of three Ph. D. and two M. Phil. students of 

Quaid-i-Azam University, Islamabad and Peshawar University. 

• Worked as External Examiner for University of Azad Jammu and Kashmir, 

Muzaffarabad. 

• Identified 300 plant specimens for Islamabad College for Girls and 100 for 

students of AJK University. 

• Conducted expedition to Kaghan valley with Adventure Foundation of Pakistan. 

• Guided and supervised B.Sc ( Hons.), M.Sc. M.Sc ( Hons), M. Phil & Ph. D. 

students of Qauid-i-Azam University, Islamabad, Arid Agriculture University, 

Rawalpindi, Peshawar University & Hazara University, Mansehra and Azad 

Jammu Kasmir Unversity. 

• Provided technical assistance to NISTE and WWF-Pakistan. 
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Members of the Standing Committee of Senate on Science & Technology along with 
Engr. Parvez A. Butt, Secretary, MoST, Dr. N. M. Butt, Chairman PSF and 

Dr. Azhar Hasan, Director General, PMNH during visit to PMNH on 9-5-2006 

Dr. Azhar Hasan, Director General, PMNH showing the model of PMNH building to the 
Members of the Standing Committee of Senate on Science & Technology along with 

Engr. Parvez A. Butt, Secretary, MoST, during visit to PMNH 



International Workshop one  • Potential 
too Biosphere 

tipsH 1,PS 
In 

Pakistan 
JtMUM) 26.2006 

Inaugural session of the International Workshop on Potential Bio-diversity Reserves in Pakistan, 
presided over by Mr. Malik Amin Aslam, Minister of State for Environment held 

in Islamabad on 26-1-2006 

Engr. Parvez A. Butt, Secretary, MoST looking at the specimens of medicinal plants 
in the PMNH Herbarium 



• Gave demonstration on Biodiversity of Pakistan to students of COMSATS 

Islamabad. 

• Evaluated research proposal for Higher Education Commission (HEC) on 

development of aquaculture activities in Sindh. 

• Helped WWF-Pakistan in the studies of Taunsa Barrage environmental studies. 

• Guided four M. Sc. students of the University of Arid Agriculture regarding their 

dissertations. 

• Provided services to National Development Consultants in the EIA studies of 

Diamer-Bhasha Dam. 

• Reviewed research article for Pakistan Journal of Zoology. 

• Delivered a presentation on "Collection and preservation of Biological material, 

plant and animals" at National Institute of Science and Technology. 
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PAKISTAN SCIENTIFIC AND TECHNOLOGICAL INFORMATION 
CENTRE (PASTIC) 

Pakistan Scientific and Technological Information Centre (PASTIC) is the premier 

organization in the field of information dissemination that serves as a gateway for access to 

and delivery of S&T information catering to the information needs of the researchers. It is 

one of the few public sector organizations which has acquired an ISO:9001 Certification. 

The National Centre is housed in its own building situated at the Quaid-i-Azam University 

Campus, Islamabad. It has five Sub-Centres at Karachi, Lahore, Peshawar, Faisalabad, 

Quetta and Muzaffarabad. Its sanctioned strength is 158 including Technical and 

Administrative Staff. 

A. AIMS & OBJECTIVES 

• To procure, process, organize and disseminate scientific and technological 
information to the researchers and the industry. 

• To interact with regional and international information agencies/networks. 

• To develop inter-library cooperation, resource sharing at national level. 

• To train information personnel in contemporary techniques and methods of 
information handling. 

• To develop and strengthen the National Science Reference Library. 

• To provide bibliographic and document supply service. 

• To compile and publish Directory of S&T Periodicals of Pakistan, Union 
Catalogue of Scientific Periodicals in the libraries of Pakistan. 

• To publish abstracting and indexing journal entitled "Pakistan Science Abstracts". 

B. 	ACTIVITIES AND SERVICES 

The activities undertaken during the period, July 2005 to June 2006 are briefly 

described below: 

1. 	DOCUMENT PROCUREMENT AND SUPPLY SERVICE 

Under the Document Procurement and Supply Service, queries were received from 

different R&D organizations for supply of reprints of research articles, conference papers and 
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reports etc. which were procured either from local sources or from abroad. With the initiation 

of Digital Document Supply Service (DDSS) the time of supply of the order has been 

reduced to only few hours instead of several days. This service enables PASTIC to supply 

documents through e-mails or giving access to the clients to the domain through secure 

password to down load the required information. A total number of 1565 S&T documents 

were procured and supplied against 1981 requests received from scientists, researchers and 

other R&D workers. 

2. BIBLIOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SERVICE 

Bibliographic information service was provided to users according to their research 

topics on request through off line and on line electronic abstracts information databases. A 

total of 2,89,123 references on various S&T topics were supplied to 954 researchers during 

the year 2005-06 from the following databases; 

• MEDLINE 1950-2006/05 

• LIFE SCIENCES COLLECTION 1982-2004/03 

• APPLIED SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY 1983-2005/12 

• SOCIOFILE 1974-1998 

• SOCIOLOGICAL ABSTRACTS 1963-1999/06 

• PROQUEST 1992-1998 

• POLTOX 1966-2004/03 

• INSPEC 1999-2002/12 

• DERWENT BIOTECHNOLOGY ABSTRACTS 1982-2004/09 

• SCIENCE CITATION INDEX 2002- 2004/12 

• COMPENDEX SITE ENHANCED 1995/2004/03 

• CURRENT CONTENTS 1995/1999 

• ULRICH'S INTERNATIONAL PERIODICAL 

DIRECTORY 2004 

For further strengthening of the bibliographic information service and resources of 

PASTIC and its Sub-Centres, online bibliographic databases were purchased. 
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3. 	ABSTRACTING AND INDEXING SERVICE 

PASTIC provides abstracting and indexing service by publishing an abstracting 

journal entitled "Pakistan Science Abstracts" in ten different scientific disciplines, which 

serves as a secondary information source to give support to research and development 

activities in the country. The scientific information generated in Pakistan or abroad and 

published in Pakistani S&T journals is documented in the form of abstracts in this secondary 

journal. The abstracts of research articles along with detailed author index and keyword 

index are published in Pakistan Science Abstracts. Abstracting Journals entitled "Pakistan 

Science Abstracts" of 2004 in following ten scientific disciplines were published during the 

year 2005-2006. 

• Agricultural Sciences, 2004, Vol.42-A 

• Animal Sciences, 2004, Vol.42-D 

• Biochemistry & Biotechnology, 2004, Vol.42-B 

• Chemical & Pharmaceutical Sciences, 2004, Vol.42-C 

• Earth & Environmental Sciences, 2004, Vol.42-E 

• Information Communication & Engineering Sciences, 2004, Vol.42-I 

• Mathematics & Statistics, 2004, Vol.42-0 

• Medical Sciences, 2004, Vol.42-H 

• Plant Sciences, 2004, Vol.42-J 

• Physics, 2004, Vol.42-F 

	

4. 	PASTIC NATIONAL SCIENCE REFERENCE LIBRARY 

PASTIC National Science Reference Library is aimed at providing reference and 

referral service to the users and strengthening of all the services of PASTIC particularly 

document supply service, bibliographic information service, abstracting and indexing service, 

technological information service etc. 

Automation of PASTIC library is in progress and it is planned to make it the National 

Resource Centre for all type of Scientific and Technological Information. During 2005-2006, 

1125 articles were supplied to the researchers. Besides, library received 937 issues of 

National and International Journals along with books, reports, miscellaneous documents, 

etc.which were processed and shelved for use. 
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5. 	PATENT INFORMATION SERVICE 

PASTIC provides Patent Information Services in following areas. 

• The Patent System in Pakistan. 
• Criteria for patenting an invention. 
• Filing of patent applications. 
• Patent Attorneys in Pakistan. 

These Services were provided to University of Agriculture, Peshawar, Pakistan 

Medical Research Council, FAST, NUST and a few entrepreneurs in different fields. 

6. REPROGRAPHIC SERVICE 

The Reprographic Section of PASTIC has facilities ranging from photocopying to 

offset printing. During the year 2005-2006 about 161 printing jobs were undertaken for 10 

R&D and S&T organizations. These printing job included printing of publications such as 

journals, proceedings, reports, yearbooks booklets, brochures, pamphlets, files folders, 

workshops/meetings material etc. 

7. IT SUPPORT SERVICE 

IT serves as the backbone of PASTIC information services and during the period 

under review following activities were undertaken for providing support to PASTIC services. 

• PASTIC and PSF salary database developed. 
• Patents database has been developed in WIN/ISIS and 12000 patents have 

been automated with searching facility. 
• Software developed for the Pakistan Science Abstract both for printing 

and searching. 
• Telephone exchange has been computerized with advance status reporting 

features. 
• Fast internet facility has been implemented through NTC and HEC PERN 

setup. 

8. 	INTERNATIONAL LIAISON 

PASTIC is the National Focal Point of International/Regional Information Centres 

and Information Networks like, SAARC Documentation Centre, WHO/CEHANET and 
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UNEP/INFOTERRA. PASTIC is also the Coordinating/Collaborating Centre for 

UNDP/TIPS and UNESCO/IFAP. The following collaborating activities were undertaken 

under international liaison activities. 

i. 	UNESCO/ INFORMATION FOR ALL PROGRAMME (IFAP) 

PASTIC has been designated the Focal Point for Information for All Programme 

(IFAP) of UNESCO. The IFAP was established in 2001 to meet the challenges of the 

emerging global knowledge society and to provide equitable access to information. 

• WINISIS Package (English Version) supplied to five organizations and 
imported training to four persons. 

• A Project proposal on "National Repository of Pakistani Publications" to 
be funded by UNESCO under the participation programme of UNESCO in 
the activities of Member States 2006-2007 was prepared. 

ii. 	INFOTERRA/UNEP (United Nations Environment Programme Global Information 

Network),Its functions are; identification of Environmental Information Sources for 

publishing in the INFOTERRA Directory of Environmental Information Sources; to provide 

information on environmental topics on demand; to distribute UNEP/INFOTERRA 

publications on environment; to coordinate in environmental information activities. 

Following activities were undertaken during the reported period. 

• A Survey was conducted for United Nations Environment Programme on 
Environmental Assessment reports published in Pakistan and provided to 
UNEP. 

iii. SAARC DOCUMENTATION CENTRE: SAARC Documentation Centre (SDC) is 

a regional centre of SAARC which was established in 1994 to act as an effective information 

system of Member States to enable them to exchange information in various fields of S&T. 

Another objective of SDC is to develop human resource in the Member States in the area of 

information science, technology, management systems and services. In this regard following 

activities were undertaken during the period under report. 
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• A country paper pertaining to PASTIC Services, overall information 
scenario of Pakistan and SDC-NFP activities was prepared for annual 
SDC-NFP coordinators meeting. 

• Information for the publication of SAARC Abstracts, Development of 
SAARC databases on Medicinal & Aromatic Plants, Solar Energy 
Research Organization in the country and Training Facilities in Library & 
Information Science, etc., was collected, compiled and forwarded to SDC. 

• Director PASTIC attended the Governing Board meeting of SAARC 
Documentation Centre at New Delhi, India from 20-21 Sep 2005. 

• Two Officers from PASTIC participated in two different training 
programs organized by SAARC Documentation Centre at New Delhi, 
India. One was short term training course on "Information Technology for 
Information Management" from September 19 to October 21, 2005 and 
the other was "Attachment Training Program" from September 19 to 
December 16, 2005. 

iv. BILATERAL COOPERATION: • Project Proposals for S&T collaboration in the 

field of Information Exchange with USA, China, Argentina, Austria and Japan were 

submitted to MoST. 

v. TRADE & TECHNOLOGY INFORMATION PROMOTION SYSTEM (TIPS) 

Trade & Technology Information Promotion System (TIPS) is a global information network 

founded in 1984 by UNDP for promoting trade & technological cooperation between 

developing countries. PASTIC, through TIPS provides information services on trade offers 

about Pakistani products / technologies to 40 member countries and vice-versa through 

monthly bulletins acting as a bridge between local and foreign companies. Major activities 

are: 

• Collection & Dissemination of information on technologies, encouraging 
direct transactions between suppliers and buyers. 

• Facilitating Trade Opportunities for Subscribers. 

• Monthly tech-trade bulletins & Directory. 

• Trade & Technology Exhibitions. 

Under the Technological Information Promotion System, (TIPS), PASTIC provided 

information on 845 Technology Offers and Requests through TIPS Monthly Bulletins to the 

subscribers in 12 sectors such as Agriculture, Business Opportunities, Biotechnology, 
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Building Materials, Electronics, Energy, Chemicals, Food Processing, Machinery, 

Packaging, Pharmaceuticals and Textiles. The following eight new subscribers joined the 

TIPS Network. 

• COMSATS Institute of Information Technology. 

• Telephone Industries of Pakistan. 

• RASTGAR Co. (Pvt) Ltd. 

• Universal Packers. 

• L.T. Engineering & Trade Services (Pvt) Ltd. 

• Sitara Chemicals Industries Ltd., Faisalabad. 

• Dadex Eternite, Ltd., Karachi. 

• Airmech Engineering Industries(Pvt.) Ltd., Islamabad. 

9. 	HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 

One of the important activities of PASTIC is to impart training on computer 

applications for Office & Library automation as well as organization of workshops and 

seminars on diverse topics. 

a. 	Training/Workshops organized for Information Professionals 

• Organized a 3-day workshop on "Science in Mass Media" from 24-26 Jan, 
2006 at Allama Iqbal Open University (AIOU), Islamabad under the 
development project entitled "Science Awareness through TV Channel". 

• Organized training on WIN/ISIS Package for four librarians from 
Intelligence Bureau and Pakistan Atomic Energy Commission from 22-24 
February, 2006. 

• Organized a 3-day workshop on "Projection of Scientific Knowledge in 
the Mass Media of Pakistan" from 8-10 June, 2006 at Holiday Inn, Lahore 
under the development project entitled "Science Awareness through TV 
Channel". 

b. 	Important meetings/Workshops Attended &Trainings Received by PASTIC 
Officers 

• Director, PASTIC attended the 7th  Board meeting of International 
Network of Women Engineers, Scientists (INWES) in Lille, France from 
20-23 May, 2006. 
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• Senior System Analyst participated in three months JICA training course 
entitled "Chief Information Officer for E-Government" from 12th January 
to 5th April, 2006 at Okinawa, Japan. 

• Senior Librarian attended the 2' Advanced Training workshop on 
"WIN/ISIS and GEN/ISIS" from 3-8 April 2006 at Allama Iqbal Open 
University, Faisalabad. 

• Bibliographic Officer has attended the training workshop on Library 
Automation Process" held from 5-10 June, 2006 at Akhtar Hameed Khan 
National Centre for Rural Development and Municipal Administration 
(AHKNCRD and MA). 

	

10. 	PAPERS/BOOKLET PUBLISHED 

• Nageen Ainuddin. "Re-visiting Women's Participation in Science & 
Technology- Emerging Challenges and Agenda for Reform". October 
2005, published by the United Nations University, Tokyo, Japan. 
(UNU/IAS Monograph for S&T Policy Studies). 

• Nageen Ainuddin. "Quality Management System - Adding Value to 
Activities" The News, November, 2005. 

	

11. 	MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES 

• The proceeding of Is' Meeting of Nobel Laureates with Pakistani 
Students/Young Scholars at Islamabad/Lahore on March 27-31, 2006 was 
compiled and edited. 

• Updation & Expansion of PASTIC Website was done on regular basis 
with a view to automate maximum activities for provision of online 
services. 

• Revised PC-1 of Project entitled "Establishment of National Science and 
Technology Database/Information Network at PASTIC" was prepared. 

• Official e.mail addresses for all PASTIC officers and services were 
created. 

• PASTIC conducted a SWOT Analysis for its activities and facilities. 

	

12. 	DEVELOPMENT PROJECT: Science Awareness through TV Channel 

A development project entitled "Science Awareness through TV Channel" is under 
execution. The basic objective of the project is the creation of awareness and interest in 
science and technology through multimedia, specially the TV, leading to socio-economic 
development and better quality of life in Pakistan. Major activities carried out under various 
programmes of the project are as under. 
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Programme-1: Acquisition, translation and dubbing of S&T films and documentaries. 

■ Under this programme 10 documentaries on environment were acquired and 
purchased with broadcasting rights. Out of these 10 documentaries, translation 
and dubbing of 8 documentaries was completed during the period under 
review. 

Programme-2: Production of S&T films and documentaries. 

• One documentary on "Salt Range" completed by M/S. HMA. 
• A documentary on "River System of Pakistan" had been prepared by World 

Wide Vision which is under process of modifications. 
• Four (4) scripts were prepared for preparation of documentaries. 

Programme-3: Panel discussion on TV among scientists and eminent scholars. 

Under this programme 8 panel discussions on following topics were 

organized. In which eminent scientists, policy makers and representatives of the industry 

participated. 

• Gems & Gemstones and National Development. 
• Biodiversity and National Development. 
• Commercialization of Indigenous Technologies for Development. 
• Textile Technology and Trade for National Development. 
■ Medicinal Plants of Economic Importance & National Development. 
• Intellectural Property Rights and National Development. 
• Importance of Industrial Minerals and Rocks for National Development. 
• Wind up 6 Series of Panel Discussions "Science for Development". 

These panel discussion were also aired on PTV World. 

Programme-4: Training of young scientists for popularization of science through mass 
media. 

The following two workshops were organized; 

• A 3-day workshop on "Science in Mass Media" organized from 24-26 Jan, 
2006 at Allama Iqbal Open University (AIOU), Islamabad. Thirty one 
(31) participants attended the workshop. 

• A 3-day workshop on "Projection of Scientific Knowledge in the Mass 
Media of Pakistan" organized from 8-10 June, 2006 at Holiday Inn, 
Lahore. Thirty four (34) participants attended the workshop. 
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INTERNATIONAL LIAISON 

1. FOREIGN VISITS OF PSF SCIENTISTS 

• Under the MoU signed with the National Natural Science Foundation of China, PSF 

sponsored the visit of eleven Pakistani scientists to facilitate their participation in the 

Pak-China Bi-lateral Workshop on Chemical sciences. The Workshop was held in the 

Institute of Organic Chemistry, Academy of Sciences, Shanghai, on 18-19 April, 2006. 

Following eight papers were presented by the Pakistani scientists: 

a. "Recent Discoveries at the Interface of Chemistry and Biology" 
(Prof. Dr. M. Iqbal Chaudhry, International Center for Chemical Sciences, University 
of Karachi, Karachi) 

b. "Adding Value to the Chemistry by Pharmacology" 
(Prof. Dr. Ahsana Dar, International Center for Chemical Sciences, University of 
Karachi, Karachi) 

c. "Synthesis of Bioactive Molecules" 
(Dr. Khalid M. Khan, International Center for Chemical Sciences, University of 
Karachi, Karachi) 

d. "Search for Bioactive Molecules" 
(Prof. Dr. Bina S. Siddiqui, International Center for Chemical Sciences, University of 
Karachi, Karachi) 

e. "Synthesis and Mesomorphism of Novel terminally substituted Diethyl; Stilbestrol 
Liquid crystals" 
(Prof. Dr. Rehana Rashid, Department of Chemistry, University of Balochistan, 
Quetta) 

f. "Synthesis of Catenanes an Exciting Aspect of Supramolecular Chemistry" 
(Dr. Muhammad Raza Shah, International Center for Chemical Sciences, University 
of Karachi, Karachi) 

• g. "Molecular Designing of Precursors for Chemical Vapour Deposition of 
Nanoceramic Materials" 
(Prof. Dr. Muhammad Mazhar, Department of Chemistry, Quaid-i-Azam University, 
Islamabad) 
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h. "Synthesis and Crystal Structure of Coordination Polymer of a Cu(II) with Pyridine-
2, 4,6-tricarboxylic Acid: 2D Architecture Simultaneously Stablized by CH/ Tr 
Interactions and Hydrogen Bonding" 
(Prof. Dr. Islam Ullah Khan, Department of Chemistry, Govt. College University, 
Lahore) 

• Dr. N.M. Butt, Chairman, PSF and Mr. Suhan ud-Din, Director P&D also visited various 

institutions in Shanghai and Beijing and held discussion with the Chinese counterparts to 

explore possibilities for strengthening the existing S&T cooperation between scientists of 

the two countries. 

• Dr. N.M. Butt, Chairman, PSF visited San Francisco, USA and presented a paper in 

"International Congress on Nanotechnology (ICNT-2005)". The conference was 

organized by International Association of Nanotechnology, USA from 28 October — 2 

November, 2005. 

• Dr. N.M. Butt, Chairman, PSF visited Berkley Radiation Laboratories (Synchrotron 

Radiation Source), University of California, Berkley, USA on 4th  November, 2005. (C/o 

Dr. Zahid Ahmad, Head of the Division). 

• Dr. N. M. Butt, Chairman, PSF visited Physics Department and the Nanotech Laboratory, 

State University of New York (SUNY), at Albany on 28th  November, 2005 and gave an 

invited Seminar. 

• Dr. N.M. Butt participated in 55th  Meeting of Nobel Laureates with Students/Young 

Scholars, Lindau, Germany, June — July, 2006. 

• Dr. S. Azhar Hasan, Director ZSD, PMNH visited Bangladesh as External Expert to 

contribute in the Regional Training Workshop on Conservation of Biodiversity held in 

Dhaka, 19-22 September, 2005. 

• Dr. M. Ibrar Shinwari, Associate Curator, BSD, PMNH, attended the Fourth International 

Congress of Ethnobotany and World Congress on Health Challenges at Yedipeti 

University Istanbul-Turkey 21-26 August, 2005. 
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• Mr. S. Aneel Gilani, Research Associate, PMNH, attended First International Conference 

on Women's Health and Asian Traditional Medicine at Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia from 23-

25 August, 2005. 

• Ms. Nageen Ainuddin, Director PASTIC attended the Governing Board meeting of 

SAARC Documentation Centre at New Delhi, India from 20-21 September 2005. 

• Mr. Javed Mukhtar, MTI, PASTIC attended "Attachment Training Program" from 19 

September to 16 December 2005 at SAARC Documentation Centre, New Delhi, India. 

• Ms. Ghazala Yasmeen Malik, SIO, PASTIC participated in training programs organized 

by SAARC Documentation Centre at New Delhi, India on "Information Technology for 

Information Management" from 19th  September to ilst  October, 2005. 

• Dr. Khalid Mahmood, Associate Curator, Ubaid Ullah Azim, System Analyst & Aneel 

Gilani, Research Associate of PMNH attended GBIF Workshop on "Sharing and Accessing 

Biodiversity Data on Internet" held at National Botanical Research Institute, Lucknow, 

India. 25-27 January, 2006 organized by Global Biodiversity Initiative Forum. 

• Mr. Saifullah Azeem, Senior System Analyst, PASTIC participated in three months JICA 

training course entitled "Chief Information Officer for E-Government" from 12th January 

to 5th  April 2006 at Okinawa, Japan. 

• Ms. Nageen Ainuddin, Director PASTIC attended the 7th  Board meeting of International 

Network of Women Engineers, Scientists (INWES) in Lille, France from 20-23 May 

2006. 

2. INTERNATIONAL COLLABORATION 

• In connection with on going UNESCO Project "Breaking the poverty cycle of women", 

PSF organized 3rd International Meeting of Sub Regional Network of Non-Formal 

Science Education and Popularization of Science from 10- 12 April, 2006 in Islamabad. 

Scientists and Educationists from India, Nepal and UNESCO Paris / Pakistan participated 

in the meeting. Pakistan was declared as the most active partner of the project; thus it was 
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decided that PSF with financial assistance of UNESCO, will take-up the task of 

developing a pictorial booklet and Training Manual on water issues. 

• Continued collaborative research project entitled "The early evolutionary stages of an 

island arc: the dunite-pyroxenite-gabbro association of Sapat, Kohistan, NE Pakistan" 

between PMNH and Swiss Federal Institute of Technology (ETH), Zurich, Switzerland 

and Montpellier University, France (2004-2007) 

• Carried out collaborative research project entitled "Miocene stratigraphy and mammal 
.. 

fauna from the Sulaiman Range, Soutwestem Himalayas, Pakistan" between PMNH and 

Northwestern Ohio University, College of Medicine, USA (July 2005-June 2006). 

• Undertaken collaborative research project entitled " Oligocene and Early Miocene Small 

Mammals from the Sulaiman Range, Pakistan" between PMNH and University of 

Arizona, Tucson , USA (2005- 2009). 

• Collaboration between PSF and UNESCO is being strengthened. To activate UNESCO's 

Man & Biosphere Programme, PMNH organized one-day International Workshop in 

Islamabad on "Potential Biosphere Reserves in Pakistan". The Workshop proved quite 

helpful in bringing together concerned Ministries,Government Departments, Researchers, 

NGO's, Acamedicians and wildlife experts. Dr. Thomas Schaaf, UNESCO MAB Expert 

from France presented the concept of Biosphere Reserves. 

• PMNH and Norwegian University of Life Sciences, OSLO, Norway jointly organized an 

International Symposium entitled "Use of Advanced Research Techniques for Wildlife 

Management" in Islamabad on July 6, 2005. Dr. Jon E. Swenson from Norway, Dr. Eva 

Bellemain from France, Dr. Andres Ordiz from Spain, Dr. Sven Olov Brunberg from 

Sweden, Dr. Andreas Zedrosser from Finland and Dr. Alice Valentini from Italy along 

with Pakistani Scientists delivered lectures on different aspects of wildlife. 
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CAPACITY BUILDING 

1. TRAINING OBTAINED IN PAKISTAN 

• Mr. Subhanuddin, Director (P&D) attended training course "Integrated Management of 

Development Projects" at Pakistan Planning & Management Institute (PPMI), Islamabad 

from 19-24 September, 2005 

• Dr. S. Lal Shah, S.S.O, Engr. Farid Bakhtiar, S.O. and Mr. Farid Asif Shaheen, S.O., 

PSF attended training course entitled "Project Preparation & Appraisal" at Pakistan 

Institute of Development Economics (PIDE), Islamabad from 19th  September to 01 

October, 2005. 

• Mr. Muhammad Abbas, and Shabir Ali Amir, Research Assoicates, PMNH attended 

training on "Internet and its Application" and "Office Automation with MS Office" at 

Pakistan Manpower Institute Islamabad from 05-26 November, 2005. 

• Dr. S. Shahid Hussain, Director PSD, PMNH attended training course on "Management 

of PSD Projects" at Pakistan Planning and Management Institute, Islamabad from 7-12 

November 2005. 

• Mr. Mirza Habib Ali, I.L.O., PSF, attended a seven days training on "Assessing 

Transition towards a New Governance Paradigm" held at LEAD House, Islamabad from 

10-16 December, 2005. 

• Dr. M. Ibrar Shinwari, Associate Curator BSD and Ms. Ghazala Roohi, Associate Curator, 

PSD (PMNH) attended training course on "E-Commerce" organized by Pakistan 

Manpower Institute, Islamabad from 17-26 January, 2006. 

• Raja Raziul Hasnain, SSIO and Mr. Mansoor Hussain, Assistant Program Coordinator, 

PASTIC attended Training Workshop on "Science in Mass Media" organized by 

PASTIC at Allama Iqbal Open University, Islamabad from 24-26 January, 2006. 
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• Mr. Asif Rafaqat Masroor & Mr. Amir Yasin, Research Associates, PMNH attended 

computer training course on "Office Automation with MS Office" Pakistan Manpower 

Institute, Islamabad from 1-11 February, 2006. 

• Dr. M. Ibrar Shinwari, Associate Curator, BSD, PMNH attended training course on 

"Human Resource Management" organized by Pakistan Manpower Institute, Islamabad. 

From 13-22 February, 2006. 

• Dr. M. Ibrar Shinwari, Associate Curator, BSD, PMNH attended training course on 

"Macroeconomic Issues and Management" organized by Pakistan Planning and 

Management Institute, Islamabad from 27-31 March, 2006. 

• Mr. Nasir M. Khokhar, S.O. attended training course entitled "Project Monitoring & 

Evaluation" at PPMI, Islamabad from 22-27 May, 2006. 

• Mr. Muhammad Abbas, Research Associate, PMNH attended training on "Application of 

Power Point and Multimedia" at Pakistan Computer Bureau, Islamabad from 23-28 June, 

2006. 

2. CONFERENCES/ WORKSHOPS AND SEMINARS ATTENDED 

• Dr. S. Azhar Hasan, Director, ZSD, Mr. M. Rafique, Associate Curator, ZSD and Dr. 

Khalid Javed Baig, Curator, ZSD, PMNH, attended National Consultative Workshop on 

the "Implementation of CITES in Pakistan" organized by Ministry of Environment, 

UNEP and IUCN at Islamabad on 21st  September, 2005. 

• Dr. S. Azhar Hasan, Director ZSD, Mr. M. Rafique, Associate Curator, ZSD & Dr. 

Khalid Javed Baig, Curator, ZSD (PMNH) attended an International Symposium entitled 

as "Use of Advanced Research Techniques for Wild Life Management" held at Pakistan 

Museum of Natural History, Islamabad on 25th  September, 2005. 

• Dr. Manzoor H. Soomro, CSO, PSF attended "61h  National Nematological Conference" 

held at NNRC, University of Karachi from 25-27 April, 2006. 
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• Ms. Nageen Ainuddin Director, PASTIC and Mr. Aqil Khan, Chief Editor, PASTIC 

attended the Workshop on "Standardization and Certification" from 1-2 September, 2005 

organized by UNIDO and Pakistan Standards and Quality Control Authority (PSQCA) at 

Islamabad. 

• Ms. Kausar Sohail, Sr. Bibliographic Officer, PASTIC attended the workshop on 

"Knowledge Management Application" from 12-13 July, 2005 jointly organized by US 

Embassy and the International Islamic University, Islamabad. 

• Dr. S. Shahid Hussain, Director, PSD, PMNH attended international seminar on 

"Earthquake of Pakistan" organized by Geological Society of Pakistan in Islamabad on 

18th  October, 2005. 

• Dr. Kishwar Nazir, Curator, BSD and Dr. M. K. Laghari, Curator BSD and Ms. Saadia 

Munir, Curator, BSD, PMNH attended " rd  National Conference on Agriculture and 

Animal Sciences held at Sindh Agriculture University, Tandojam on 23rd  November, 

2005. 

• Dr. S. Azhar Hasan, Director, ZSD attended "National Seminar on Biodiversity" 

organized by Ministry of Environment, Pakistan at Islamabad on 7th  January, 2006. 

• Dr. S. Shahid Hussain, Dr. Nayyar Iqbal & Mr. Hamid Dawood, PMNH attended a 

conference on "8th  October Earthquake in Pakistan: its Implication and Hazard 

Mitigation" organized by Geological Survey of Pakistan from 18-19 January, 2006. 

• Dr. Khalid Mahmood, Associate Curator, PMNH and Mr. Mishkatullah, Research 

Associate, PMNH attended a workshop on "Role of Insect Taxonomy and Systematics in 

Sustainable Agriculture" held at NARC, Islamabad from 13-14 February, 2006 

• Dr. Kishwar Nazir, Curator, BSD, Dr. M. K. Laghari, Curator & Mr. Aneel Gilani, 

Research Associate, PMNH attended "2"d  International Weed Science Conference" held 

at University of Arid Agriculture, Rawalpindi from 20-22 March, 2006. 

• Dr. M.K. Leghari, Curator, BSD, Mr. Saleem Ahmad, Associate Curator, BSD and Mr. M. 

Rafique, Associate Curator, ZSD, PMNH attended a 4 days workshop from 28-31 March, 

2006 on "Ratification of the Stockholm Convention and Setting Priorities; Training/ Skills 
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Building Workshop for the Development of National Implementation Plan" organized 

jointly by Pakistan Environmental Protection Agency and UNDP. 

• Dr. S. Shahid Hussain, Director, PSD, PMNH attended seminar on "Monitoring of 

Tectonic Plates" organized by COMSATS, Islamabad from 2-3 May, 2006. 

• Dr. S. Shahid Hussain, Director, PSD, PMNH participated in the one-day seminar on 

"Water Crises in Pakistan: Concerns and Challenges" organized by the Department of 

Earth Sciences, Quaid-i-Azam University, Islamabad on 6th  July, 2006. 

3. LECTURES DELIVERED 

Name 	 Title of the lecture 

Dr. N.M. Butt, 	 • Lecture on "Nanotechnology and its Applications 
Chairman, PSF 	 in various fields" at Riphah International 

University, Islamabad on 20th January, 2006. 

Mr. Subhanuddin, 
Dir. (P&D) 

Dr. Manzoor H. Soomro, 
CSO 

• Lecture on "Overview of Nanotechnology and 

Efforts in Pakistan" was delivered on 8 January, 

2006 during the International Conference on 

"Natural Product Chemistry" held at Karachi. 

• "Nanotechnology: Why Pakistan Needs It?" at 

University of Faisalabad on 24th  May, 2006. 

• "Nanotechnology & Pakistan: Current Status of 

Research" at NUST on 26th  May, 2006. 

"Preparation of Project PC-1" at PITAC, Lahore 

& PSF, Islamabad on 17th  November & 26th  

December, 2005. 

"Research Methods, Management & Supervision" 

at GCU, Lahore on 17 November, 2005. 
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Senator Razina Alam, Chairperson Senate Standing Committee on S&T distributing certificates 
among the participants of the workshop on "Science in Mass Media" at AIOU, Islamabad 

24-26 January, 2006 

A glimpse of audience during the inaugural session of the workshop on "Science in Mass 
Media" at AIOU, Islamabad 



Vcnue: 
Council Hall. Allama lybal Open University Islamabad 
Pakistan Scientific & Technolo 	 Center (PASTIC}  

nee Found 
Mass C 

Workshop on 
SCIENCE IN MASS MEDIA 

24 26 JANUARY, 2006 

Dr. Syed Abdul Siraj, Chairman, Deptt. of Mass Communication, AIOU, Dr. N. M. Butt, 
Chairman, Pakistan Science Foundation, Ms. Anisa Zeb Tahirkheli, Minister of State for 

Information and Broadcasting, Prof. Dr. Parveen Liaquat, Acting Vice Chancellor, AIOU and 
Dr. Nisar Qureshi, Dean, Faculty of Social Sciences during the inaugural session of the 

Workshop held in Islamabad from 24-26 January, 2006 

Dr. N. M. Butt, Chairman, PSF, Prof. Laiq Ahmed, Dr. Humayun Rathore and Ms. Kausar Sohail 
during the workshop on Science in Mass Media at Islamabad 



Mian Imran Masood, Provincial Minister for Education, Punjab, Dr. N. M. Butt, Chairman, PSF 
and Ms. Nageen Ainuddin, Director, PASTIC during the inaugural session of the workshop 

on "Projection of Scientific Knowledge in the Mass Media of Pakistan" at Lahore 
from 8-10 June, 2006 

Group Photo of the workshop participants with Dr. N. M. Butt, Chairman, PSF 
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CHAPTER-2 

ORGANIZATION AND ADMINISTRATION 

The organizational structure of Pakistan Science Foundation, Pakistan Museum of 

Natural History & Pakistan Scientific & Technological Information Centre is given on the 

forthcoming pages. The staff position in the Foundation, PMNH and PASTIC during the 

report period is as under: 

PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 

SANCTIONED STRENGTH FOR THE YEAR 2005-2006 (BS-16 & ABOVE) 

S.No Designation Number 

1 Chairman 1 

2 Member Science 1 

3 Member Finance 1 

4 Secretary 1 

5 Director (P&D) 1 

6 Chief Scientific Officer 1 

7 Principal Scientific Officer 4 

8 Additional Director (F&A) 1 

9 Deputy Secretary 1 

10 Sr. Scientific Officer 3 

11 Sr. Research Officer 2 

12 Dy. Director (F&A) 2 

13 Sr. Librarian 1 

14 Sr. Caravan Incharge 2 

15 Dy. Director (Admn) 1 

16 Audit Officer 1 

17 Caravan Incharge 3 

18 Scientific Officer 4 

19 Asstt. Director (Admn) —1 2 
Asstt. Director (Estt) —1 

93 



20 Sr. Graphic Artist 1 

21 PS to Chairman 1 

22 PS to Chief Scientific Officer 1 

23 Liaison Officer 1 

24 Asstt. Research Officer 1 

25 Superintendent 3 

26 Accountant 4 

27 Graphic Artist 1 

28 PA to Chairman /Director (P&D) 2 

29 Mechanic for Instruments 1 

30 Sr. Driver-Cum-Mechanic 2 

Supporting Staff 123 

Total 174 
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Board of Trustees 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 
2005-2006 

PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 

i CHAIRMAN 	 
'Executive Committee 
	BS-22 

Sr ADDITIONAL DIRECTOR 
FINANCE 8 ACCOUNTS 

BS-20 

DIRECTOR (P&D) 
BS-20 

Chief Scientific Officer BS-20 

SO 

SA 
BSI 1 

BS-17 

SCIENCE WING 	ADMIN. WING 	FINANCE WING 

MEMBER SCIENCE 	SECRETARY  ; j MEMBER FINANCE 
BS-21 	: 	BS-20 	 BS-20 

PRINCIPAL SCIENTIFIC OFFICER 
(SCIENCE PROMOTION) 

BS-19 

SCI 
FEDERAL UNIT 

BS-18 

J- 
	ki SHU 	

I RS-1R   

	hi
SU 	 

	

RS-17 	I 
sr 	urapnic Artist 

RS-17  
CI 

BALOCHISTAN UNIT 
BS-17 

_ 	. 

I taraphic Artist 	I 
RS-la  

DEPUTY SECRETARY (2) 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR-I BS-19 
BUDGET. PENSION 

C.P. FUND 
Deputy Director 

SENIOR LIBRARIAN BS-18 
ADMN 

BS-19 
BS-18 

DEPUTY DIRECTOR-II 
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS 

Assistant Director (A) Superintendents (3) BS-18 
BS•16 

SSO 
(Initiation Section ) 

BS-18 
1 

SO 
BS-17 

SA 
BS-1 

SS-17 
I 	- 

PSO 
Implementation Section (Dev) 

BS-19 

SSO 
BS-18 

SO 
BS-17 

SA 
BS-11 

PSO 
Implementation Section (Non Dev) 

BS-19 

SSO 
BS-18 

SO 
BS-17 

SA 
BS-11 

PS to Chairman 
BS-17 

Audit Officer 
BS-17 

SCI 
NWFP UNIT 

85-18 

SCI 
SINOH UNIT 

BS-18 

1.1 
PUNJAB UNIT 

FM.17 

PSO 
BS-19 (to be created) 



PAKISTAN MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY 

SANCTIONED STRENGTH OF PMNH 2005-06 

Sr. No. Designation BS No of Post 

1. Director General 21 1 

2. Director 20 4 

3. Curator 19 5 

4. Operational Manager 19 1 

5. Associate Curator 18 11 

6. Deputy Director (Admin) 18 1 

7. Exhibit Designer 18 1 

8. Assistant Director (Admin-I) 17 1 

9. Assistant Director (Accounts-III) 17 1 

10. Research Associate 17 14 

11. Graphic Designer 17 1 

12. Sr. Taxidermist 17 1 

13. System Analyst 17 1 

14. Assistant Research Associate 16 2 

15. PA to the D.G. 16 1 

16. Associate Artist 16 1 

17. Teacher Guide 16 1 

18. Children Education programmer 16 1 

19. Sr. Photographer 16 1 

20. Accountant 16 1 

21. Assistant Librarian 16 1 

22. Taxidermist 16 1 

23. Superintendent 16 1 

24. Supporting Staff 81 

Total 135 
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PAKISTAN MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY 
EXISTING ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

CHAIRMAN PSF 
BPS-22 

MIRECfoit GENERAL 
BPS-21 

I.Airriitkisi4Ciii • 
DIVISION 1 	 DIVISION 

- • 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
DIVISION 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
DIVISION 

(INFORMATIONTIECDROLOGY 
SECTION 

Director BPS-20 
(1) 

Director BPS-20 
(1) 

Director BPS-20 
(1) 

Deputy Director BPS-I8 Director BPS-20 
(1) 

. 	. 	 _ 
Curator BPS-19 _ 

(3) Senior Curator BPS-20 
(1) 

! Curator BPS-19 
(I) 

Associate Curator BPS-18 
(3) 

Assistant Director BPS-17 . 
- . 	(3) 	— 

!Operational Manager BPS-19: 
(1) 

Associate Curator BPS-18 • 
(2) 

Research Associate BPS-17 
(4) 

— 	• 	- - 	- - 	- - 
Manner BON Database/Webb 

Associate Curator ESD 
(1) 

Curator BPS-19 
(1) Exhibit Designer BPS-18 

() 
. 	 . 

' 
Associate Curator BPS-18 

(4) 
, Graphic Designer BPS-17 	System Analyst BPS-17 

(1) 	 (I) Senior limidermist BPS-17 
(1) 

Research Associate BPS-17 : 
(4) Research Associate BPS-17 

(6) 



PAKISTAN SCIENTIFIC & TECHNOLOGICAL INFORMAITON CENTRE 
ISLAMABAD 

SANCTIONED STRENGTH FOR THE YEAR 2004-05 

S.No. Name of Post BS No. of Post 

1. Director General 21 1 

2. Director 20 1 

3. Deputy Director (Doc) 19 1 

4. Additional Director (A&F) 19 1 

5. Chief Liaison Officer 18 2 

6. Sr. Translating Officer 18 1 

7. Manager Reprographic Unit 18 1 

8. Sr. System Analyst 18 1 

9. Sr. Documentation Officer 18 1 

10. Chief Editor 18 1 

11. Sr. Information Officer 18 1 

12. Sr. Bibliographic Officer 18 1 

13. Sr. Librarian 18 1 

14. Scientific Information Officer 17 ' 8 

15. Bibliographic Officer 17 2 

16. System Analyst 17 2 

17. Manager Technology Information 17 1 

18. Assistant Director (Admn) 17 1 

19. Assistant Director (Accounts) 17 1 

20. Printing Officer 17 1 

21. Graphic Artist 17 1 

22. Asstt Accounts Officer 16 1 

23. PA to Director General 16 1 

24. Superintendent (Reprographic Unit) 16 1 

25. Superintendent (Admn) 16 1 

26. Asstt. Scientific Information Officer 16 3 

27. Asstt. Documentation Officer 16 2 

28. Asstt: Programmer 16 3 

29. Asstt. Manager Reprographic Unit 16 1 

30. Asstt. Printing Officer 16 3 

31. Accountant 16 1 

Total: 48 

Supporting Staff 110 

Total Strength: 158 
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Sr. Inf.. 
Officer, 
BS-18 

_1 
Sr. 

Bibliographic 
Officer BS-18 

Sr. Lib 

BS-18 

Scientific 
Inf. Officer, 

BS-17 

Bibliographic 
Officer 
BS-17 

Manager 
R.U, BS-18 

Printing 
Officer 
BS-17 

Chief Editor, 
BS-18 

Supported 
by all 

Scientists of 
PASTIC 

Sr. System 
Analyst, 
BS-18 

Manager 
Tech. Infor, 

BS-17 
I 	 

Addl. Dir. 
(Admn) BS-18 

Admn. Officer, 
BS-17 
Vacant 

Deputy Director 
(Acctts) 
BS-18 

Accountant 
BS-16 (2) 

Scientific Inf. 
Officer, 
BS-17 

Pakistan Scientific & Technological Information Center (PASTIC) 
Organizational Chart 

CHAIRMAN, PSF 

DIRECTOR GENERAL, BS-21 

DIRECTOR, BS-20 

i . 
PASTIC Reprographic Publications Technology IT / MIS 
Library Section Section Information Section 

Section 

Document 
	

Bibliographic 
Supply 
	

& Training 
Section 
	

Section 

Administration 
	

Finance & 
Section 	 Accounts 

Section 

Scientific Inf. 
Officer, 
BS-17 

Graphic 
Artist 
BS-17 

System Analyst 
BS-17 

Officer Officer Officer Officer Officer Officer 

Incharge Incharge Incharge Incharge Incharge Incharge 

BS-18 BS-19 BS-17 BS-17 BS-17 BS-17 

Sub Centre, 
Karachi 

Sub Centre, 
Lahore 

Sub Centre, 
Peshawar 

Sub Centre, 
Quetta 

Sub Centre, 
Faisalabad 

Sub Centre, 
Muzaffarabad 

Scientific Inf. 
Officer, 
BS-17 
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CHAPTER — 3 

PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2006 

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of M/s PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION as at 
June 30, 2006 and the related receipts and expenditure statement, cash flow statement and 
statement of changes in accumulated fund together with notes forming part thereof for the year then 
ended. 

It is the responsibility of the management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, 
and prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on theses statements 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amount and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting policies used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and after due verification, we report that; 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the 
financial statements give the information as required and present fairly in all material respects the 
financial position of the Foundation as at June 30, 2006 and of its surplus/(deficit) and cash flow 
for the year then ended in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan. 

(I 	AS SAEED & CO.) 
Islamabad ; e November, 2006 

	
Chartered Accountants 
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iGRANTS  & LIABILITIES 

2006 	 2005 
NOTE 	RUPEES 	 RUPEES 

1PROPERTY & ASSETS 

2006 	 2005 

MIL 	RUPEES 	 RUPEES 

GENERAL FUND 	 3 21,865,052 22,663,092 FIXED ASSETS 	 7 18,817,994 19,654,764 
At Cost less Depaciation 

RESEARCH SUPPORT GRANT 	 4 69,862,611 71,296,146 DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 	 8 11,921,118 14,245,402 
As Cost less Depreciation 

DEVELOPMENT FUND GRANTS 12,123,320 15,398,150 RESEARCH PROJECTS IN PROGRESS 	4 69,862,611 71,296,146 

LONG TERM DEPOSITS 	 9 1,617,195 1,637,195 

CURRENT LIABILITIES CURRENT ASSETS 
Accrued & Other Liabilities 	 6 333,258 651,949 Advances, Deposits & Prepayments 	 10 845,066 897,030 

Cash & Bank Balances 	 II 1,120,256 2,278,800 
1,965,322 3,175,830 

104,184,240 110.009.337 104 184 240 110,009 337 

PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 
BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT JUNE 30, 2006  

Note • The annexed notes fonn an integral part of these financial statements 

104,66660 NoverdwrOS 2006 
TRUSTEE CHAIRMAN 
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Chartered Accountants 

CHAPTER - 3 

PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2006 

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of M/s PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION as at 
June 30, 2006 and the related receipts and expenditure statement, cash flow statement and 
statement of changes in accumulated fund together with notes forming part thereof for the year then 
ended. 

It is the responsibility of the management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, 
and prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on theses statements 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amount and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting policies used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and after due verification, we report that; 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the 
financial statements give the information as required and present fairly in all material respects the 
financial position of the Foundation as at June 30, 2006 and of its surplus/(deficit) and cash flow 
for the year then ended in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan. 

. 	 Islamabad ; 8th  November, 2006 
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PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 
RECEIPT AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

NOTE 
2006 

RUPEES 
2005 

RUPEES 

RECEIPTS 

Grant From Federal Government 57,754,000 49.175,000 
Other Income 	• 49,189 58,538 

57,803,189 49,233,538 

EXPENDITURES 

12 Statutary Scientific Functions 24.234.772 21.079.622 
Administrative Expensive 	 13 34.400,045 28.214.905 

58,634.817 49,294.527 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) OF 
RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURE (831.6211) (60,989) 

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS 	 14 33.588 1,150 

NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) OF 
KccEI PM OVER EXPENDITURE (798.040) (59.839) 

Note : The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

TRUSTEE 
Islamabad November 08, 2006 

CHAIRMAN  k."--). &vitt. 
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PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

2006 
RUPEES 

2005 
RUPEES 

CASH FLOW FROM 	ACTIVITIES 

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year (798.040) (59.839) 
Adjustment for non Cash Charges 
Depreciation - Fixed Assets 1,076,572 1,155,710 
Adjustment or Bicycle 
Deprecution - Development Projects 2,383,569 2,866,461 
Surplus / (Deficit) Before Working Capital Changes 3,460,142 4,022,171 

2,662,101 3,962,332 
Working Capital Changes 
(lne/ rase) / Decrease In Current Assets: 
(Increase) in LongTerm Deposits 20,000 
Decrease In Advances and Prepayments 51,964 (513.336) 

71,964 (513,336) 
Inc, ease ' (decrease) at current Iiabtlines - 
Increase In Accrued and Other Liabilities (318,691) 184,411 

(318,691) 184,411 
Net Working Capital Changes (246,727) (328,925) 
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,415,374 3,633,407 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchases of Fixed Assets (299.087) (894,282) 
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (299,087) (894,282) 

CASII FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Development Fund Grants - Net (3,274,830) (2,237,129) 
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3.274.830) (2,237,129) 

NET INCREASE /(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,158,543) 501,996 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2.278,800 1,776.804 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR I 120 256 nionnon= 2,278,800 

TRUSTEE 	 •••... 	
CHAIRMAN  kr. 

 . 7'"7 

Islamabad November OS, 2006 
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PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUND 

AS AT JUNE 30, 2006 

2006 2005 
PARTICULARS RUPEES RUPEES 

22,663.092 22,722.93 I Balance as at July 0l 

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year (798,040) (59,839) 

Balance as at June 30 21,865,052 22,663,092 

TRUSTEE 	 
Islamabad : November 08. 2006 

CHAIRMAN 
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PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006  

1. THE FOUNDATION AND ITS OPERATIONS 

Pakistan Science Foundation is a statutory organization established under Pakistan 
Science Foundation Act, 1973 on February 02, 1973. The main objects of its 
establishment are to promote and finance scientific activities having a bearing on the 
socio-economic needs of the country. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

These financial statements comply with International Accounting Standards, where 
applicable, in all material respects. The principal accounting policies, which have been 
adopted in the preparation of these financial statements, are as follows: - 

2.1 	ACCOUNTING CONVENTION 

These financial statements have been prepared under 'historical cost convention' and 
do not reflect the impact of specific price changes and the general level of prices. 

	

2.2 	GRANTS RECEIVED 

The Grants from the Government of Pakistan have been accounted for on receipt basis 

	

2.3 	RESEARCH SUPPORT GRANT 

The Research Support Grant has been accounted for on payment basis. 

	

2.4 	FIXED ASSETS 

Fixed assets have been valued at cost less accumulated depreciation except leasehold 
land, which is stated at cost. Depreciation on fixed assets is charged on reducing 
balance method. Full year's depreciation is charged on assets acquired during the year 
and no depreciation is charged on assets disposed off during the year. 

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major 
renewals and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on disposal of assets are 
taken to profit and loss account. 

2.5 TAXATION 

The Foundation enjoys tax exemption. Thus, no charge of tax is provided for in the 
accounts for the period. 
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2006 2005 
3 `GENERAL FUND RUPEES RUPEES 

Balance As On July 01 22,663,092 22,722,931 
Surplus / (Deficit) For The Year 798,040) (59,839) 

4 

21,865,052 22,663,092 

li
k
RESEARCH SUPPORT GRANT 

Balance As At July 01 71,296,146 67,634,432 
Add Disbursements During The Year 4.1 12,563,878 8,796,331 

83,860,024 76,430,763 
Less.  Projects Completed During The Year 4.2 2,945,996 5,134,617 
Less Expenses For Projects 4.3 11,051 417 

69,862,611 71,296,146 

4.1 Disbursements During The Year 
Institutional Support 350,000 • 
Biotech Sciences 371,491 47,576 
Mathematics & Computer Sciences 2,800 
Physical Sciences 684,212 708,113 
Chemical Sciences I,534.902 1,309,078 
Biological Sciences 3,314,112 1,275,013 
Earth Sciences 425,142 558,359 
Environmental Sciences 1,672,845 731,820 
Engenieering Sciences 1,279,242 896,948 
Agricultural Sciences 2,323,746 2,380,253 
Medical Sciences 336,320 698,984 
Board / Committee Meeting 271,866 187,387 

12,563,878 8,796,331 

4.2 Projects Completed During The Year 
Physical Sciences 1,134,374 
Chemical Sciences 405,192 
Biological Sciences 1,807,628 
Earth Sciences 682,384 
Environmental Sciences • 204,070 
Agricultural Sciences 2,945,996 900,969 

2 945 996 
milmonmslmmeLlas 

5,134,617 

4.3 Expenses For Projects During The Year 
Institutional Support 350,000 
Board / Committee Meeting 271,866 
Prior Year Adjustment - Institutional Support 8,739,090 
Prior Year Adjustment - Board / Committee Meeting 1,604,210 
Prior Year Adjustment - Honoraria / Evaluation Fee 86,251 

11,051,417 

5 IDEVELOPMENT FUND GRANT 

Opening Balance 15,398,150 17,635,279 
Add Development Project Grants 5.1 21,203,000 55,550,000 
Less Development Project Grants Refunded (862,046) 

35,739,104 73,185,279 
Less Development Project Functions 5.2 23,615,784 57,787,129 
Closing Balance 5.4 12 123,320 

unessinimime= 
15,398 150 

5.1 Development Project Grants 
Financial Support To Scientific Societies 7,000,000 5,000,000 
Popularization of Sciences In Rural Areas 1,500,000 
Participation of Scientists And Technologists In Conferences 2,455,000 3,400,000 
Career Development of Young Scientists And Technologists 900,000 650,000 
Funding of Scientific Research In Universities And Other Organizations 3,000,000 7,500,000 
Research Program for Active Scientists & Technologists 7,848 000 37,500,000 

21,203,000 55,550,000 
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5.2 Project Wise Development Expenditure 

2006 
IttIPEES, 

2005 
RtIPER:( 

Financial Support To Scientific Societies 7,000,000 5,000,000 
Popularization of Sciences In Rural Areas 1,500,000 
Participation of Scientists And Technologists In Conferences 2,455,000 3,400,000 
Career Development of Young Scientists And Technologists 900,000 650,000 
Funding of Scientific Research In Universities And Other Organizations 3,000,000 7.500,000 
Research Program for Active Scientists & Technologists 7.848,000 37,500,000 
Peer Review Work NCST Projects 16,300 
Peer Review Work PTCL Projects 72,200 

21,291,500 55.550,000 
Less Charged To Fi‘cd Assets (59,285) (507,857) 
Less Charged To Fixed Assets From l'ayables (121,475) 
Add Deprivation 2.383,569 2,866,461 

5.3 23,615,784 57,787,129 

5.3 Development Project Functions 
1 A/DA & Evaluation Fee 1.747,038 2.743.690 
Financial Support To Societies 6,977,785 4,839,473 
Grants For Research 10,788,090 38,506,386 
Registration Fee 271,300 560,936 
Postage & Stationary 31,604 200,516 
Advertisement 365.596 
Utilities 127.749 

Depreciation 2,383,569 2,866,461 
Salary to Stall 88,333 729,500 
Entertainment 25,934 
Vehicle Running And Maintainance 125,499 

Bank Charges 300 

Miscellaneous 265,830 283.542 
Amount Surrendered To 110 / Treasury 538,000 5.848,264 

Living Expenses 475,663 439,674 

Material & Supplies Contigent Expense 48,272 123,909 
23.615,784 57.787.129 

5.4 Reconciliation of Closing Development Fund Grant 
Closing Balance 12.123,320 15,398,150 

Represented By 
Fixed Assets (Net) 11,921.118 14.245.402 

Cash At Banks 287,063 1,211,789 

Prior Year Adjustment (84,861) (59.041) 
12.123,320 15,398,150 

6 LACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

Accrued Expenses 189,144 199,802 

Audit Fee Payable 20,000 20,000 

Security Deposits 27,500 30,500 

Other Liabilities 96,614 401,647 

333.258 651,949 
as 
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7 	FIXED ASSETS 

PARTICULARS 

-_-< 

COST DEPRECIATION 
BOOK VALUE 

AS AT 
30-062006 

01 - 07 - 2005 
4S AT AT 

ADDITIONS (DELETION) 
TOTAL 

30 • 06 - 2006 
RATE 

% 
AS AT 

01-074005 
FOR THE 

YEAR 
ADJUSTMENT 

FOR 
DISPOSAL 

ACCUMUL- 
ATED AS AT 

30.06-2006 

LAND- LEASEHOLD 3.713.418 - - 3.713.418 0 - • • • 3,713.418 

BUILDING 19.484,540 - • 19,484 540 5 7,818,426 583,306 - 8,401.732 11,082,808 

MOTOR VEHICLES 3.706.809 - • 3 706.809 20 3,507,007 39.960 3.546.968 159,841 

OFFICE EQUIPMENT 4.027.431 117.758 - 4.145.1E9 15 2,878,891 189,945 - 3,068.835 1,076,354 

SCIENCE EQUIPMENT • 2,919.275 - - 2,919.275 15 1,924.053 149.283 - 2.073,336 845,939 

FURNITURE & FIXTURE ' 	2,125.320 97.565 2122.885 6 • 1,140,012 64,972 - 1,204,984 1,017,901 

AIR CONDITIONERS 194.974 - • 194,974 20 191.215 752 - 191,967 3.007 

UBRARY BOOKS & FILMS 1,556,310 24.479 - 1.580,789 5 613,710 48.354 - 662,064 918,725 

RUPEES 2006 I 37,728,077 239,802 37.967,379 -• 18,073,313 1,076.572 19.149,885 18,817.994 
RUPEES 2005 37 341.652 386.425 37.:23077 1 16,917,603' 1,155,710 18,073,313 • 19.654,764 

1—k 

O 	
DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 

PARTICULARS 

. — 

COST DEPRECIATION 
AS AT 

01 • 07 - 2005 ADDITIONS 

...-- 

(TRANSFER)/ 
(DELETION) 

TOTAL 
30 • 06 - 2006 

RATE 
% 

AS AT 
01-07-2005 

FOR THE 
YEAR ADJUSTMENT 

ACCUMUL- 
ATED AS AT 

30-06-2006 .0  

BOOK VALUE 
AS AT 

30-06-2006 
/ 	. 

MOTOR VEHICLES 6.494,293 - • 6,494 293 20 2,690.205 760,818 3,451,023 3,043,270 

OFFICE EQUIPMENT 13.904,832 - • 13.904.832 IS 3,930,113 1496,208 • 5.426,321 8,478.511 

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,054.728 59,285 - 1.114 013 33 762.194 116.100 878,294 - 235.719 

FURNITURE & FIXTURE 199.287 - - 199 287 6 25.225 10,444 35,669 • 163.618 

RUPEES 2006 21.653.140 59,285 •  7,407.737 2.383.569 . 9.79E307 
RUPEES 2005 21.145.283  507,857  • 

21,712.425i 
21,653,140 	 4,541,277  2,866.461 . 7.407,738  

11,921,118i 
14,245,402  

Gimes & Uniforms 21,440 	 54,601 
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2006 
RUPEES 

2005 
RUPEES 

LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

Electricity 1,472,195 1,472,195 
Gas 145,000 145,000 
Mobile Phone 20,000 

1.617,195 1,637,195 

10 ADVANCES & PREPAYMENTS 

Advances to Stall*. 
• Fur !louse Rent )145.060 897,030 

845,066 897.030 

11 CASH AND BANK 

Cash At Bank - Saving Accounts 730,468 960,111 
Cash At Bank - Current Accounts 67,795 70,795 
Cash At Bank - PSF Development Fund Current Account 287,063 1.211,789 
Cash In Hand 31,936 33,111 
UNESCO Coupons 2,994 2,994 

1,120,256
.  2,278,800 

MM. 

12 STATUTARY SCIENTIFIC FUNCTIONS 

Research Support Grant 4.1 12,563,878 8.796,331 
Research Support Functions 50,000 70,620 
Scientific Societies & Professional Bodies 205,000 250,000 
Scientific Conferences. Meetings & Seminars 520,000 619,550 
Operation of Science Caravan 6,760.615 4,476,880 
International Liaison 626,410 
Science Promotion Activities 1,190,183 1,627,719 
Utilization of Results of Research & Transfer of 
Technology & Pilot Plant Study 662,689 5,082,594 
Awards, Prizes & Fellowship 362,316 155,928 
Nobel Laureates 1,000,000 
Information, Documentation. Publication & Library Materials, 
Subscription to International Organization & UNESCO Coupons 25,448 
Science Centre Herberia Planteria 268,233 

24,234,772 21.079,622 

13 leMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Salaries & other Benefits 23,709.410 19,051.660 
Travelling 	• 255.066 310,034 
House Rent Facility 4,427,956 3,605,296 
Ground Rent To CDA 15.722 17,944 
Electricity, Gas & Water 857.561 573,371 
Postage,Telephone & Telegram 1,265,351 1,009,422 
Printing & Stationery 263,674 248,799 
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 1,373,192 1,186,782 
Newspaper & Advertisement 72,319 75,450 
Liviries & Uniforms 21,440 54,601 
Entertainment 161.192 182,314 
Repair & Maintenance of Office Equipment 84,792 65,557 
Audit Fee 20,000 20,000 
Professional Charges 260,000 210,000 
Depreciation 1,076.572 1.155,710 
Maintenance of Office Building 226,803 131.808 
Staff Welfare Fund 100.000 100,000 
Advertisement & Publicity 104.716 95.227 
Miscellaneous 104,279 120,9311 

34.400.045 28.214.905 
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2006 	2005 
RUPEES 	RUPEES 

tpRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS 
	

4  14 

Lt).  OF EMPLOYEES 
	

4  

LATE. OF AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE 
	

4  

ISENERAL 
	

4 

Total number of employees at the year end 

Them financial statements were authorised for issue on November 08. 2006 by the Board of Trustees 

16 

17 

IS 

175 	175 

Development Functions Expenses 
Mobile Expenses Recovered 

	

(25,820) 	(1150) 
(7,768)  

	

(33.588) 	(1,150)  
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il!NANCIAL  INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSUR4 

DESCRIPTION 

INTEREST/ MARK-UP BEARING NON INTEREST/ MARK-11. P BEARING TOTAL 

Maturity 
up to 

One year 

Maturity 
after 

one_year Sub Total 

Maturity 
up to 

one year 

Maturity 
after 

oneyear Sub Total 2006 2005 

FINANCIAL ASSETS 
Adsances. Deposits & Prepayments 	• 
Cash &. Bank Balances - 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
Lxpenses Payable 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 845.066 
1.120.256 

• 
• 

845.066 
1.120,256 

845.066 
1,120.256 

897.030 
2,278,800 

• • - 1,963,122 - 1,963.122 1.965,122 3,175.830 

• • - 333,258 333,258 333,258 651.949 

• • • 333,258 - 333,258 333,258 651,949 

15.1 Financial instruments and risk management 
Ostia'', asks aiming boni the Foundassolfs financial instiuments ate limited 

15.1.1 Concentration of Credit Risk 
Coedit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the ieponing date if counter panics failed completely to perform as connected 
The Foundanon applies credit limit to its beneficiailes and does not have significant exposure to individual beneficiai ies 

15.1.2 Interest Rate Risk 
Interest sate risk arises from the possibility that changes in molest rates will effect the value of financial instrnments 
The Foundation is not exposed to any Interest Rate Risk. 
The effective interest rates as at lune 30. 2006. for the financial instruments are green in the relevant notes, if any 

15.1.3 Foreign Exchange Risk Management 
l'oieign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transaction with foreign undertakings 
The Foundation believes that it is not exposed to major foreign exchange risk 

15.2 Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
'Ilse emir% amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities applommmes to their 11111 value 

• The foundation has received a sum of Rs 500.000,000/• as endowment fund from the Government of Pakistan This sum 
being given exclusively for endowment has not been siscluded in these financial statements 

- Corresponding figures for the previous year have been re-arranged, wherevei necessary. 
fm the purpose of tompanson. 

• Figures have been rounded off to Ike neatest nipee 

TRUSTEE 
	

CHAIRMAN 	  

alboabad No 	OM 2111* 
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PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 
STATEMENT OF DEVELOPMENT FUNDS RECEIPT 84 EXPENDITURE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J 
I PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 

DEVELOPNIENT FUND 
NCST PSTIC CDYST FOSTRLSA00 PSRA Laa RPASTP CGLS PRNCST PRPTCL TOTAL 

OPENING BALANCE 851,42:1 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 1,080 232,163 107,120 1,211,789 
REFUND OF EXPENSE (Prior year ad)ustmei 10,620 Nil Nil N.l Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 15.200 25,820 
FUNDS RECEIVED DURING THE YEAR Nil 2,455,000 900,000 3,000,000 Nil 7,000,000 7,848,000 Nil Nil Nil 21,203,000 
REFUND OF AMOUNTS TO MINISTRY (862,046) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil (862,046) 

21,578,563 FUNDS AVAILABLE DURING THE YEA - 2,455,000 900,000 3,000,000 - 7,000,000 7,848,000 1,080 252,163 122,320 

EXPENDITURE 
TA/DA & Evaluation Fee 15,000 44,688 16,000 72,200 147,888 
Salary of Scientists & Technologists - 
Office Equipment 59,285 59,285 
Transport - 
Cumputer Equipment - Transferred - 
Office Equipment - Transferred 
Financial Support to Societies 6,977,785 6,977,785 
Grant for Research 239,443 2,938,647 7,610,000 10,788,090 
Participation in Conferences . 
Travel Expenses (Abroad) 1 ,599,150 1,599,150 
F‘a!uation Fee & Technical Meetings - 
Conference Reg Fee 271,300 271,300 
Living Expenses 475,663 475,663 
Stationary & Postage 19,605 1,499 10,500 31,604 
Advertisement - 
On Site Monitoring - 
Material, Supplies & Contigent Exp 48,272 48,272 
Consultancy 88,333 88,333 
Telephone - 
Salary to Staff 
Entertainment 
POI/spit of Vehicles - 
Bank Charges 300 300 
Advacce for Expenses - Furniture - 
Advance for Fabrication - 
Miscellaneous 89,282 15,166 11,713 149,667 265,830 
Surrcndered to FTO 538,000 538,000 
Utilities - 
Transport - 
Total 2,455,000 900,000 3,000,000 - 7,000,000 7,848,000 - 16,300 72,200 21,291,500 

• 
Balance 	 - 	 I 	- 	 - 	 - 	 - 	I 	- 	I 	1,080 	235,863 	50,120 	287,063 



PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION 
ACT-1973 



Annexure-I 

PAKISTAN SCIENCE FOUNDATION ACT 1973 
National Assembly of Pakistan Islamabad, the 2nd February 1974 

The following Acts of the National Assembly received the assent of the President on 
the 31st  January 1973 and hereby published for general information. 

Act No. III of 1973 

An Act to provide for the establishment of the Pakistan Science Foundation. 

Whereas it is expedient to provide for the establishment of the Pakistan Science 
Foundation and for matters ancillary there to, 

It is hereby enacted as follows:- 

	

1. 	Short title, extent and commencement. (1) This Act may be called the Pakistan 
Science Foundation Act, 1973. 

2) It extends to the whole of Pakistan 

3) It shall come into force at once. 

	

2. 	Definitions. In this Act, unless there is anything repugnant in the subject or context. 

a) "Board" means the Board of Trustees of the Foundation; 

b) "Chairman": means the Chairman of the Foundation; and 
c) "Foundation" means the Pakistan Science Foundation established under this 

Act. 

	

3. 	Establishment of the Foundation. (1) As soon as may be after the commencement 
of this Act, the Federal Government may, by notification in the official Gazette, establish a 
Pakistan Science Foundation to promote and finance scientific activities having a bearing on 
the socio-economic needs of the country. 

(2) The Foundation shall be a body corporate by the name of the Pakistan Science 
Foundation, having perpetual succession and a common seal, with power, subject to the 
provision of this Act, to acquire, hold and dispose of property, both movable and immovable, 
and shall be the said name sue and be sued. 

(3) The Head Office of the Foundation shall be at Islamabad. 

	

4. 	Functions of the Foundation: (1) The Foundation shall function as a financing 
agency for---- 

i) The establishment of comprehensive scientific and technological information and 
dissemination centers; 
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ii) The promotion of basic and fundamental research in the universities and other 
institutions on scientific problems relevant to the socio-economic development of 
the country; 

iii) The utilization of the results of scientific and technological research including 
pilot plant studies to prove the technical and economic feasibility of processes 
found to be promising on a laboratory scale; 

iv) The establishment of science centers, clubs, museums, herbaria and planetaria, 

v) The promotion of scientific societies, associations and academies engaged in 
spreading the cause of scientific knowledge in general or in the pursuit of a 
specific scientific discipline or technology in particular; 

vi) The organization of periodical science conferences, symposia and seminars; 

vii) The exchange of visits of scientists and technologists with other countries; 

viii) The grant of awards, prizes and fellowships to individuals engaged in developing 
processes, products and inventions of consequence to the economy of the country; 
and 

ix) Special scientific surveys not undertaken by any other organization and collection 
of scientific statistics related to the scientific effort of the country. 

(2) The Foundation shall also; 

i) Review the progress of scientific research sponsored by it and evaluate the results 
of such research; 

ii) Maintain a National Register of highly qualified and talented scientists of 
Pakistan including engineers and doctors, in or outside the country and to assist 
them, in collaboration with the concerned agencies in finding appropriate 
employment; and 

iii) Establish liaison with similar bodies in other countries. 

(3) In the performance of its functions, the Foundation shall be guided on questions of 
policy by the instructions, if any, given to it by the Federal Government which shall 
be the sole judge as to whether a question is a question of policy. 

5. 	Board of Trustees. (1) The general direction, conduct and management of the affairs 
of the Foundation, including administration of its funds, shall vest in a Board of Trustees 
consisting of the following members namely; 

Whole-time members 

1) the Chairman; 

ii) one eminent scientist; 

iii) the Director of Finance; to be appointed by the President; 

Part-time members 

iv) the Chairman of the National Science Council; 
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v) four scientists to be nominated by the National Science Council; and 

vi) eleven eminent scientists to be nominated by the President; 

(2) The remuneration and other terms and conditions of service of the Chairman and 
the two other whole-time members of the Board shall be such as may be determined by the 
President. 

6. Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board shall be the Chairman of the 
Foundation and shall be appointed for a term of three years from amongst the eminent 
scientists of the country having experience of research and scientific administration. 

7. Term of Members of the Board. The members of the Board, other than the ex-officio 
member, shall hold office for a term of three years and shall be eligible for re-appointment or 
re-nomination, as the case may be. 

8. Meetings of the Board. (1) The meeting of the Board shall be held at least twice a 
year and shall be presided over by the Chairman or, in his absence, by its whole-time 
scientist member. 

(2) All decisions at a meeting of the Board shall be taken by a majority of the votes of 
the members present and voting. 

9. Quorum at the Meeting of the Board. To constitute a quorum at a meeting of the 
Board not less than nine members shall be present. 

10. Executive Committee. There shall be an Executive Committee consisting of the 
Chairman and the two whole-time members of the Board. 

11. Delegation of Powers. The Board may, from time to time, delegate the Chairman or 
the Executive Committee such of its power and functions as it may consider necessary. 

12. Adhoc Committees. The Foundation may set up adhoc committees consisting of 
university professors and other leading scientists and experts to scrutinize applications for 
financial assistance for carrying out scientific research submitted to the Foundation by the 
universities or other institutions or by individual scientific workers or groups of scientific 
workers and to review and evaluate the results of research sponsored by the Foundation. 
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13. 	Funds. The funds of the Foundation shall consist of: 

a) Grants made by the Federal Government and the Provincial Governments; 

b) Donation and endowments; and 

c) Income from other sources 

	

14. 	Budget. The Foundation shall cause to be prepared and approve a statement of its 
receipt and expenditure for each financial year. 

	

15. 	Accounts and Audit. (1) The funds of the Foundation shall be kept in a personal 
ledger account of the Foundation with the State Bank of Pakistan or with any Branch of the 
National Bank of Pakistan acting as an agent of the State Bank. 

(2) The accounts of the Foundation shall be maintained in such form and manner as the 
Auditor-General of Pakistan may determine in consultation with the Federal Government. 

(3) The accounts of the Foundation shall be audited by one or more auditors who are 
chartered accountants with in the meaning of the Chartered Accountants Ordinance., 1961 (X 
of 1961) and are appointed by the Foundation in consultation with the Auditor-General of 
Pakistan. 

	

16. 	Appointment of Officers and Servants. (1) The Foundation may appoint such 
officers and servants and engage such consultants or experts, as it may consider necessary for 
the efficient performance of its functions, on such terms and conditions as it may deem fit. 

(2) In fixing the terms and conditions of service of its officers and servants, the 
Foundation shall, as nearly as may be, conform to the scales of pay, allowances and 
conditions of service applicable to the corresponding class of employees of the Federal 
Government. 

	

17. 	Annual Reports. (1) The annual report of the Foundation, which shall among other 
things, clearly bring out the benefits accruing to the nation as a result of the activities 
sponsored by the Foundation, shall be prepared by the Chairman and submitted through the 
Board to the Federal Government alongwith the audited accounts of the Foundation. 

(2) The annual report alongwith the audited accounts of the Foundation shall be laid 
before the National Assembly. 

	

18. 	Regulations. The Foundation may make regulations for the efficient conduct of its 
affairs. 

	

19. 	Repeal. The Pakistan Science Foundation Ordinance, 1972 (LII of 1972), is hereby 
repealed. 
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LIST OF PROJECTS APPROVED 
UNDER NON-DEVELOPMENT 

BUDGET DURING 2005-2006 



Annexure-II 

LIST OF PROJECTS APPROVED UNDER NON-DEVELOPMENT BUDGET 
DURING 2005-2006 

Project Cost 
(Rs.) 

S. No. Title & No of Project 

BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES 
1. Formulation of low cost quality 

fish feed from indigenous raw 
materials and its effects on 
growth and survival of major 
carps. 
PSF/R&D/S-SU/Bio (287) 

EARTH SCIENCES 
2. Prospecting of mineral through 

stream sediments in Bela 
ophiolite, Lasbela-Khuzdar, 
Pakistan. 
PSF/Res/S-KU/Earth (75) 

ENGINEERING 
3. Decision support system for 

better crop productivity and 
environmental quality. 
PSF/R&D/P-PU/Engg (53) 

Name & Address of PI 

Dr. Naseem Tariq Narejo 
Assistant Professor, 
Fresh water Biology & 
Fisheries, 
University of Sindh, 
Jamshoro. 

Dr. Allah Baksh, 
Assistant Professor, 
Department of Irrigation 
& Drainage, 
University of Agriculture, 
Faisalabad. 

4,59,122/- 

9,86,799/- 

Prof. Dr. Shahid Naseem, 	8,53,230/- 
Department of Geology, 
University of Karachi. 

MEDICAL SCIENCES 
4. 

	

	Helicobactor pylori infection in 
children: Prevalence and genetic 
characterization of local strain. 

Dr. Rakhshanda Bilal, 	10,03,667/- 
Pakistan Institute for 
Nuclear Science & 
Technology, Nilore, 
Islamabad. 
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DETAILS OF MONITORING AND 
EVALUATION OF ON-GOING 
PROJECTS DURING 2005-2006 



Annexure-III 

DETAILS OF MONITORING AND EVALUATION OF ON-GOING PROJECTS 
DURING 2005-2006 

I. NON-DEVLOPMENT 

a. 	Semi-annual Reports 

2. F-AU/Agr (295) 

3. F-AU/Agr (299) 

Project Title 

Development of sustainable rice wheat 
cropping system through management 
of legumes. 
Weed Management in Wheat (Triticum 
astivum L. em Thell) in NWFP. 
To assess the causes of ratoon crop 
failure in sugar cane in NWFP 
province. 
Use of Isozyme markers in chickpea 

breeding. 
Taxonomy and biology of hierogly pus 
spp. (Hemacridinae: Acrididae: 
Orthoptera) 
Germination capacity of stored pollen 
of some economically important plants 
and their maintenance 
Development of multiplex PCR for 
diagnosis of salmonella typhi and 
detection of its drug resistance. 
Optimization of enzyme phytase for 
improving the nutritional value of 
defatted oil seed cakes in poultry. 
DNA finger printing approaches to 

study draught tolrance in cotton. 
Cloning of raw starch digesting alpha 
amylase from bacillus s.p. and its 
expresson in E.coli. 
Tissue culture & genetic transformation 
studies in banana (Musa) for disease 
eradication. 
Detection of saline intrusions in the 
right bank coastal sediments of 
southern Sindh. 

S. No. Project No. 

1. 	F-AU/Agr (291) 

4. P-NIAB/Bio (324) 

5. S-SU/Bio (338) 

6. S-KU/Bio (345) 

7. P-NIBGE/ 
Biotech/Med (39) 

8. P-LCW/ Biotech/Ind 
(41) 

9. P-NIBGE/ 
Biotech/Med (43) 

10. Biotech/P-
NICBGE/En v (48) 

11. R&D/P-UAA/ 
Biotech (220) 

12. S-SU/Earth (65) 

Reports 

3rd  semi-annual 

3rd  semi-annual 

3rd  semi-annual 

3rd  semi-annual 

3rd semi-annual 

3rd  semi-annual 

2nd  semi-annual 

2nd  semi-annual 

2" semi-annual 

lst  semi-annual 

lst  semi-annual 

3rd  semi-annual 
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13.  C-PMNH/Earth (74) Geology and economic resources of 
jurassic to early creteceous of upper 

Ist  semi-annual 

Indus Basin. 
14.  C-PINSTECH/Engg 

(39) 
Study of bonding between Zircoloy and 
stainless steel. 

2nd  semi-annual 

15.  F-PU/Envr (201) Heavy Metal Contamination of Soil, 
water, fruit and vegetables through 
sewage water 

2" semi-annual 

16.  R&D/F-AU/Envr 
(202) 

Residual behaviour of pesticides in 
crops. 

Ist  semi-annual 

17.  US-NSF/C-
QU/Phys(18) 

Magnetic and structural studies of nano 
particles. 

3rd  semi-annual 

18.  C-QU/Phys (127) Laser induced breakdown spectroscopy. 3rd  semi-annual 
19.  C-QU/Phys (128) Investigation about iron related defects 

in silicon. 
2" semi-annual 

20.  C/PMRC/Med (193) Management of viral hepatitis in Rawal 
community. 

lst  semi-annual 

26. S-KU/Bio(281) 

27. F-AU/Agr (291) 

28. F-AU/Agr (299) 

29. P-AU/Bio(300) 

30. S-SU/Bio(338) 

Cloning of raw starch digesting alpha amylase from bacillus s.p. 
and its expression in E. coli. 
Synthesis of variably substituted chalcones, thiochalcones and 
iminochalcones having potent industrial application. 
Capillary gas chromatographic determination of biologically 
active amines and amino acids by precolumn derivatization. 
Geology and economic resources of jurassic to early creteceous 
of upper Indus Basin. 

Studies on the establishment and improvement of clovers 
(Triflium spp.) for nitrogen availability and soil management 
under agro-climatic conditions of Azad Kashmir. 
Effect of anxiety and tolerance development induced by 
ansiolytic on reproductive function in rats. 
Development of sustainable rice wheat cropping system through 
management of legumes. 
To assess the causes of ratoon crop failure in sugar cane in 
NWFP province. 
Studies on co-culture system of buffalo embroyo. 

Taxonomy and biology of hierogly pus spp. (Hemacridinae: 
Acrididae: Orthoptera) 

b. First Annual Reports 

21. Biotech/P-
NIBGE/Env (48) 

22. C-QU/Chem (203) 

23. S-SU/Chem (381) 

24. C-PMNH/Earth (74) 

c. Second Annual Reports 

25. 	AJK-UCR/Agr (275) 
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31. S-KU/Bio (345) 

32. P-AU/Bio (347) 

33. P-NIBG/ Biotech/Ind 
(32) 

34. P-LCW Biotech/And 
(41) 

35. S-KU/Chem (367) 

36. AJK/UAJK/Earth 
(70) • 

37. C-PCRWR/Engg 
(78) 

38. 	C-QU/Phys (130) 

d. Final Technical Reports 

39. S-KU/Agr (285) 

40. F-AU/Agr (291) 

41. F-AU/Agr (296) 

42. F-AU/Agr (300) 

43. P-AU/Bio (246) 

44. S-KU/Bio (314) 

45. C-PMNH/Bio (315) 

46. P-NIBGE/Bio (317) 

47. P-NIAB/Bio (324) 

48. AJK-UCR/Bio (333) 

49. 	C-QU/Bio (351) 

.50. 	Biotech/P-CEMB/Ind 
(21)  

Germination capacity of stored pollen of some economically 
important plants and their maintenance. 
Development and molecular characterization of genotype 
vaccine (local isolates) against auvim coccidiosis. 
Mutation breeding of lactobaccillus delbrukii for the hyper 
production of lactic acid. 
Optimization of enzyme phytase for improving the nutritional 
value of defatted oil seed cakes in poultry. 
Direct and indirect electro-chemicals attack on cancer cells. 

Biostratigraphic & tectonic analysis of paleogene nocus of 
Neatothys ocean in Azad Jammu & Kashmir and Hazara of the 
Himalayas of Pakistan. 
Assessment of water resources and development of strategic 
water utilization plan in Pothwar region for its sustainable 
management. 
Study of soliton formation ITG modes and energy deposition for 
cluster-ion beams in dust contaminated plasma. 

Studies on the field efficacy of the entomopathogenic nematodes 
as biopesticides. 
Development of sustainable rice wheat cropping system through 
management of legumes. 
Integrated management of noxious weed in chickpea in southern 
districts of NWFP (Diagnostic Phase). 
Estimating slope steepness in corporate residue and FYM effects 
on runoff, erosion, soil properties and soil fertility buildup in 
eroded lands of Northern NWFP. 
Development of subunit recombinant vaccine (s) and sensitive 
diagnostic test for controlling infectious bursal disease of 
poultry. 
Aerobilogical studies of Karachi and adjacent areas in relation to 
allergy. 
Ecological studies of the reptilian fauna of Cholistan desert. 

Introduction of salinity tolerance in plants through their use of 
halotolarence comparing genes from bacteria and fungi-A 
transgeneic approach. 
Use of Isozyme markers in chickpea breeding. 

Distribution, population status and conservation of chear 
pheasant (catraus wallichi). 
Ecology and conservation of canides in the salt range Pakistan 
with focus on Indian wolf (canis lupus pallipes). 
Process development for the manufacture of bacillus 
thuringlensis bio-pesticides. 
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51. P- 
NIBGE/Biotech/Agr 
(33) 

52. P-NIAB/ 
Biotech/Agr (38) 

53. P-PU/Chem (339) 

54. C-NARC/Envr (59) 

55. C-QU/Phys (121) 

56. C-QU/Phys (128) 

Engineering Phage-type chimeric promoters to over express Bi-
functional proteins in rice protoplastids to develop biosafe 
transgeneic plants. 
Characterization of virulent races of bright and wilt pathogenes 
using biological & DNA molecular markers techniques and 
evaluation of chickpea germplasm for resistance against these 
diseases. 
Preparation and application Al, Ga Ag, AU Sn and Ti 
spectroscopic and pyrolysis studies of metal/metal oxides 
deposition precursors. 
Passerine birds in cotton based agro-ecosystem of Punjab in a 
preliminary study to investigate the risks of pesticides. 
Preparation and characterization of Cd-Te based solar cells and 
related thin film materials. 
Investigation about iron related defects in silicon. 

II. 	DEVELOPMENT (FUNDING OF S&T RESEARCH IN 
UNIVERSITIES AND OTHER R&D ORGANIZATIONS) 

a. Semi-Annual Reports 

S.No. Project No. 	 Project Title. 
57. R&D/P-AU/Agr (52) 

	
Impact of World Trade Liberalization on 
the production and export of Kinnow: 
Prospects and Problems. 

58. R&D/P-AU/Bio(55) 
	

Effects of different wearing protocols on 
the immune system in buffalo calves 
and prophylactic application of 
levaminsol 

Reports. 
lst  semi-
annual 

2nd semi- 

annual 

b. First Annual Reports 

S. No Project No. Project Title. 
59.  R&D/P-LPRUAgr (31) Genetic Evaluation of Nili Ravi Buffaloes to Enhance Milk 

Production. 
60.  R&D/P-UAAR/Agr (69) Promotion of High Yielding and Drought Resistant Canola 

Cultivars in Pothwar. 
61.  R&D/P-UAAR/Agr (71) Management of Black scruff of Potato. 
62.  R&D/F-AU/Agr (72) Grain and Nutrient Production Potential of Maize- bean 

Intercropping in Mountain Agriculture. 
63.  R&D/P-AU/Agr (74) Developing Forecasting Models for Major Crops. 
64.  R&D/F-AU/Agr (128) Restoring Productivity of Eroded lands Through Integrated 

Plant Nutrient Management for Sustained Production. 
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65. 	R&D/F-N1FA/Agr (152) 

66. R&D/FAU/Agr (183) 

67. R&D/P-BZU/Bio (34) 

68. R&D/C-NARC/Bio (106) 

69. R&D/UA/AK/Bio (124) 

70. R&D/F-GIK/Engg (76) 

71. R&D/F-AU/Agr (107) 

72. R&D/C-NARC/Agr(115) 

73. R&D/UA/AK/Bio (124) 

74. R&D/F-NIFA/BIO (147) 
75. R&D/C-PMNH/Bio(181) 

76. R&D/C-PMNH/Bio(225) 

Development of oilseed Brassica Genotypes for Industrial 
uses through Induced Mutations, Classical Breeding and 
In-vitro Culture Techniques. 
True potato seed, a seed source of potato production in 
NWFP. 
Some studies to improve litter size and meat production in 
sheep. 
Anti nutritional factors in cereals and legumes and their 
possible removal. 
Improvement and Establishment of Seabuckthorn 
(Hypophae rhammaides L) a Multipurpose plant in 
Mountainous regions of Azad Kashmir. 
Documentation of indigenous Knowledge about Medicinal 
Plant of Peshawar 
Synthesis, Labeling, Characterization & Biodistribution of 
Cheme Tadic Peptiets for Inflammation Scintigraphy. 
Comparative studies of Acid Phosphorus from Fish liver 
and Eggs. Isolation, Purification, some Kinetic Properties, 
Amino Acid Composition and Binary Structure. 
Experimental and Analytical studies of Gasketed and Non-
gasketed Flanged Pipe Joints to Determine the Joint load 
Capacity for improved scanning Capability and their 
Implementations. 

Project Title. 
Integrated Management of stored chickpea Collosobruchus 
chinensis Linnaeus. 
Management of Black scruff of Potato. 
Development of oilseed Brassica Genotypes for Industrial 
uses through induced mutations classical breeding and in 
vitro culture Techniques. 
Validation of Milk urea as On-farm Diagnostic Test for 
Evaluating Protein status of Milking Cows and Buffaloes. 
Management of Soil Borne Diseases in Vegetable 
Nurseries using Solarization and Amendments. 
Improvement and Establishment of Seabackthorn 
(Hypophae rhammaides L) a Multipurpose plant in 
Mountainous regions of Azad Kashmir. 
Biological control of maize stem Borer 
Ethno-Botanical Studies, Taxonomy and Pictorial 
Encyclopedia of Economically Important Plants from 
Mountainous Regions of Northern Pakistan. 
Documentation of indigenous Knowledge about Medicinal 
Plant of Peshawar 

77. R&D/C-PMNH/Bio(225) 

78. R&D/P- 
INMOL/Chem(157) 

79. R&D/F-GU/Chem(173) 

c. Second Annual Reports 

S. No Project No. 
80. R&D/P-UAAR/Agr(70) 

81. R&D/P-UAAR/Agr (71) 
82. R&D/F-NIFA/Agr ( 152) 
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83. R&D/F-NIFA/Agr (151) 

84. R&D/F-AU/Agr (170) 

85. R&D/C-NARC/Bio (1) 

86. R&D/C-NARC/Bio (18) 

87. R&D/C-NARC/Bio (127) 

88. R&D/P-CSIR/Bio (130) 

89. R&D/C-PMNH/Bio (166) 

90. R&D/ S-AKU/Bio (178) 

91. R&D/S-Ku/Bio(194) 

92. R&D/Q-PARC/Agr (105) 

93. R&D/F-NIFA/Agr (151) 

94. R&D/P-SSRI/Agr (161) 

95. R&D/F-NIFA/Agr (181) 

96. R&D/C-NARC/Bio (106) 

97. R&D/C-NARC/Bio(127) 

Synthesis & Structural Characterization of Bimetallic 
precursor for Chemical Vapour Deposition. 
(i) Generation of Cold Plasma by 13.56 MHz RF source 
and its Characterization by optical Emission Spectroscopy 
and Longmuir Probe (ii) Study of X-rays Emitted from a 
Compact Diode and a Plasma Focus. 

Project Title. 
Impact of Sanitary and Phytosanitary Requirements of 
WTO on Agricultural Experts from Pakistan. 
Incidence of Internal, External and Blood Parasites and 
Hydatid Cysts sheep and goats Slaughtered at the Quetta, 
Kachlak (Distt. Pishin) and mastung slaughter houses. 
Bread wheat Improvement for Drought Tolerance and 
High Yield Potential. 
Utilization of Improvement of Wheat in Salt affected areas 
of Peshawar. 
Assessment of toxinogenic fungi and mycotoxic 
contamination in Stored Food Grain. 
Collection, Conservation and Characterization of 
Vegetable Crop Biodiversity. 
Study on the wilt Disease of chickpea for identification of 
resistance 
Ideation, Identification and Bioactivity of Natural Product, 
from Murray panic late etc. 
Ecology and Zoo-geography of butterfly fare of moist-
temperate mountains of Pakistan. 
Studies On Calcium channel Blocking activities of 
indigenous medicinal plants 
Studies on the Biomonitors of trace Metal in Coastal & 
Estuarine water of Karachi 
Incidence of Internal, External and Blood Parasites; and 
Hydatid Cysts in Sheep and Goats Slaughtered at the 
Quetta, Kuchlak (Distt. Pishin) and Mastung Slaughter-
Houses. 
Bread wheat Improvement for Drought tolerance and High 
Yield Potential. 
Standardization of Composting Technology and use of 
Compost for Crops Production. 
Introctuion of High Yieling Mungbean Genotypes in 
NWFP to increased Production. 
Anti nutritional factors in cereals and legumes and their 
possible removal. 
Study on the wilt Disease of chickpea for identification of 
resistance 

83. R&D/C-QU/Chem (218) 

84. R&D/C-QU/Phy (199) 

d. Final Technical Reports 

S. No Project No. 
85. R&D/P-AU/Agr (44) 

86. R&D/Q-PARC/Agr (105) 

4.r" 
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102.  R&D/P-CS1R/Bio (130) Ideation, Identification and Bioactivity of Natural Product, 
from Murray panic late etc. 

103.  R&D/C-PMNHJBio (166) Ecology and Zool-geography of butterfly fare of moist-
temperate man tare of Pakistan. 

104.  R&D/P-NIBGE/ Bio(168) Development of Replicasc Mediated CLCUD Cotton leaf 
curl disease resistance in cotton. 

105.  R&D/P-UAAR/Agr (70) Integrated 	management 	of 	Stored 	Chickpea 	Beetle 
Callosobruchus Chinesis Linnaeus. 

106.  R&D/P-UAAR/Agr (85) Potential of Mungbean and Mashbean to fix Nitrogen and 
Benefit the Subsequent Wheat crop in Peshawar. 

107.  R&D/C-NARC/Bio (1) Assessment 	of 	texinogenic 	fungi 	and 	mycotoxic 
contamination in Stored Food Grain. 

108.  CDYST/C-NARC/Bio(11) Gene Transfer Technology for the Induction of Disease 
Resistance in Rice. 

109.  CDYST/Bio (12) Developing disease Resistance in Tomato through Genetic 
Engineering. 

110.  R&D/C-NARC/Bio(18) Collection, conservation and characterization of vegetable 
crop biodiversity. 

111.  R&D/P-BZU/Bio (34) Some studies to improve litter size and meat production in 
sheep. 

112.  R&D/P-AU/Bio (46) Enhancing nutritional worth of low quality crop resistance 
through 	chemical 	and 	biological 	treatments 	and 	its 
influence of palatability , voluntary feed intake, digestion 
kinetics and production performance of buffaloes. 

113.  R&D/ S-AKU/Bio (178) Studies 	On 	Calcium 	channel 	Blocking 	activities 	of 
indigenous medicinal plants 

114.  R&D/S-HEJ/Biotech (93) The Use of DNA Fingerprinting to Evaluate The Genetic 
Stability of Banana Plants Produced Via in Vitro Culture 

III. DEVELOPMENT (CAREER DEVELOPMENT OF YOUNG 
SCIENTISTS AND TECHNOLOGISTS (CDYST) 

a. Second Annual Report 

b. Final Technical Reports 

S. no Project No. 

115. CDYST/S-ZMU/Bio(40) 

Project Title 

Influence of different copper and aluminum levels on 
feather renewal and production characteristics of the layers 
in the second production cycle. 

Project Title 

Relationship of Adiponectin, Leptin, and lipid profile to 
diabetes and diabetic complication i.e. Ischemic heart 
disease in Pakistani Females. 

Sr. No Project No. 

115. CDYST/P-PRI/ Bio (1) 
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117.  CDYST/F-VRUBio(20) Genetic Improvement of Dairy Goats in NWFP. 
118.  CDYST/S-PCSfR/ Bio(24) Penaeid Shrimp Maturation in Captivity. 
119.  CDYST/P-BZU/Bio(29) Some Studies on the Fascioliasis in Goats Maintained 

around Multan. 
120.  CDYST/C-NARC/Bio(4) Identification of drought Tolerant Chickpea Genotypes 

using Physiological and Agronomic Traits. 
121.  CDYST/S-KU/Bio(21) Abundance and Seasonal Variation of Major Zooplankton 

Species at Miani Hor Lagoon and Adjacent Open Waters, 
Balochistan. 

122.  CDYST/S-KU/Bio(22) Study of Some Imposexed Gastropod Species in the 
Polluted Marine Waters along the Coast of Karachi. 

123.  CDYST/S-KU/Bio(31) Seawater tolerance of Halosarchia idica from Gadani 
Coast. 

124.  CDYST/S-SPGC/Bio(16) Screening 	of 	Marine 	Plants 	for 	their 	Nematicidal 
Properties against Root Knot Nematodes (Meloidogyne 
javanica). 

125.  CDYST/C-NARC/ Research Study for the Development of a Vegetable Stand 
Engg(10) Establishment Machine. 

IV. R&D-INDUSTRY PROGRAMME 

a. First Annual Reports 

S. No. Project No Project Title 

1.  PSFALG/002/03 Disbondment of Epoxy Coating & Integrity of Gas 
Transmission Pipeline. 

2.  PSFILG/029/03 Pharmacognosy of Medicinal Plants of Pakistan 
(determination of active constituents). 

3.  PSF/ILG/018/03 Bio-ecology and population Management of the House 
Crow (Corvus splendens) in Islamabad Area. 

4.  PSFALG/019/03 Inventory of the Flora of Margalla Hills National Park. 

5.  PSFALG/024/03 Inventory of the Faunistic Diversity of Margalla Hills 

National Park. 
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LIST OF PUBLICATIONS 
PRODUCED THROUGH PSF 

FUNDED PROJECTS COMPLETED 
DURING 2005-2006 



Annexure-IV 

LIST OF PUBLICATIONS PRODUCED THROUGH PSF FUNDED PROJECTS 
COMPLETED DURING 2004-2005 

1. 	Non Development Projects 

Project No. 	Publication 

C-NARC/Agr (266) 	i. Fahmeed, F., Mannan, S. and Din, A. (2003). Identification and 
characterization of phytoplama in potato by electron-
microscopy. Abstract, 8th  National Conference of Plant 
Sciences, University of Karachi. 24-28 Oct. 2003. 

ii. Din-A., Fahmeed, F., Mannan, S. (2002). Incidence of 
phytoplasma diseases in potato growing areas of Balochistan 
confirmed through fluorescent microscopy. 33"1  All Pakistan 
Science Conference, University of Agriculture Faisalabad. 28-
31 Oct.2002. 

iii. Fahmeed, F., Din, A., and Ahmad, I. (2001). Incidence of 
phytoplasmal diseases in potato growing areas of Punjab confirmed 
through fluorescent microscopy. 3"1  National Conference of Plant 
Pathology at NARC, Islamabad. 1-3 Oct. 2001. 

S-KU/Agr (269) 	i. 	Zia-ur-Rehman, Amer-Zareen, A., Zaki, M . J. and Javed, 
N.(2001). Use of bacteria in the control of Meloidogyne 
javanica. 3"I  National Conference of Plant Pathology, 1-3 Oct. 
2001, NARC, Islamabad. Pp. 122-125. 

ii. Khan, A., M. Javed Zaki and A. Ghaffar (2003). Use of 
Rhizobium species in the control of root knot nematodes. 81h  
National Conference of Plant Sciences, University of Karachi. 

S-KU/Agr (285) 	i. Shahina, F., Manzar, H. and Tabassum, K.A. (2004). Symbiotic 
bacteria Xenorhabdus and Photorhabdus associated with 
entomopathogenic nematodes in Pakistan. Pak. J. Nematol.. 22: 
117-128. 

ii. Tabassum, KA. & Shahina, F. (2004 a). Re-description of 
Steinernema feltiae Filipjev, 1934 (Nematoda: 
Steinernematidae) from Pakistan. Pak. J. Nematol.. 22: 1-8. 

iii. Tabassum, KA. & Shahina, F. (2004b). In vitro mass rearing of 
different species of entomopathogenic nematodes in monoxenic 
solid culture. Pak. J. Nematol. 22: 167-175. 

iv. Tabassum, K.A., Shahina, F. & Abid, B. (2005). Occurrence of 
entomopathogenic (EPN) nematodes in Pakistan. Pak. J. 
Nematol., 23: 99-102. 
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v. Shahina, F., Manzar, H. & Abid, B. (2005). Effect of sa\t\l Id 
temperature stress on survival and infectivity of infective 
juveniles of entomopathogenic nematodes. Pak J. Nematol., 23: 
41-44. 

vi. Bhatti, M.I., Abid, B., Manzar, H. & Tabassum, K.A. (2005). 
EPN as biological control against cotton (Gossypium hirsutum 
L.) pests. Poster presentation. Pak. J. Nematol.. 23: 128-129. 

2. 	Development Projects 

Project No. 	Publication 
R&D/C- 	i) 	Iftikhar, S., Ahmad, I. and Merz, U. (2006). Distribution of 
NARC/Agr (14) 	Spongospora subterranean f. sp.Subterranean in potato growing 

areas of Pakistan. Abstract. American Journal of Potato 
Research. 82:1,75. 

ii) Iftikhar, S., Ahmad, I. and Merz, U. (2006). Alternate hosts of 
Spongospora subterranean f. sp. Subterranean, the causal 
organism of powdery scab of potato. Abstract. American Journal 
of Potato Research. 82:1,74-75 

iii) Iftikhar, S., Asad, S., Burney, K. and Rattu, A. (2006). Screening 
of potato varieties againstSpongospora subterranean under 
natural field conditions. International Symposium on Recent 
Trend in Plant Disease Management-at fifth Meeting of Pakistan 
Psychopathological Society at the University of Karachi. 
Dec.20-22, (2006).p32. 

iv) Iftikhar, S., Rattu, A. R., Asad, S. and Burney, K. (2006). 
Susceptibility of potato cultivars to 

Spongospora subterranean under field conditions. (Submitted in 
On Line Jounal-UK-"Archives of Physiopathology and Plant 
Protection".) 

R&D/F-AU/Agr 	i) 	Ahmed, S., J. Iqbal and Irfan-ud-Din. Time of application effect 
(36) 	 of phytobiociedes on powdery Mildew and yield in pea 

(Submitted to Sarhad J Agriculture) 

ii) Ahmed, S. and Irfan-ud-Din, Yield loss estimation in pea from 
powdery mildew epiphytotics under natural field conditions 
(Submitted to Sarhad J. Agriculture) 

iii) Ahmed, S. and Irafn-ud-Din. Field assay of promising 
phytobiocides vs. fungicides for control of powdery mildew in 
pea (submitted to Sarhad J. Agriculture) 
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R&D/CDYST/S- 	i) 	Jaleel, F. et. al (2006) Relationship Between Adiponectin, 
ZMU/Bio (40) 	 Glycemic Control and Blood Lipids in Diabetic Type 2 

Postmenopausal Women with and without Complication of 
Ischemic Heart Disease. Accepted in clin chim acta-(in press) 
(online available) 

ii) Jaleel, F. et. al (2006) Leptin and Blood Lipid Levels in 
Postmenopausal Diabetic Women With and Without 
Complication of Ischemic Heart Disease (IHD)-Submitted in 
Medical Science Monitor-USA 

iii) Jaleel, A. et. al. Association of Adiponectin and Liptin to Lipid 
Profile in Obese Postmenopausal Women. Submitted in JPMA 
(Journal of Pakistan Medical Association.), 2006 

iv) Jaleel, A. et. al. Variations of Adiponectin and Lipid Profile in 
Diabetic Type 2 Postmenopausal Women With and Without 
Complication of Ischemic Heart Disease. Presented in 18th  
FAOBMB international conference, Lahore, November 21-23, 
2006 (Abstract published) 

v) Jaleel, A. et. al. (2006) Adiponectin! Obesity and Coronary 
Artery Disease. Medical Channel: 12(No. 1):37-39 (Review 
article) 
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Annexure V 

List of Travel Grants paid during 2005-2006 

Sr.No Name & Address of 
Applicant & File No. 

1. Dr. Muhammad Ibrar 
Shinwari, 
Associate Curator, 
Pakistan Museum of 
Natural History, 
Garden Avenue, Islamabad. 
T.G. 600. 

2. Dr. S. Shoaib Raza, 
Senior Research Fellow and 
Head Coordination, 
Global Change Impact 
Studies Centre, 
1st Floor, Saudi Pak Tower, 
Islamabad. 
T.G. 611. 

3. Mr. Naeem Manzoor, 
Research Fellow, 
Global Change Impact 
Studies Centre, 1st Floor, 
Saudi Pak Tower, 
Islamabad. 
T.G. 612. 

4. Mr. Muhammad Saleem 
Khan, 
Research Fellow, 
Department of Community 
Health Sciences, 
The Aga Khan University, 
Stadium Road, 
Karachi, 
T.G. 620  

Title of Conference & 
Title of Paper. 

Fourth International Congress of Ethno-
botany, from August, 21-26, 2005 at 
Yeditepe University Istanbul, Turkey. 
"Ethnobotanical study of Medicinal 
plants of Pakistan-An overview of 
Ethnobotanical study of Medicinal and 
Aromatic Plants of Moist /Temperate 
Himalayas Pakistan". 

Scientific Assembly of the International 86,360/- 
Association of Meteorology and 
Atmospheric Sciences (IAMAS), from 
Aug,2-11, 2005, at Beijing China, 
"Numerical Prediction of Monsoon 
Precipitation over Pakistan Region 
using Reg CM-3" 

Scientific Assembly of the International 86,360/- 
Association of Meteorology and 
Atmospheric Sciences (IAMAS) Aug, 
2-11, 2005 Beijing, China. 
'ENSO & NAO Influences over the 
Weather of Pakistan." 

XVII lEA World Congress of 
	

43,869/- 
Epidemiology (WCE2005) from 21-25, 
August, 2005, at Bangkok, Thailand. 
"Extent of delay and factors associated 
with pre-hospital delay in acute 
myocardial infarction patients in a 
tertiary care hospital of Karachi." 

Amount 
Paid (Rs.) 

69,200/- 
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5. Dr. Shafiq Ahmad Mujahid, 
Principal Scientist, 
Physics Research Division, 
PINSTECH. P.O Nilore, 
Islamabad. 
T.G.623. 

6. Ms. Fatima Batool, 
Design Engineer, 
Dept of Computer 
Engineering Center for 
Advanced Research in 
Engineering (CARE) 
Sir Syed Memorial 
Building, 19-Attaturk 
Avenue, G-5/2, Islamabad. 
T.G.631 

3rd European Metallurgical Conference 48,050/- 
(EMC-2005), from 18-22 September, 
2005, at Dresden Germany. 
"Theoretical Analysis of the 
Composition of Plates isothermally 
Formed in Titanium Binary Alloy." 

ICWES 13 Korea 2005 Women 	100,000/- 
Engineers and Scientists Main Force to 
Reshape the Future World, from 26-29 
August, at Soul, Korea. 
"An Optimal Route & Vehicle 
Assignment fleet Management System 
with real time monitoring Using Hybrid 
Network" 

7. Mrs. Ayesha Khalid, 
H# 31-A, Bilal Lane, 
Khawaja Co-operation, 
Adiala Road, Rawalpindi, 
Pakistan. 
T.G. 632 

8. Ms.Rizwana Khanum, 
Research Associate, 
Pakistan Museum of 
Natural History, Islamabad. 
T.G. 634 

The International Conference of 
Women Engineers and Scientists, from 
26-29 August, at Soul, Korea. 
"A Hybrid-Component Design 
Methodology for Redonfigurable High 
Data Rate Digital Communication 
Receiver Boards" 

1st International Conference on health 
and Biodiversity, from 23-25 August, 
2005, at Galway, Ireland. 
"Anthropogenic Disturbances & 
Problems for Gynospermous Seeding 
conservation" 

100,000/- 

98, 705/- 

9. 	Dr. Sabiha Bakhtyar, 
Deputy Chief Scientist, 
Nuclear Engineering 
Division, Pakistan institute 
of Nuclear Science and 
Technology, (PINSTECH), 
Nilore, Islamabad. 
T.G. 636  

The 13th International Conference of 	60,500/- 
Women Engineers and Scientists, 
ICWES13, from August 26-29, 2005, 
at EWha Women University, Soul, 
Korea. 
"Characterization of MTR Spent Fuel 
from a Swimming Pool Type Research 
Reactor" 
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Natural Resources & Environment and 49,000/-
Investment, from 9-10 August, 2005, at 
Al-Bayt University, Mafraq- Jordan. 
"Processing of Non-Metallic Industrial 
Minerals" 

Autumn College on Plasma Physics" 	62,365/- 
from 05-30 Sept, 2005 at AS-ICTP in 
Trieste, Italy. 
"Nonlinear Ion acoustic Wave in 
Magnetized electron positron ion 
plasma". 

10th World Congress for Total Quality 100,000/- 
Management, from Aug 21-24, 2005, at 
Winnipeg Canada. 
"Achieving Quality in waste 
Management in Developing Countries, 
the case of Pakistan" 

International Symposium on bio 
	

52 ,954/- 
inspired Computing, from 5-7 
September, 2005, at Malaysia. 

"Scope and Application of 
Computational Model in Medicinal 
Plant Research." 

The 2005 Solar World Congress, from 63,000/- 
August 6-12, 2005, at the Rosen Centre 
Hotel Orlando, Florida,. 
"Electrification of Villages: A case 
study of Mustung Village near Quetta 
(Pakistan). 

Royal Entomological Society Ento 05 	26,565/- 
Annual National Meeting, from 12-14 
September, 2005, at the University of 
Sussex, UK. 
"Storage Studies of Anaphes iole 
Girault (Hymenoptera mymardiae) at 
different developmental stages, 
temperatures and light-dark regimes." 

10. Dr. F. M. Zafar Kaifi, 
Principal Scientific Officer, 
Materials Science Centre, 
PCSIR Laboratories 
Complex, Jamrud Road, 
Peshawar. 
T.G. 637 

11. Mr. Shahzad Mahmood, 
Senior Scientist, 
PINSTECH (Physics 
Research Division) Nilore, 
Islamabad. 
T.G. 638 

12. Engr. Mrs. Naheed 
Ghazanfar, 
Chairperson, 
Institution of Engineers 

Pakistan, 
I&T Center, G-8/1, 
Islamabad. 
T.G. 644 

13. Dr. Khanzadi Fatima 
Khattak, 
Senior Scientist, 
Nuclear Institute for Food 
and Agriculture (NIFA) 
P.O. Tarnab Farm, G.T 
Road, Peshawar. 
T.G. 651. 

14. Syed Zafar Ilyas, 
Assistant Professor, 
Deptt. of Physics, 
University of Balochistan, 
Quetta. 
T.G. (559) 

15. Mr. Khalid Abdullah, 
Assistant Entomologist, 
Agricultural Research 
Institute, D.I. Khan, 
T. G. 618. 
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16. 	Mr. Muhammad Ibrahim, 
Agricultural Chemist 
(soils), 
Soil Chemistry Section, 
Ayub Agricultural Research 
Institute, 
Faisalabad. 
T.G.662  

i) The 3rd International Symposium on 15,000/-
all Aspects of Plant and Animal Boron 
Nutrition, from Sept 9-13, 2005, at 
Wuhan, China. 

ii)XV International Plant Nutrition 
Colloquium, from 14-23, 2005, at 
Beijing China September. 

17. 	Mr. Ghulam Murtaza, 
Manager, SUPARCO HQs, 
SPAS Division, Karachi. 
T.G.(595) 

a)Cotton and wheat responded to boron 
on high-pH calcareous soils in 
Pakistan 
b) Micronutrients status of citrus 
orchards and soils under these 
orchards in Pakistan, 
c) Effects of micronutrients on citrus 
fruit yield grown on calcareous soils". 

Recent Advances in Space 
Technologies Space in the Service of 
Society (RAST 2005) from 9-11 June, 
2005, at Istanbul, Turkey. 

53,845/- 

"Geomagnetic Field Variation 
Monitoring at Karachi, Pakistan" 

WONCA Asia Pacific Regional 	53,330/- 
Conference, from 27-315t  May, 2005, at 
Kyoto Japan " 

"Perception on Biethics Among 
General Practitioners in Karachi, 
Pakistan". 

4th Global Conference on Business and 76,000/-
Economics, from 26-28 June, 2005 at 
Oxford, UK. 

"Measurement of Productivity in the 
Large-Scale Manufacturing Sector of 
Pakistan (1976-2001)" 

18. Dr. Abdul Hafeez Qureshi, 
Senior Medical Officer, 
Community Health Centre, 
Deptt. of Family Medicine, 
The Aga Khan university 
Hospital, Stadium Road, 
Karachi. 
T.G (573) 

19. Mrs. Rukhsana Kalim, 
University of Management 
and Technology, 11, Aibak 
Block, New Garden Town, 
Lahore. 
T.G. (556) 
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20. Dr. Imtiaz Ather Siddiqui, 
Senior Registrar, 
Deptt. of E.N.T., 
Jinnah Post Graduate 
Medical Centre, Karachi. 
T.G (599) 

7th INORLD Congress of Chemical 	55,000/- 
Engineering, from 10-14 July, 2005, at 
Glsdvoe Scotland U.K. 

"Computational Modeling of 
Homogenous Gas Phase Reaction for 
Nox Removal" 

The 3rd International Workshop on 	86,500/- 
QoS in Multiservie IP Networks, from 
February 2-4, 2005, at Catania Italy. 

"NPP: A facility based computation 
framework for restoration routing using 
aggregate link usage information" 

8th  International Workshop on Seeds, 	78,000/- 
from 6th  to 9th  May, 2005, at Australia. 

"Seed Enhancements to Induce Salt 
Tolerance in Wheat (Triticum aesttivum 
L.)" 

Statistics in the Technological Age, 	67,680/- 
from 27-31 December 2005, at Petaling 
Jaya, Malaysia. 

"Goodness of Fit in Evaluation of 
Simulation Model: 1:1 line in 
perspective". 

The 8th International ESAFORM 	100,000/- 
Conference on Material Forming 
(2005) from 27-29 April 2005, at Cluj-
Napoca, ROMANIA. 

"Microstructural and hardness 
investigation in welding based Rapid 
Prototyping Process" 

XVIII IFO'S World Congress, from 25- 90,000/-
30 June, 2005, at Rome, Italy. 

1. "Role of Toluidine Blue in Early 
Detection of Oral Cancer". 
2. "FOLEY'S Catherter in 
management of Subglottic and Tracheal 
Injuries" 

20. Mr. Muhammad Tayyeb 
Javed, 
Senior Engineer SESDTE 
Pakistan Atomic Energy 
Commission, Ph. D Fellow, 
DCME, PlEAS, Nilore 
Islamabad. 
T.G.(568) 

21. Mr. Saqib Raza, 
Research Assistant, 
Department of Computer 
Science, Lahore University 
of Management Sciences, 
Lahore. 
T.G (545) 

22. Mr. hfan Afzal, 
Lecturer, 
Deptt. of Crop Physiology, 
University of Agriculture, 
Faisalabad 
T.G (549) 

23. Mr. Tahir Mehmood, 
Research Fellow, 
Global Change Impact 
Studies Centre (GCISC), 
1st Floor, Saudi-Pak Tower, 
Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad. 
T.G. (693) 

24. Mr. Rizwan Alim Mufti 
Senior Engineer PAEC, 
Ph.D. Scholar, 
Faculty of Mech. Engg. 
GIK Institute, Topi. 
T.G (557) 
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26. Dr. Altaf Ali Siyal 
Assistant Professor, 
Department of Land and 
Water Management, 
Faculty of Agricultural 
Engineering, Sindh 
Agriculture University, 
Tandojam, Sindh 
T.G (555) 

27. Dr. Muhammad Abid, 
Assistant Professor, 
Faculty of Mechanical 
Engineering, 
GIK Institute, 
Topi 
T.G. (700) 

28. Dr. Tanzeel Zehra, 
Senior Medical Officer, 
(SMO) NORI Hospital, 
G-8/3, 
Islamabad. 
T.G. (702) 

29. Mr. Zia-ul-Hasan Shah, 
Senior Lecturer, 
Faculty of Earth & 
Environmental Sciences, 
Bahria University, 
Shangrilla Road, Sector E-
8, Islamabad. 
T.G. (703) 

30. Dr. Shahina Tariq, 
Assistant Professor, 
Faculty of Earth & 
Environmental Sciences, 
Bahria University, 
Shangrilla Road, Sector E-
8, Islamabad 
T.G. (704)  

21st HKTW (Himalaya —Karakoram-
Tibit Workshop, from 29-31 March, 
2006, at University of Cambridge UK. 

"Structural Interpretation of Potwar 
Sub-Basim, Western Lesser Himalayas 
Pakistan". 

International conference on Human 	55,415/- 
Impacts on Soil Quality attributes in 
Arid and Semi arid Regions, from 
September 12-16, 2005, at Isfahan 
University of Technology, Iran. 

"Cropping and Tillage Techniques for 
Increasing the Leaching Efficiency of a 
Saline Clay Soil" 

International Institute of Welding 	84,765/- 
Congress: Welding and Related 
Inspection Technologies, from 8-10 
March, 2006, at Stellenbosch, South 
Africa. 

"Measurement of Welding Deformation 
in a Non-gasketed Pipe-Flange Joint". 

34th Annual Meeting of British Nuclear 76,325/- 
Medicine Society (BNMS), 
Manchester, UK, from 27th-29th 
March, 2006, at Manchester 
International Convention Center, 
Manchester, UK. 
"Role of 99m Tc-Mage Renal 

Scintigraphy in Detecting Capsulation- 
Induced Tubular Dysfunction". 

21st Himalaya —Karakoram-Tibet 	80,830/- 
Workshop (HKTW), from 29-31 
March, 2006, at University of 
Cambridge, U.K. 

"Geographic Information System and 
Deep Structure Modelling of Indus 
offshore Basin". 

51,670/- 
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31. Dr. Shahina Fayyaz, 
Director, 
National Nematological 
Research Center 
University of Karachi 
Karachi. 
T.G. (705) 

32. Dr. Shahab Khushnood, 
Professor, Department of 
Mechanical Engineering 
University of Engineering 
and Technology, Taxila. 
T.G. (707) 

Third International Date Palm 
Conference (TIDPC) from 19-21 
February, 2006, at Abu Dhabi. 

"Nematode Problem of Date Palm in 
Pakistan" 

14th  International Conference on 
Nuclear Engineering ICONE-14, from 
17-20 July, 2006, at Miami, Florida, 
USA 
"Modeling and Analysis of Thermal 
Damping in Heat Exchanger Tube 
Bundles". 

38,185/- 

100,000/- 

81,567/- • 33. 	Syed Muhammad Yahya, 
Senior Scientific Officer, 
Environmental Protection 
Agency, Govt. of Sindh, 
Korangi Industrial Area, 
Karachi 
T.G. (715) 

34. 	Mr. Muhammad Iqbal, 
Principal Scientist, 
Nuclear Physics Division, 
PINSTECH, P.O. Nilore, 
Islamabad. 
T.G. (716)  

7th International Conference on the 
Environmental Management of 
Enclosed Coastal Seas, from May 9-12, 
2006, at Center of Congress of Caen, 
France. 
"Impact of Two enclosed Seas on 
Neighboring Sea" 

Mechanics & Properties of Non-
crystalline Materials I: Amorphous 
Metal, from 23-28 April 2006, at 
Beijing, China. 

"Synthesis, characterization and 
mechanical properties of specially 
designed Zr-based alloys" 

"Effect of additional elements on 
mechanical properties of specially 
constituted Zr-based Bulk amorphous 
Alloys" 

36,150/- 
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DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 
"RESEARCH SUPPORT PROGRAM 

FOR ACTIVE SCIENTISTS AND 
TECHNOLOGISTS" 

LIST OF SCIENTISTS WHO HAVE 
AVAILED RESEARCH SUPPORT 
GRANT UNDER THE PROJECT 



Annexure VI 

List of Scientists/Technologists who were paid Research Grants under the Development 
Project "Research Support Programme for Active Scientists and Technologists of 

Pakistan" 

Amount Released 
S. No. Name & Address 	 (Rs. in million) 

Prof. Dr. M. Ataur Rahman, 

1 
	HEJ Research Institute of Chemistry, 	 1.0 

University of Karachi, Karachi 

2 

Dr. Sarfarz A. Bhatti, 
CSO, Applied Physics Division, 
PINSTECH, Islamabad 

0.606 

3 	Dr. Wasim Ahmad, 
Associate Professor, 
Department of Biological Sciences 
Quaid-i-Azam University, Islamabad. 

4 	Dr. Tayyab Husnain, 
Associate Professor, 
National Centre of Excellence in the 
Molecular Biology, University of Punjab, 
Lahore 

5 	Dr. Muhammad Yar Khuhawar, 
Dr. M.A. Kazi Institute of Chemistry 
University of Sindh, Jamshoro 

6 	Dr. Farooq-e-Azam, 
Nuclear Institute for Agriculture and 
Biology (NIAB), 
Jhang Road, Faisalabad 

7 	Dr. Qamar Javed, 
Department of Biosciences, 
COMSATS Institute of Information 
Technology, Sector H-8/1, Islamabad 

0.60 

0.679 

0.675 

0.60 

0.57 
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8 	Dr. Sikandar Ali, 	 0.925 
Department of Botany, 
G. C. University, Lahore 

9 	Prof. Dr. Masoom Yasinzai, 
Institute of Biochemistry, 
University of Balochistan, Quetta. 

10 	Dr. Abdul Qayum, 
PSO, Physics Research Division, 
PINSTECH, Nilore, Islamabad 

11 	Dr. Muhammad Nisar Khan, 
Physics Research Division, 
PINSTECH, Nilore, Islamabad 

0.305 

0.95 

0.70 
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SCIENCE CARAVANS 

DETAILS OF SCIENCE EXHIBITIONS 
AT SCHOOLS AND INDUSTRIAL FAIRS 



15.01.2006 
23.03.2006 
(68 days) 
01.04.2006 
15.04.2006 
(15 days) 

125 days 

to Dignitaries 	15000 
& General 
Public 

to Dignitaries 	3750 
& General 
Public 

2 	 29100 

A nnexure VII 

Details of Science Exhibitions at Schools and Industrial Fairs by PSF Science Caravans 

Federal Unit 

Exhibition Sites 	 Dates and No. of No. 	of No. 	of 
Days of Exhibitions Schools 	Students/ 

Visitors 

Fair, at Wah Cantt 	 Public 

1 	 600 

PCSIR "Image Pakistan" Industrial 	 to General 	8000 08.08.2005 
11.09.2006 
(35 days) 
15.09.2005 
(1 day) 
18.09.2005 
22.09.2005 
(5 days) 
03.10.2005 
(1 day) 

F.G. Girls College F-10/2, Islamabad 

AJK University, Muzaffarabad 

Planetarium shows at NUST, 
Institute of Information Technology, 
Rawalpindi 
PCSIR "Image Pakistan" Industrial 
Fair, at Ayub National Park, 
Rawalpindi 
PCSIR "Image Pakistan" Industrial 
Fair, at Ayub National Park, 
Rawalpindi 

Sub total: 

Sindh Unit 

Taluka Khairpur Nathan Shah, Distt. 
Dadu 

Taluka Diplo Distt. Tharparkar 

Taluka Nau-Dero, Rato Dero, Distt. 
Larkana 

Rato Dero, 
Distt. Larkana 

Bangul Dero, 
Distt. Larkana 

to Dignitaries 	1500 
& General 
Public 
1 	 250 

08.08.2005 
03.09.2005 
(27 days) 
26.09.2005 
10.10.2005 
(15 days) 
24.10.2005 
01.11.2005 
(9 days) 
09.11.2005 
23.11.2005 
(15 days) 
05.12.2005 
13.12.2005 
(9 days) 

to 35 

to 42 

to 14 

to 20 

to 10 

5000 

7000 

3000 

2000 

3440 
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SUPARCO, Space Week, Karachi 24.11.2005 to General 4000 
29.11.2005 public 
(6 days) 

Taluka and 01.02.2006 to 22 3000 
Distt. Badin 22.02.2006 

(22 days) 
Taluka Mitthi and Chachro, 03.03.2006 to 30 3500 
Distt. Tharparkar 05.04.2006 

(34 days) 
Sub Total: 137 Days 173 30940 

Punjab Unit 

Muzaffargarh City, 22.08.2005 to 43 (NGO) 1200 
Distt. Muzaffargarh 31.08.2005 

(10 days) 
Sialkot City, 05.09.2005 to 15 2000 
Distt. Sialkot 17.09.2005 

(13 days) 
District Kot Addu 14.11.2005 to 20 4000 

26.11.2005 
(13 days) 

G.H.S. District Vehari 05.12.2005 to 17 3600 
17.12.2005 
(13 days) 

G.G.H.S. District Vehari 18.01.2006 to 21 4000 
31.01.2006 
(14 days) 	. 

Warburton, 13.02.2006 to 30 4000 
Distt. Nankana Sahib 25.02.2006 

(13 days) 
Jhang city, 01.03.2006 to 16 3200 
Distt. Jhang 11.03.2006 

(11 days) 
Sub Total: 87 days 162 22000 

NWFP Unit 

Ayun, Koghuzi, 09.08.2005 to 32 2362 
Distt. Chitral 04.09.2005 

(27 days) 
Dinpur, 10.11.2005 to 35 3268 
District D.I.Khan 04.12.2005 

(25 days) 
Jalozai, 17.01.2006 to 17 3200 
District Nowshera 08.02.2006 

(15 days) 
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Swabi, 
Distt. Swabi 

15.03.2006 
29.03.2006 

to 	10 1300 

(15 days) 
Ramora & Khanpur, 
District Dir (Lower) 

01.05.2006 
31.05.2006 

to 	36 5000 

(31 days) 
Sub Total: 121 Days 130 15130 

Balochistan Unit 

Exhibition Sites Dates of Exhibition 	No. of Schools 
and Days 

No. 
Students! 
visitors 

UraldHannah, 
District Quetta 

22.10.2005 
02.11.2005 

to 	5 1200 

(12 days) 
Hannah, 
District Quetta 

10.11.2005 
24.11.2005 

to 	General Public 1300 

(15 days) 
Sub Total: 27 Days 5 2500 

Summary Data of Science Caravan Exhibitions in Pakistan 

1. Total No. of Days: 497 

2. Total No. of Schools: 472 

3. Total No. of Students: 99670 

of 

Q 
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